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HK$
us$
RMB
107.84 UFJ 2018 23
12 31
2010 2010 11 26
Teeroy Limited
2013 2013 10 23
Teeroy Limited

BVI

2010 12 BVI

Chang Yun Holdings
Limited
PRC
WH WH Group
Limited
EUR EU
2007 23 BVI
Heroic Zone Investments Limited
2013 BVI
High Zenith Limited

IFRS

2014

Norson Holding,
S. de R.L. de C.V. 2017 12 31
50
2017 2017 12 31
2013 BVI

(Rich Matrix Global Limited)
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2007 BVI
Rise Grand Group
Limited
RMB
2006 28
100
Rotary Vortex
Limited
0.0001
B 2006 20 BVI
Shine B
Holding 1 Limited 2015
1998 10 15
Henan Shuanghui Investment & Development Co., Ltd.
1994 29
100
Henan Luohe Shuanghui Industry Group
Co., Ltd.
1997 25
100
Smithfield Foods, Inc.
2013 25 BVI
Sure Pass Holdings Limited
us the United States of America
us$

30 18

76 76028 -7604A
(Unit 7602B-7604A, Level 76, International Commerce Centre, 1 Austin Road West, Kowloon,
Hong Kong)
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12 31 12 31
2017 2016 2015 2014 2013
20.2 19.2 19.1 17.7 5.5
53.8 49.3 48.3 47.2 22.8

3.3 3.2 3.2 3.2 2.2
22,379 21,534 21,209 22,243 11,253
3.9 1.5 -4.6 97.7 80.2
1,583 1,788 1,557 1,614 886
7.1 8.3 7.3 7.3 7.9
1,501 1,703 1,302 1,420 162
(182) (465) (307) (448) (229)
1,319 1,238 995 972 (67)
1,133 1,036 786 766 (263)
186 202 209 206 196
1,319 1,238 995 972 (67)
1,12 1,014
6 866 737 (289)
7.79 7.58 5.75 6.44 (2.62)
15,258 13,611 14,301 14,720 14,156
(7.036)  (6,573)  (7,598)  (8,670) (11,018)
8,222 7,038 6,703 6,050 3,138
7,445 6,316 5,763 5,130 2,275
777 722 940 920 863
8,222 7,038 6,703 6,050 3,138
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50
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110 57 41
12
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3,669 2016 3,210
2013 10 23 2013

278
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2017 2016
( )
11,777 11,074
9,526 9,178
572 844
504 438
22,379 21,534
1,435 1,475
547 545
56 (40)
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2013 278
2016  51.4
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2017 2016 ()

( )
3,312 3,344 -1.0
7,807 7,123 +9.6
658 607 +8.4
11,777 11,074 +6.3
692 725 -4.6
726 714 +1.7
17 36 -52.8
1,435 1,475 -2.7

2017 1.5 3,285
1.4
3.2
Clougherty
10.3 Pini
2017 2016 6.3 11,777
0.7
2.7 1,435
Pini
1.7
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2017 2016 ()

(

3,888 4,194 -7.3

4,961 4,441 +11.7
677 543 +24.7

9,526 9,178 +3.8
103 98 +5.1
433 472 -8.3

11 (25)
547 545 +0.4
2017 53,782 2016 9.1
15.5
Clougherty
8.0
4,489 8.2
11.6 5.2
2017
9.0
3.8 2017 9,526
2017 547
5.1

2016

2017
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2017 2016 ()
( )
11 14 21.4
510 794 -35.8
51 36 +41.7
572 844 -32.2
23 38 -39.5
(68) (144)
101 66 +53.0
56 (40)
2017 5.4 20,226
32.2 572 76
35 56
2016 40
2017
504 2016 15.1
14 17
2017 2016
3.9 1.5 2.4
EBITDA

10.5 10.4 +0.1
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8.3 8.3 0.0
— 12.2 13.3 -1.1
— 4.2 4.5 -0.3
— 1.6 (1.2) +2.8
— 436.9 455.4 -18.5
— 10.2 11.1 -0.9
— 2.8 .1) +4.9
5.7 5.6 +0.1
1.6 .5 +0.1
31.5 31.6 -0.1
38.9 40.9 -2.0
EBITDA
1.4 1.3 +0.1
9.1 8.9 +0.2
16.5 17.2 -0.7
2017 12 31
1,371 RMB
PLN RON 2016 1,139

2017 12 31 1.6

2016 1.5 2017 12 31 2,471 2016
2,720

2017 1,512 2016 1,850

2017
784 2016 141
2017 591
2016 1,673
2017

137 2016 36
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2017 400 2020 2.700 400
2022 3.350 600 2027 4.250
1,400
2017 17 1,000
500
2017 2018
2021 2022 1,786 1,400
1,400
2017 10 400
2021 2.650
2017 12 31 2016 12 31
( ) ( )
1,785 1,882
1,164 833
154 144
3 3
92 16
3,198 2,878
2,246 1,912
847 896
105 70
3,198 2,878
2017 12 31 3,215 2016 12 31
2,864
2018 28
2019 4
2020 14
2021 14
2022 21
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2017 12 31
87.0
2017 12 31 96.6
2017 12 31
38.9 22.2
24.7 2017 12 31 EBITDA
EBITDA
2016 12 31 1.3
2016 183
1,400
2017 12
2016 12 31 5.2
BBB+
Baa2
AAA
IDR BBB
BBB-

Ba2

34/274

EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

ooooooo
73.3 2016 12 31
2016 12 31 96.8
2016 12 31 40.9
EBITDA
EBITDA
1.4 0.8
0.8
2017 198
70 40
31 3.4
IDR
BBB
2018
Bal
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2017 563 2016 451
2017 2016
( )
67 80
437 306
59 65
563 451
ERP
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 12,103 1.9 11,231
1,106 12,337 4,245
517 4,762
2016 12 31 1,119 2017 12 31 1,171
22
2017
2017

Clougherty Clougherty
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2017

2017 28

66.5

2017 22

Celsus

2013

2017 14

Sausage Kansas City Sausage

2017 25

100

Vericom

2018

2017 12 31
136
14
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2017
2.34 1.76
0.20 72.8 81.7 126.9
23.68 33.07
5.51 60.9 103.0 91.8
2017 Clougherty
1.92 0.09
Pini 0.07
15
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2017 12 31

50,000,000,000

14,664,229,111

35,335,770,889

2017 12 31
0.0001
14,664,229,111
0.0001 06 S
14,664,229,111
2011 105 2,632 105 2,632
2017 12 31
2013 10 23 1,169,591,111 | 11,695,911,111 116,959.1111 | 1,169,591.1111
2014 11 2,952,510,000 | 14,648,421,111 295,251 1,464,842.1111
2016 10 2,388,000 | 14,650,809,111 238.8 1,465,080.9111
2016 12 260,000 | 14,651,069,111 26 1,465,106.9111
2017 11,500 | 14,651,080,611 1.15 1,465,108.0611 | po
2017 1,734,500 | 14,652,815,111 173.45 1,465,281.5111
2017 52,500 | 14,652,867,611 5.25 1,465,286.7611
2017 2,003,000 | 14,654,870,611 200.3 1,465,487.0611
2017 3,101,000 | 14,657,971,611 310.1 1,465,797.1611
2017 10 872,500 | 14,658,844,111 87.25 1,465,884.4111
2017 11 800,000 | 14,659,644,111 80 1,465,964.4111
2017 12 4,585,000 | 14,664,229,111 458.5 1,466,422.9111
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2013
IPO 39
2017 12 31
3,473,820,000 23.69
3,473,820,000 23.69
2018 26 2017 12 31
0.22 2016 0.21 2017 10
0.05 2017 12 31
0.27 2016 0.26 3,961 505
2016 3,809 491 2018
2018 2018
27
2017 12 31 3,684
2014
2014 2015 2016 2017
6.98 6.06 7.21 9.31
3.80 3.84 3.96 5.66
10 11 12
7.95 8.45 8.50 8.65 8.40 9.31

7.30 7.32 7.79 7.54 7.59 7.96

40/274



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

41/274



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

ooo0000
Wan Long
Wan Long 77 2007 10 16 2010 11 26
2013 12 31
2013 10 2012
20 000895
1968 Henan Luohe Meat Products
Processing United Factory 1984
40 1998 2003 2008 2013
12 China’ s National People’ s Congress 2001
China Meat Association 2006 12 2011 12
China Meat Association 1991
Henan University of Animal Husbandry and Economy The Henan Business
College 1999

Henan Province Advanced Professional Titles Adjudication Committee (Economic Disciplines )
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Jiao Shuge
Jiao Shuge 52 2006 28 2010 11 26
2013 12 31
2012 20
000895 CDH
1989 1995 710 China Aerospace Service and
Technology Corporation 1995 12 2002
China International Capital Corporation Ltd.
China Mengniu Dairy Co., Ltd. 02319
2004 18 2012 12 2012 12
2005 13
2012 22 China Yurun Food Group Limited
01068 2005 11 30 2014 16
China Shanshui Cement Group Co., Ltd. 00691
2007 12 38 Joyoung Company Limited
002242 2015 China Southern Airlines
Company Limited 1055
1986 Shandong University 1989 10

No. 2 Research Institute of Ministry of Aeronautics and Astronautics of

43/274



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oooooog
Guo Lijun
Guo Lijun 47 2013 12 31 2016
2013 10 2014 2014 2016
20
1993 1996 Henan Luohe
Meat Products Processing United Factory
1996 2001 Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Packaging
Industry Co., Ltd. Luohe Chinachem Shuanghui Plastic Processing
Co., Ltd. 2001 2012
2012
2013 10
000895
1994 Henan Radio and Television University
2004 12 Graduate School of Renmin
University 1994 10
PRC Ministry of Personnel
Zhang Taixi
Zhang Taixi 45 2013 12 31
2014
2015
1996 2007 Luohe Shuanghui Canned
Foods Company Limited Shuanghui Development
Meat Products Divison Factory
Ham Sausage Factory of Shuanghui Development
2008 2008 Tangshan Shineway Food Co.,
Ltd. 2008 10 2011 Jiangsu Huai’ an Shuanghui Food
Co., Ltd. 2011 2012
000895
2012 2015 2014 2015
1995 Luoyang Agricultural
College

441274



54 2016 22
2007 2010
2013 2013 10
2015 10 2015 12
1993
You Mu
You Mu 50 2016 22
2017 12 25
2015 27 2017 12 24
11 2015
2007 2014 11
2002
Group Sales Company 2003
2004 2004 10
2007 11 2012
1991
Graduate School of Renmin University
1994 10
2000 11
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2015 12
2016
2003
2003 2007
2012
2015 10
12
1988
2015
000895
2014
2014
2003 Shuanghui
2004
2004 10 2007
2005

Ministry of Finance of the PRC
Ministry of Personnel of PRC
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Huang Ming
Huang Ming 54 2014 16
1996 1998
1998 2001 2001 2005
Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business 2004 2005
2008 2010 2006
2009 Shanghai University of Finance and Economics
2005 2010
China Europe International Business School
2008 Yingli
Green Energy Holding Company Limited YGE
2009 10
01777 2014
JD.com, Inc.

JD 2018 360 360 Security Technology
Inc. 601360 SJEC
Corporation 601313

2011 2014 Tebon Securities Co., Ltd. 2011

2016 360 Qihoo 360 Technology Co. Ltd.

QIHU 2016 18
2011 2017 12 Guosen Securities Co. Ltd.
2013 10 2017 12
00867
1985 1991

1996
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Lee Conway Kong Wai
Lee Conway Kong Wai 63 2014 16
Limited 00051 Fhaowel Pow?r- Holdings 2010
0223 West China Cement Limited 2010
01117 2010 12
) o Gome Electrical Appliances 2011
Holding Limited 00493
5100 ) Tibet 5100 Water 2011
Resources Holdings Ltd. _011}5 )
T 02222 NVC-nghtlng Hofdlng 2012 11
oldings Ltd. Olgifhlll Internatlfnal 2013 11
Limited ods1 GC? New Energy Holdings 2014
Linited 168 China Rundong Auto Group 2014
Guotai Junan Securities 2017
Co., Ltd. GTJA 02611
2017 GTJA 601211
2014 2015 Merry Garden Holdings
Limited 01237 2009 10 2013
China Taiping Insurance Holdings Company Limited
00966 2009 10 2011 12
SVX 2011 11 2016 CITIC
Securities Company Limited 06030
1980 2009
2008 2017 1980
1988
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Lau, Jin Tin Don
Lau, Jin Tin Don 61 2014 16
2013 2017 Spring Real Estate
Investment Trust 01426
Spring Asset Management Limited
2013 Yuexiu
Property Company Limited 00123
2005 2010 Yuexiu Real Estate Investment Trust
00405 Yuexiu

REIT Asset Management Limited
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2016
1990 10 1991 12 Henan Luohe Meat
Products Processing United Factory 1992 1993 10
1993 11 2010
2012 2013 10 2015 11
2016 1990
Henan Radio and Television University
Ma Xiangjie
Ma Xiangjie 46
2017 12 26
000895 2012 25 2017 12 25
21 2008 2010
2010 2012
2001 Shuanghui Development Ingredients Factory
2003 Luohe Shineway Haiying Seasoning Food Co., Ltd.
2004 Luohe Tianrui Biochemicals Co., Ltd.
2012 10 26 Luohe Shuanghui Food Sales Co., Ltd.
2013 22 Fuxin Shuanghui Meat Processing Co., Ltd.
2013 22 Heilongjiang Baoquanling Shuanghui
Beidahuang Food Co., Ltd. 2013 11 19 Shaanxi Shuanghui
Food Co., Ltd.
1996 Henan Agricultural University
2005 Graduate School of Renmin University
2010 Northwest A&F University
2003
Qiao Haili

Qiao Haili 53

2014 11
000895
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2016 11
2012 2014 10
2009 2012
1986 1995
1995 1998
1998 2004 10 Luohe Shuanghui
Canned Foods Company Limited 2001 11 2004 10
2004 11 2009 Shuanghui Development Meat Processing
Division Factory
1986 Zhengzhou Junior College of Animal Husbandry and
Veterinary Medicine 2005 3 Graduate
School of Renmin University 1998 12
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Wang Yufen
Wang Yufen 50 2012
000895 1998 18
26 1987 10 1991
Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch 1991
1992 Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory
Meat Product Branch 1992 1993 Henan Luohe
Meat Products Processing United Factory Meat Product Branch 1993 1998
Henan Luohe Meat Products Processing United Factory Food
Institute 1998 2001 11
1997 Zhengzhou University of Light Industry
2002 2005

Graduate School of Renmin University
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Liu Songtao
Liu Songtao 41 2012
000895
2003
Development Luohe Slaughter Factory

Luohe Huayi Food Co., Ltd.

University

62 1995

2008

1978
1983

64

Animex Sp. Z.o.o0.
2006

1986

2002

2016

2006
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2000 Henan
2011
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100
25
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44 2015 10

19

2000 2005
1995 1996

Chau Ho
Chau Ho 52 2014
2011 2014
China Rongsheng Heavy Industries Group Holdings Limited
01101 2010 2011
00845
20 1994 10 2010

1991 11 1992 11
2003 1994
2006 2008
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14

10

2017 12 31

54/274



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)
oOoOooodn

)

A.2.1

)

3.13
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5/5 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 N/A 1/1 1/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 N/A 0/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A 2/2 2/2 1/1 0/1 N/A
5/5 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1 0/1 N/A
5/5 N/A 1/1 N/A N/A N/A N/A 0/1 N/A
5/5 3/3 1/1 1/1 N/A N/A N/A 0/1 N/A
4/5 3/3 1/1 N/A N/A 2/2 1/1 1/1 N/A
5/5 3/3 N/A 1/1 2/2 N/A N/A 1/1 N/A
N/A
CPD
CPD

CPD
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11
4,000,001 4,500,000 1
6,000,001 6,500,000 2
7,000,001 7,500,000 2
8,000,001 8,500,000 1
35,000,001 40,000,000 1
55,000,001 60,000,000 1
85,000,001 90,000,000 1

2017
23
2014 7 17
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ESG

ESG

ESG

ESG

(i) ESG
(i) ESG
(iv)

ESG

(H

)

(H
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2017
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12 31
2017 2016

22,379 22,379 21,534 21,534
(17,766) (295) (18,061) (17,182) (145) (17,327)

4,613 (295) 4,318 4,352 (145) 4,207
(1,930) (1,930) (1,794) (1,794)
(823) (823) (748) (748)

305 305 180 180
13 13 (10) (10)

113 113 107 107
7 7 (40) (40)
(326) (326) (49) (49)
(198) (198) (183) (183)

8 8 8 8

14 14 25 25

1,478 23 1,501 1,678 25 1,703
(165) (17) (182) (462) 3) (465)

1,313 6 1,319 1,216 22 1,238
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12 3l
2017 2016

5 2,413,351 2,413,351 2,322,227 2,322,227
(1,915, 885) (31,813)  (1,947,698)  (1,852,907) (15,637)  (1,868,544)

497,466 (31,813) 465,653 469,320 (15,637) 453,683
(208,131) (208,131) (193, 465) (193,465)
(88,752) (88,752) (80,664) (80,664)

32,891 32,891 19,411 19,411
1,402 1,402 (1,078) (1,078)

6 12,186 12,186 11,539 11,539
; 755 755 (4,314) (4,314)
8 (35,156) (35,156) (5,284) (5,284)
9 (21,352) (21,352) (19,735) (19,735)

863 863 863 863

1,510 1,510 2,696 2,696

10 159,388 2,480 161,868 180,956 2,696 183,652
" (17,794) (1,833) (19,627) (49,822) (324) (50,146)

141,594 647 142,241 131,133 2,372 133,506
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48

(75) (31

(30)
(105) (31)
333 (251)
(11) 18
322 (233)
217 (264)
1,536 974
1,133 1,036
186 202
1,319 1,238
1,301 827
235 147
1,536 974

14

7.79 7.58
7.76 7.25
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2017 2016
48
(8,088) (3,343)
(3,235)
(11,323) (3,343)
35,911 (27,068)
(1,186) 1,941
34,724 (25,127)
23,401 (28,470)
165,642 105,036
122,183 111,722
20,058 21,784
142,241 133,506
140,300 89,184
25,342 15,852
165,642 105,036
14
8.40 8.17
8.37 7.82
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12 31
2017 2016

15 5,037 543,190 4,529 488,407
16 197 21,244 195 21,029
17 181 19,519 186 20,058
18 1,838 198,210 1,784 192,387
19 1,742 187,857 1,681 181,279
20 155 16,715 62 6,686
21 140 15,098 119 12,833
24 41 4,421 47 5,068
25 7 755 5 539
27 5 539 8 863
32 58 6,255 28 3,020
191 20,597 124 13,372
9,592 1,034,401 8,768 945,541
17 990 106,762 933 100,615
22 1,905 205,435 1,678 180,956
23 989 106,654 793 85,517
24 222 23,940 228 24,588
16 5 539 5 539
115 12,402 16 1,725
/ 27 69 7,441 51 5,500
27 1,371 147,849 1,139 122,830
5,666 611,021 4,843 522,269
28 1,076 116,036 854 92,095

29 1,472 158,740 1,422 153,348
50 5,392 36 3,882
31 809 87,243 995 107,301
31 92 9,921 16 1,725

3,499 377,332 3,323 358,352

2,167 233,689 1,520 163,917

11,759 1,268,091 10,288 1,109,458
31 2,297 247,708 1,867 201,337
29 199 21,460 162 17,470
30 23 2,480 23 2,480
32 639 68,910 887 95,654
33 11 1,186 8 863
34 368 39,685 303 32,676
3,537 381,430 3,250 350,480
8,222 886,660 7,038 758,978
37 1 108 1 108
7,444 802,761 6,315 681,010
7,445 802,869 6,316 681,117
777 83,792 722 77,860
8,222 886,660 7,038 758,978

63 161 2018 26

Mr. Wan Long Mr. Guo Lijun
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(©))
C @) ( 48) C ()
2016 1 2,902 (55) (118) 665 229 2,139 5,763 940 6,703
1,036 1,036 202 1,238
(196) (196) (55) (251)
(31 (31) (31)
18 18 18
(196) (13) 1,036 827 147 974
(10) (10) (23) (33)
(347) (347)
( B 22 (330) (308) (308)
42 42 5 47
+ 3 (6] 2 2
9 )
+ 3 (10) 63 9 (339) (274) (365) (639)
2016 12 31 1 2,905 (65) (314) 715 238 2,836 6,316 722 7,038
1,133 1,133 186 1,319
284 284 49 333
(75) (75) (75)
(30) (30) (30)
(11) (11) 11)
284 (116) 1,133 1,301 235 1,536
(©) @ (©)] m
a74) 174)
( 13) (489) (489) (489)
310 310 3 313
+ 16 ) 1 11
12) 12)
6 6
+ 16 4) 305 (489) (172) (180) (352)
2017 12 31 1 2,921 (69) (30) 904 238 3,480 7,445 777 8,222
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C @ ( 48) (@)
108 312,952 (5,931) (12,725) 71,714 24,695 230,670 621,482 101,370 722,852
111,722 111,722 21,784 133,506
(21,137) (21,137)  (5,931)  (27,068)
(3,343) (3,343) (3,343)
1,941 1,941 1,941
(21,137) (1,402) 111,722 89,184 15,852 105,036
(1,078) (1,078)  (2,480) (3,559)
(37,420)  (37,420)
2,372 (35,587)  (33,215) (33,215)
4,529 4,529 539 5,068
+ 324 (108) 216 216
971 971)
n 324 (1,078) 6,794 971  (36,558)  (29,548) (39,362)  (68,910)
108 313,275 (7,010)  (33,862) 77,106 25,666 305,834 681,117 77,860 758,978
122,183 122,183 20,058 142,241
30,627 30,627 5,284 35,911
(8,088) (8,088) (8,088)
(3,235) (3,235) (3,235)
(1,186) (1,186) (1,186)
30,627 (12,500) 122,183 140,300 25,342 165,642
(431) (431) (324) (755)
(18,764)  (18,764)
(52,734)  (52,734) (52,734)
33,430 33,430 324 33,754
+ 1,725 (539) 1,186 1,186
(1,299 (1,294)
647 647
N 1,725 (431) 32,891 (52,734)  (18,548)  (19,411)  (37,960)
108 315,001 (7,441)  (3,235) 97,487 25,666 375,283 802,869 83,792 886,660
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)
12 31
2017 2016
1,501 161,868 1,703 183,652
12)  (1.294) (10) (1,078)
198 21,352 183 19,735
(® (863) ® (863)
14)  (1,510) (25) (2,696)
382 41,195 363 39,146
() (863) 16 1,725
7 755 9 971
®) (863) (14) (1,510)
5 539 5 539
49 5,284 24 2,588
13)  (1,402) 10 1,078
12 1,294 47 5,068
1 108 1 108
13 1,402
313 33,754 47 5,068
4) (431)
2,414 260,326 2,351 253,532
8 863 (79) (8,519)
(186)  (20,058) 9 971
(169)  (18,225) (84) (9,059)
26 2,804 9 971
2,003 225,709 2,206 237,895
(438)  (47,234) (171)  (18,441)
(143)  (15,421) (185)  (19,950)
1,512 163,054 1,850 199,504
(530)  (57,155) (514)  (55,430)
(559)  (60,283)  (1,348)  (145,368)
540 58,234 1,730 186,563
/ (64)  (6,902) (69) (7,441)
/ 54 5,823 33 3,559
40 4,314 8 863
12 1,294 6 647
7 755 6 647
5 539
2 216
47)  (15,852)
(88)  (9,490)
(10)  (1,078)
(58)  (6,255)
19 2,049
(784)  (84,547) (141)  (15,205)
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4,181 450,879 3,024 326,108
(4,117) (443,977) (4,028)  (434,380)
(79)  (19,303) (330) (35,587)
(489)  (52,734) (308) (33,215)
©) (431) (33) (3,559)
11 1,186 2 216

6 647

(591)  (63,733)  (1,673)  (180,416)

137 14,774 36 3,882
19 2,049 (38) (4,098)
1,123 121,104 1,125 121,320
1,279 137,927 1,123 121,104
1,371 147,849 1,139 122,830
92)  (9,921) (16) (1,725)
1,279 137,927 1,123 121,104

76/274



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

ooOoooOoo
5
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(
)
2014
(
)
2017 12 31
( )
50
2.1
1ASB IFRS
2.2
2017
12 31
(a
(b
(c
(a
(b
(c
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)
(
IAS 39
2.3
IFRS
IFRS
1AS
IAS 12
2014-2016 o IFRS 12
IFRS 12
IFRS 1AS
36 1AS
2.4
IFRS
IFRS 1
IFRS IFRS IFRS 1
IFRS 1
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IFRS

IFRS 10 IAS 28

IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 16

IFRS 17

IAS 19

IAS 28

IAS 40

IFRIC 22

IFRIC 23
2014-2016
2015-2017

2018
2019
2021

AW ON P

IFRS
IFRS

IFRS

IFRS

12

12

IFRS

IAS 39

791274

IFRS 15 1
2
3
2
1
1
2
IFRS IAS 28 1
IFRS IFRS 11 IAS 12 IAS 23
IFRS
IFRS
12
IFRS
2018



IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 15

IFRS 15

2016 1ASB
IFRS 15

2017 12 31

IFRS 16
IFRS 16
IFRS 16

IFRS 16

IAS 18

IAS 17

IFRS 15
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IAS 40
IFRS 16
IAS 17
IFRS 16
IFRS 16 IAS 17
IFRS 16
2017 12 31 41 265
IFRS 16
IFRS 16
IAS 12
IAS 19

IFRS

IFRS
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IFRS IAS 17
1AS IAS 36
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2017 12 31 985 2016
927 17
CGU
CGU
2017 12 31 1,838 2016 1,784
18
CGU
CGU
CGU
2017 12 31 1,742 2016 1,681 19

2017 12 31
1,905 2016 1,678 22
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2017 12 31 105
2016 31 2017 12 31
362 2016 321 34
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2017 2016
11,777 11,074
9,526 9,178
572 844
504 438
22,379 21,534
) (
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3,312 4,491 75 456 8,334
(603) (64) (221) (888)
3,312 3,888 11 235 7,446
692 103 23 (293) 525
7,810 7,916 2,854 18,580
®) (2,955) (2,344) (5,302)
7,807 4,961 510 13,278
726 433 (68) (168) 923
696 1,143 636 354 2,829
(38) (466) (585) (85) 1,174)
658 677 51 269 1,655
17 11 101 6 135
11,818 13,550 3,565 810 29,743
(41) (4,024) (2,993) (306) (7.364)
11,777 9,526 572 504 22,379
1,435 547 56 (455) 1,583
71
23
(198)
8
14
1,501
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3,344 4,757 92 394 8,587
(563) (78) (191) (832)
3,344 4,194 14 203 7,755
725 98 38 (38) 823
7,125 7,029 2,702 16,856
©) (2,588) (1,908) (4,498)
7,123 4,441 794 12,358
714 472 (144) (154) 888
652 896 518 309 2,375
(45) (353) (482) 74) (954)
607 543 36 235 1,421
36 (25) 66 * 77
11,121 12,682 3,312 703 27,818
7 (3.,504) (2,468) (265) (6,284)
11,074 9,178 844 438 21,534
1,475 545 (40) (192) 1,788
40
25
(183)
8
25
1,703
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2017 2016
2,636 2,567
5,318 4,983
1,397 1,033
9,351 8,583
2017 2016
47 63
12 10
38 19
113 107
2017 2016
14 5
8 14
4
8 (16)
13)
12 47)
) 4
7 (G
7 (40)
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2017 2016
(313) @an
(G (€))
13) (€))
(326) (49)
2017 2016
O 14)
(64) (117)
®) ®)
(55) (47
(70)
1 1
(198) (183)
2017 2016
3 4
+ 2
382 363
7 9
5 5
49 24
1 1
121 112
99 84
3,354 3,167
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2017
)
A)
Wan Long 2 + 289 + 291
Guo Lijun 1 + 3 + 4
Zhang Taixi + 3 + 3
Sullivan Kenneth Marc 1 14 1 + 16
You Mu 1 + + 1
5 14 296 + 315
B)
Jiao Shuge
9]
Lee Conway Kong Wai + +
Huang Ming + +
Lau Jin Tin Don + +
+ +
2017 12 31 315
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2016
)
A
Wan Long 2 + 15 + 17
Guo Lijun 1 * 4 * 5
Zhang Taixi + 4 + 4
Sullivan Kenneth Marc 1 12 1 1 1 16
You Mu 1 + + 1
5 12 1 24 1 43
B)
Jiao Shuge
9]
Lee Conway Kong Wai + +
Huang Ming + +
Lau Jin Tin Don + +
+ +
2016 12 31 43
)
) 2017 12 31 2016 12 31
) 2017 12 31 2016 12 31 Wan Long
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2017 12 31 2016
2016
2017 2016
- 3 3
- 19 14
- 1
- 1 2
- 4
27 27
2017 2016
45,000,001 45,500,000 1
56,500,001 57,000,000 1
63,500,001 64,000,000 1
76,000,001 76,500,000 1
85,000,001 85,500,000 1 1
2016
12
2017 2016
(188) (197)
(210) 6)
o
(46) (49)
263 (213)
(182) (465)
EIT EIT
25
( ) EIT
2008 149 EIT
EIT 86
EIT
( EIT
EIT
(
2012 58
15
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( EIT
2009 203 15
15
2008 2008
EIT 27 91
10  EIT
2008 12 31 2009 12 31
10 2010 10
2016 12 31 2017 12 31
21 35
2017 12 22
35 21 2018
2017 12 31
2017 12 31 16.5
2016 12 31
2017 2016
1,501 1,703
(492) (32.8) (499) (29.3)
6 0.4 10 0.6
8 0.5 25 1.5
(68) (4.5) (45) Q.7

® (0-3) +

104/274



EIT

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

105/274

OooooOodd
+ 3 0.2
32 2.1 30 1.8
11 0.7 10 0.6
341 22.8 2 0.1
@n 1.8)
(28) 1.9) (25) (1.5)
©) 0.2) 1 0.1
2D (1.3)
43 2.9 44 2.6
(182) 12.1) (465) (27.3)
32
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2016
2015 0.125
2017
2016 0.05
2017 12 31
14
2016 12 31

0.21

0.05
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2017 2016
395 236
94 94
489 330
0.22
2017 2016
1,133 1,036
14,541.85 13,666.40
631.58
49.33
14,591.18 14,297.98
39(¢)

2016 12 31
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2016 12

2017 12

2016

2016 12

2017 12

2017 12
2016 12

2017

2017

2017

28

2017

2016

31

31

31

31

31
31

12

12

12

12

12

31

31

31

31
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479 2,120 146 2,777 282 5,804
@ (86) ©) (98) ®) (194)
1 1 13 436 451
3 93 4 310 (410)
@ ®) (6) (49) (59)
2017 479 2,125 140 2,953 305 6,002
7 105 123 8 249
1 9 552 563
35 57 34 73 6 173
1 133 283 (420)
(5) ©) ©) (32) (®) (62)
539 2,389 145 3,409 443 6,925
327 69 734 1,130
(15) 0 (13) (32)
94 15 254 363
47 a7
&) 4 (30) (35)
2017 405 76 992 1,473
31 + 20 51
101 12 269 382
12 12
®) (®) (19) (30)
534 80 1,274 1,888
539 1,855 65 2,135 443 5,037
479 1,720 64 1,961 305 4,529
953 2016 915
217 2016 317
2016 24
12
39
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16
2017 2016
238 255
16 an
+ +
(6)
12 31 248 238
38 35
@
5
+
12 31 46 38
12 31 202 200
5 5
197 195
202 200
10 49
17

108/274




EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

(

)

45

13 19

2.1

ooooOoog
2017 2016
1,685 1,574
2,100 2,243
7,446 7,220
11,231 11,037
1,106 1,066
12,337 12,103
4,245 3,846
517 531
4,762 4,377
114
23 132
21
38 42
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2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
927 861 184 198 6 4 2 2 1,119 1,065
20 1) 3 3) + ¥ ¥ Q) 23 (15)
7,267 6,817 195 177 133 93 8 8 7,603 7,095
35 14 5 19
42 1 (25) (6) @ @ ®) ) 13 (10)
(7,103) (6,564) (149) (151)  (94)  (84) @ (3) (7,347) (6,802)
@182 @y (36 (B (39) ) 0} (259)  (214)
12 31 985 927 177 184 5 6 4 2 1,171 1,119
2017 2016
990 933
181 186
1,171 1,119
2017 2016
- 985 927
- 177 184
- 5 6
- 4 2
1,171 1,119
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(€))
@

(€]
(©)
@
(©)

ooooooo
JLL
2017 2016
2,190 2,187
67 63
1,512 1,807
(O] 66 65
25 25
17 17
@ 16 17
159 172
76 87
32 31
149 139
(O] 5.5 5.5
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18
2017 2016
1,784 1,801
35 26
28 an
12 31 1,838 1,784
12 31
12 31 1,838 1,784
CGU
CGU
2017 2016
51 47
147 137
31 31
1,510 1,504
99 65
1,838 1,784
CGU CGU
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 CGU
CGU
2017 2016 2017 2016
1.45-23.07 5.40-27.33 (3.3)-2.0 0-5.4
2 2 2 2
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CGU

CGU
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12 11 8 8
2017 2016 2017 2016
9.58-9.74 8.60-20.30 2.1-7.9 (0.1)-2.9
2 2 2 2
12 11 8 8
2017 2016
4.3-19.6 4.0-11.3
3 3
9 9
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2016

2016

2017

2016

2016

2017

2017
2016

12

12

12

12

12
12

31

31

31

31

31
31
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1,627 5 54 40 1,730
(25) + (25)
2017
1,602 5 54 40 1,705
35 27 30
37 1 38
1,666 5 55 40 1,773
10 4 15
+ +
7 2 9
2017
17 6 24
+ +
5 2 7
22 8 31
1,666 5 33 32 1,742
1,602 37 34 1,681
25
CGU
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oell
2017 2016
51 47
299 281
243 235
984 965
94 79
1,671 1,607
CGU oell
2017 12 31 2016 12 31 oell
2017 2016 2017 2016
1.45-23.07 5.40-27.33 (3.3)-2.0 0-5.4
2 2 2 2
15 14 8 10
2017 2016 2017 2016
9.58-9.74 8.60-20.30 2.1-7.9 2.1-2.9
2 2 2 2
15 14 8 10
2017 2016
4.3-19.6 4.0-11.3
3 3
9 11
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
21

2017 12 31 2016 12 31
22
23

116/274

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn

2017 2016
135 47
20 15
155 62
2017 2016

8 8
7 6

2017 2016
111 111
29 8
140 119

2017 2016
700 626
116 85
1,089 967
1,905 1,678

2017 2016
994 792
a0 ®
984 784



30
31 90
91 180
2017 12 31
106

12 31

24

2016

2017 12 31

26
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ooooooo
5 9
989 793
30
2017 2016
882 728
105 55
2 10
989 793
31 180
62 2016 65
2017 2016
(®) Q)
@ *
@ @
+ 1
(10) ®)
2017 2016
41 40
17 21
10 8
16 20
74 104
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48 28
45(b) 4
57 50
263 275
222 228
41 47
263 275
2017 2016
- 7 5
5
5

2017 12 31

118/274



26

2017 12 31

2016 12 31

2017

2017

2017
2016

12 31

12 31

12 31

2016 12 31
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2017 2016
1 1
+ + 2
8 18 6
+ 2 1
+ + + 2
9 20 5 11
1,660,000 6,855,000 2019
1,025,000 11,705,000 2018
2016

16
11
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2017 12 31
198,720,000 1,867,480,000 2018 12
70,610,000 210,010,000 2020 12
763,900 1,770,800 2020 12
16,717,216 619,596,316 2019 11
7,620,397 45,316,424 2018
2016 12 31
127,840,000 1,515,800,000 2017
34,660,000 102,610,000 2018 12
315,600 1,270,200 2018 12
17,238,832 618,385,250 2019 11
14,811,932 51,923,855 2017 10
2017 12 31 11 2016 18
2017 2016
+ + +
4 1 2 +
13 5 5
6 1 8
23 7 15 +
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2017 12 31
355,000 2018
100 33,000 2018
5,000,000 232,160,000 2019
26,195,000 41,810,000 2019
10,000 6,230,000 2019
8,535,000 17,570,000 BTU 2020 11
10,980,000 2018
12,600,000 19,320,000 2018 12
2016 12 31
5,190,000 2017
900 4,810,000 2017
200,000 223,240,000 2018
45,000 29,310,000 2018
55,000 4,810,000 2018
7,790,000 10,950,000 BTU 2018 12
13,440,000 2017
8,865,511 77,633,021 2017
14
27
2017 12 31 0.01 6.25 2016  0.01 4.80
0.01 3.90 2016 0.01 3.90
2017 12 31
2016
2016
2017 12 31
63 2016 42
28
30
2017 2016
1,076 854
2017 2016
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30 1,058 832
31 90 13 15
o1 180 2 2
181 365 3 5
1,076 854
29
2017 2016
486 447
190 216
247 211
146 119
141 117
28 56
17 63
41 38
34 12 33
45(b) 9 7
26 11 11
40 35
34 29
13 17
56 59
200 126
1,671 1,584
1,472 1,422
199 162
1,671 1,584
30
2017 12 31 23 2016 24
2017 12 31 0.3 2016

0.3
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2017 2016 2017 2016
5 2 5 1
2 2 2 1
5 4 4 3
21 21 17 19
33 29 28 24
® ®
28 24
29
® €))
23 23
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31
2017 2016
2017 7.750 434
2018 5.250 200
2021 5.875 350
2022 6.625 898
2020 2.700 398
2021 10 2.650 396
2022 3.350 397
2027 4.250 594
1,785 1,882
) 154 144
107 89
1,015 744
)
1 1
2 2
() 42
3,106 2,862
) 92 16
)
809 995
131 575
1,569 389
597 903
3,106 2,862
(809) (995)
2,297 1,867
2,492 2,359
614 503
3,106 2,862
2,340 2,507
625 283
78 43
34
27 24
3
2 2
3,106 2,862
() 2017 12 31 2.25 5.70 2016 2.45 5.70
HIBOR 0.45 WIBOR 3.20 2016  LIBOR 0.75 LIBOR 2.50
() 2017 12 31 0.9 2016 0.9
() 2017 17 1,000
3.50
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() 2017 12 31

)

2016 12 31

32

2016

2016 12 31 2017
35

2017 12 31

+
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oooooog
3.92 4.35 2016 3.50
2017 12 31
43
2017 2016
58 28
(639) (887)
(581) (859)
3 13 + 167 108 15 23 419
+ + + + + 2 2
15 G) * @ain 72) ®) ®) (185)
+ 18 @an 7
18 8 + 50 144 12 11 243
+ + + 2 + 2
20 6 26
12) 5 * 2 @n 12) 37 @
®) 6 1
6 13 + 74 112 60 265
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2016 (537) (31) (473) (42) (1,083)
+ + + 9 9
(35) 22 (15) (28)
2016 12 31 2017 (572) [©) (473) (48) (1,102)
®) ) @ 13)
35 * @ @
198 (18) 48 ) a7 270
(5) 6 * 1
2017 12 31 (384) @7 427) ) (©) (846)
+
2017 12 31 326 2016
177 279 2016 141
47 2016 36
2017 12 31
2016 2037
2037
2017 2016
2017 1
2018 3 3
2019 3 3
2020 6 3
2021 35 22
47 32
1,989 2016 1,108
33
2017 2016
29 * 1
11 8
11 9
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34
65 40 45
2017 12 31
12 31
2017 2016

3.90 4.55

4 4
1,777 2016 1,574

1271274
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29
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2017 2016
57 51
14 15
71 66
2017 2016
108 31
(208) (80)
(100) (49)
(5) 18
(105) (31)
2017 2016
2,139 1,895
@,777) (1,574)
362 321
10 10
372 331
12 33
368 303
) ®)
372 331




12 31

12 31

EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn

2017

2016

1,895
57
84
(105)

208

1,783
51
81
(100)

80

2,139

1,895

2017

2016

1,574
70
134

(105)

)

108

1,322
66
255

(100)

31

1,777

1,574

12 31

2017

2016

178
1,161
335
78

92

117
1,106
200
52

64

1,845
(68)

1,540
34

1,777

1,574

2017 12 31
684 1,069 92 2016 580
65

7.90 2016 7.91

50 156
2016 133
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2017 12 31 2016 12 31
110 - 151 -
515 30-50 1,106 30-50
982 35-55 200 33-55
170 -20 117 -20
1,777 1,574

135
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MPF MPF
MPF
30,000
401(k)

2017 12 31 90 2016 88
35

2016 11 21 Clougherty Packing, LLC( Clougherty )

2017

2017 Pini Polska Sp. zo.o. Hamburger Pini Sp. zo.o. Royal Chicken Sp. z

0.0. Pini
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2017 22 Celsus Glycoscience, Inc.( Celsus )

173
19
30
37
32
24
18

(78)

(35)

(56)

(25)

139
26

165

132/274



EDINETOOOO
O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

ooooood
(165)
18
(147)
(©)
(150)
2017 12 31 Clougherty Pini Celsus
559 37
Clougherty Pini Celsus 2017 12 31
22,379 1,319
36
2017 17 2,886
(668) 64
30
70
56
663
1 28
2017 12 31 13 3,134
37
0.0001
2016 2016 12 31 2017 2017 12 31 50,000.00 5
2016 2016 12 31 2017 14,651.07 1
13.16 +
2017 12 31 14,664.23 1
1PO
38
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31

2017 2016
7 5
32 20
130 97
169 122
1,051 878
74 59
1,371 1,139
2,496 2,076
1,628 1,300
3,106 2,862
92 16
4,826 4,178
27 11
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2017 2016
5 107
4 1
12 27
7 49
52 142
16 13
2 2

2016
2016
2016
2016

2017 2016

@ (©)
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31

27

27

27

31
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25

25

25

2017 2016

25
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2017 12 31 2,471 2016 2,720

-12 - -
2017 12 31

1,073 3 1,076

497 55 552

4 2 1 5 21 33

94 94

422 271 6 1,218 602 2,519

27 102 125 363 617

2,117 378 187 1,586 623 4,891

4 7 11
2016 12 31

849 5 854

350 96 446

+ 2 2 4 21 29

16 16

660 207 451 610 963 2,891

183 73 227 23 506

2,058 287 776 637 984 4,742

2017 12 31
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2017
17 15 32
16 91 23 130
33 106 23 162
16 11 27
2016
6 14 20
19 78 97
25 92 117
11 11
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2017 12 31

17 (16) 1 10 11

16 (16)
2016 12 31

17 11 6 8 14

11 1)
39

(a) 2010
2010 2010 11 26
2013 12 26

2010
631,580,000
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2010
Tricor Services Limited 2010
Teeroy Limited
2010 2010
2010
2010
2010
2010 2012
2012 2014 2010

2010

631,580,000

2012 12 26

2012 2014

128
(b) 2013
2013 10
2013
2013 3.0
2013
2013 2013
2013
2013
2013

2013 10 23 2013 0.0001 350,877,333
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2013 Mr. Wan Long
2017 28 350,877,333
2017
278 2017 12 31
(c) IPO
2014 21 1PO 2014
2014 1PO 584,795,555
1 6.20
1PO
1PO 1,883
243
6.66
6.20
10
42
2.06
1PO
2016 2016 12 31 2017 12
31
2014

1PO
10 564,449,756 2,648,000 6,628,349 5,540,379 549,633,028 13,160,000 5,086,971 780,481 530,605,576

135,831,297 231,649,894

8.29 2016 6.78
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2017 12 31 1PO 35
2016 47
40
2016 25 30
41
2017 2016
58 57
123 141
84 87
265 285
50
42
2017 2016
144 73
2017 28 33.5
66.5
43
2017 2016
10 12
2016

2017 12 31 2016 12 31
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2019 12
SPV
SPV SPV
SPV SPV
2017 12 31 SPV 632 2016
567 2017 2016 12

SPV
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2014

511

25

10

515

14

1447274

75
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2017 12 31 26
26
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45.

(a

¢

(c
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2017 2016
6 17
12 8
50 31
16 16

2017 2016
6 1
4
3 1
9 7

12 31
2017 2016

10 10
32 30
3 4
298 28
343 72
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OooooOodd
46
2017 2016
5,103 5,082
119 119
+ +
1 1
120 120
341 274
1 1
160
342 435
(222) (315)
4,881 4,767
223
4,881 4,544
1 1
2,921 2,905
61 61
1,196 888
702 689
4,881 4,544
2016 1 2,902 61 842 271 4,077
748 748
13 (330) (330)
47 47
+ 3 @ 2
3 46 418 467
2016 12 31 2017
1 2,905 61 888 689 4,544
502 502
13 (489) (489)
313 313
+ 16 (5) 11
n 16 308 13 337
2017 12 31 1 2,921 61 1,196 702 4,881
47

146/274



EDINETOOOO

O00DOo00oOo0ooo00oOo0ooOO(E30533)

oOoOooodn

2016 2017 2016 2017 2016
Henan Shuanghui Investment &
Development Co., Ltd.
26.75 26.75 183 202 731 673
3 46 49
186 202 777 722
12 31
2017 2016
2,070 2,061
1,477 1,014
(1,138) (889)
(33) (15)
(2,245) (2,046)
131 125
600 548
731 673
12 31
2017 2016
7,489 7,802
(6,821) (7,116)
668 686
485 484
12 24
171 178
668 686
21 56
832 835
(59) 265
(363) (1,015)
410 85
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49

2017 25
50

2017 12 31

2016
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2017 2016

(100) (49)

25 18

(€Y)

(105) (1)
333 (251)

(18) 29
7 (11)
322 (233)
217 (264)

Elit & Vericom 100%

Elit & Vericom

12 31

2018

2017 2016
—33,883,520,411 100 100
Rotary Vortex Limited (2016
33,883,520,411 )
_ 73.25 73.25
3,299,558,284 (2016
3,299,558,284 )
100 100
Smithfield
2013 26
2016 12
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Fet the ywar evded Decemesr 31, 2017

Resishts
hietare

inlegical Biodopicnl

Par vabue FLRT I
sfjistments - adjosimanty Total
USEmillion  USEmiflion  USFmilhen

Revenue -3 379 - 23719 21,534 - 21,534
Corst o smbes {17,768) {285} (18,061} {17 18N (145} (87,327
Gross profit 4,613 (295} 4,318 4,352 [145) 4,207
Distributon snd seling expenses {1,930) = {1,930) (1,7 - (1, 74)
Administrative axpenses (E23) - (B23) (748} - (Tag)

Zaln AEing T :lgfk:l_lll,l_ual

produce ot fair valee less cosks

fr sl at the point of hansest - 305 05 - 180 1E0
Gain (kss) grisng from changes

Iy Fair vals |25 costs 10 548 of

Biodopicsl gesets - 13 12 - (il (1a
Cther nGome & 13 - 113 v - oy
i gaines snd kates 7 1 - T [E] - (401
Cithrer enpenses 8 (326) - {326) [d3) - (4%
Firmnce oosts 9 [1a8) - {18y {183} - (123]
Share of profite of associates ] - & ] - a3
Share of profits of joint venbures 14 - 14 =5 - 25
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 1] 1478 3 130 1678 2 1,703
Taatan 12 {165} k] {182} (462} {3 [HE5]
PROFIT FOR THE YEAR 1,313 B 1,318 1.2k6 Frd 1,233
Cither comprehensse moome

leapense) lof the yost 48
Itamns that wall ot be reclassified

subsequently to pait o Bss:

- remegsurement on defmed

bermhf paron plans {75 [31}
= ramessurement an dalansd
[ assets redsied to Bmounts
recided in sieumilited
OLhes QOO enhg ic)me
{rpee i} 30) -
(103) 31}

W ORQUT LIMETED  AMNLAL REPORT 2017 Y|
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)
For Bt year énded Decemnbar 31, 2017

Remills
brelore

hinlogical  Biological

faiir value Tair vakse
adjuiments.  adjusimenty Tetal
UsEmillion  USEmillion D5 million

e that miay b reckissied
subseruanty for profif or kss:
- e;r.-ha'uge diffetenses #rITing
on transiation of forsign

aparations 333 {251)

—fair value changs in cash fiow
hedgae iy 18
in [233)

Cihar comprehersye income
[eoupan 2} for the year, nel of tax 217 {264}

TOTAL COMPREHENSAE INCOME
FIOR THE YEAR 1,536 a74

Profi Tor the year atnbutsble to

- cwmiers of Hhe Company 1133 1,036
= fod-controding mtelects 186 202
1,319 1,238

Tataf comprehangne income for
T e niiniutabie to

- cwniaes of the Comgany 1,301 27
- non-controffing inbenecls 215 147
1536 a74
EARMIMNES PER SHARE 14
- Basie (LSS cents) 7.78 T8
- DHluted (LISE cerits] 1.76 725
B WH GROOP LIMITID ANNUAL SEPCAT 2007

151/274



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O000000000000n0dnoOonod(e3osss)
Oooooooa

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AL Decamper 33,2007

2007
UES million
MNON-CURRENT ASSETS
Prrogeiaty, plant and equigament 1& 5,037 4529
Pregaid bease payments 1& 187 195
Binlogical aesets 17 181 186
Goodwil 18 1838 1784
Intangithe assels 19 1,742 1,681
Inberesks in associabes A0 155 [
InlettessBs in joand ventures. 21 140 119
Othes recedables 24 a1 A7
foailable-for-sake invesbments 5 7 b
Pledged bank deposils r 5 8
Deelerred b assels 3z 58 28
Cher ron-curment assets 14 124
a5 B.768
CURRENT ASSETS
Biolosical sssets 17 990 933
Inventones 22 1,90% 1678
Trade and bills receivables 23 948 153
Prepayments, deposils and other recerables 2 212 228
Pregaaid bsase payments 16 L] a
Taxation recovesable 115 16
Phedped restricled bank deposits 2 69 &l
Bank baances and cash 27 1371 L1339
5866 4843
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Trade and bills payables 8 1,078 B
Accied expenses and other payables . 1472 1,422
Taxation payable 50 34
Eicuromingzs 31 B0a G55
Bank sverdiafls 31 a2 16
3430 3323
HET CURRENT ASSETS 2,187 1.520
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES 11,750 10,288

W GROUT UINETED  AMNUAL REPOAT 2017 &4
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
A1 December 11, 2617

20017
USE million
MON-CURRENT LIABILITIES
Boniowings £l | 2,297 1867
Oiher payables Kot 189 6z
Obligations under finance leases £l 23 23
Deferred tax labilities 3z 639 887
Deferred revenuse 33 1 8
Pension abiity and other relirement benefits 34 g8 303
3537 3,250
MET ASSETS 8,232 7038
CAPITAL AKD RESERVES
Share cagsital 37 1 1
Reserves 7444 6,315
Edquity attribaable to owniers of the Company 1.445 6,316
Mon-confrollmg interests 777 T2z
TOTAL EQUITY B222 £0E8

The consolidated financial stalements on pages 63 1o 161 were approved and authonised for issue by the Board of
Dwectors on Masch 26, 2008 and ane signed on s behall by:

Mr. Wan Long Mr. Guo Lijun
Direcion Direcior
(9 WH GEOOF LINMITID ANNUAL SERCAT 2057
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Fiot the yrear endad December 33,2007

A sy 1, 2006 | 24502 138 1111 BEh = FR 5,763 o 6,703
Fridd o e yes - - - - - - (Hic' 16 X0 1234
Exthange Allrences sifsng on

Raersdabon of krein operabons - - - (19 - - - (196} [55) [l
Fremesmuementon defined benefl
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity (Continued)
For Bt year énded Decemnbar 31, 2017
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Fiot the year endad DecemBer 33,2007

DPERATING ACTIVITIES
Prrodit before tasation
Adjustments for:
Inkeresl income
Finance oosts
Share of profits of associstes
Share of profits of joint venbures
Dieprecetion of propenty, plant and equipment
(Gain) loss on dispesal of property, plant and equipment
Amontzsation of intangibke assets
Caity o imatuinily of available-lor sale investivents
Redease of prepaid lease payments
Write-down of Inventories
(Gain) loss arsing from changes i fair value less costs 1o sell of
bologacal assets
Impairment koss o property, plant and squipment
Allosances on iade receivabiles
tmpairment loss on other nen-current assets
Share-hased payments
Gain on dispesal of a subsidiary

OPERATING CASH FLOWS BEFORE MOVEMENTS IN WORKING CAPITAL
Creciease {increase) in baokopical assels
{Increase) decrease in inventones
Imcresse in trade, bl and other ecenables
Increase in trade, baéls and other payabdes

CASH FROM OPERATIONS
Taxation pasd
Interest paid

Het cash from oparating activilies

INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchase of groperty, plant and equipment
Purchass ol available-for-=ale investiments
Procesds fiom disposal of available-fo-sale mvesiments
Plecement of pledgediestricted bank deposits
Withdrawal of pledgedirestricted bank deposits
Procecds fiom disposal of property, plant and equapmaoent
Interest received
Cirvidends teceived lrom esocabes
[veidends received Trom joint venlines
Fetund of investrment cost in an associale
et cash outiiow on acqusilion of subsidaries
Aoquisition of equity inferest in associates
et cash outikow on liqubdation of subssdianies
Setlament on contingent consideration in respect of

acquistion of & subsidiany

lwsurance claims on progerty, plant and equipment

Het cash used in investing activities
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UES million

4)
2414

{185)

(164

2093
(438)
{143}

1512
(330}
(339)

540
(84}

{147}
(88)
(103

(58}
14

(T84}
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

20017
USE million
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceads from borrowingss, nit of raesaction costs 418 3024
Repayment of bomowings “an (@028
Dividends paid to non-controlling mterests {179 {3304
Dividends paxd {489) {308)
Acquisiton of add@ional imerests in subsidianes [E1] £33
Proceads from issue of shanes. " 2
Capital contributed Dy non-controlling intesests B -
Mel cash used in linancing activities {581} {1,673)
MET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 137 3
Effiect of foreign exchamnge rate changes 19 (3480
Cazh and cash equivalents al Beginming ol year 1,123 LI2%
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR 1,279 LiZ3

ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Bank balances and cash 1,371 1,135
Bank overdratis (a2} {16}
1.279 1,123

W DRDDF LIMITID ANNUAL BEPCOAT 2017
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Fiot the year ended December 33,2007

Corporate and Group Information

WH Group Limited (the “Company” ) was moonposated and oegistered as an exempbed company wilh Brited hability
in the Cayman lskands under the Companies Law of the Cayman [slnds, Its immediate hokding company is Heroic
Jone Invesiments Limited (“Heroic fone”) which is incorpasated in the British Virgin Istands while ils ulimats
hebding company 5 Rise Grand Group Limited, also incorparated in the British Virgen Istands: The Company's
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Siock Exchange”) on
August &, 2004,

The address of the registered office of the Company and the address of its principal place of business are disclosed
i the section headed “Comporate Information” in the amnual epot,

The Company acts a5 an inveslimest hobding comgany, The cosolidated linancal statements of the Company lor
the year ended December 21, 2017 comprises the Comgany and its entiies (inchading stiuctured entities controlied
by thee Group) {collectively relemmed o s the "Group™) and the Group's interests in associates and mterests in joint
vendures. The Group & primaily involved in production and sales of packaged meals and feesh pork as well as hog
prcduction, The principasl sctivities of the principal subsideaties ane el oull in nobe 50,

The functional currency of the Company s Unsted States Dollar (UIS$7), as the majorily of the Group's revenue is
generaded in US$ which is the cumeney of the primary economic environment in which the Group's major operating
suibsicdianes opeale.

Basis of Preparation

The consolidated fnancial staternents have been prepared in accordance with Intemational Financial Reporting
Sandards (“IFRSs") Bsued by the Infermational Accounting Standards Board (the “IASE™) and the disclosure
requinements of the Hong Kong Companies Crdinance

The consclidated financial statemants have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for biskogical
assels, certaan non-currenl assels and dervative linancial assels and labilities which have been measured a1
fair value. These fmancial statements are presented in LSS and all values are rounded to the nearest million
(“USF million”) excepd when olherwise imdicated.

Basiz of Consolidation

The consolidated Tmancial siatements comprisa the fmancial stalements of the Company and its entities. (inchiding
structured entities controlled by the Group) during the year ended Decemier 31, 2017, Contral is achieved when
the Group & exposed, or has rights, to ariable retuims from its invobemeant with the investes and has the ability 1o
affect these retuims through its power over the investes. Specifically, the Group controls an mvestes i, and ondy i,
the Group has:

(a)  Powes over U investes (e exeling nghts thed give it the current ability (o deect the relevant actvibies of
the investes);

by Exposure, of rights, lo vanable refums lrom s mvolvemeent with the investee; and

(e} Theability bo wse its powes over the investas lo affect its refurns.

W GROUT UINETED  AMNUAL REPOAT 2017 *
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

2.2 Basis of Consolidation (Contined)
Generally, there is a presumplion that a megonly of voling rights resulls in conlrol To support this presumplion
and when e Group has kss (han a majaty of the voling or simalar rights of an investes, the Group considers all
redevant facts and circumslances in assessing whether it has power over an investes, incleding:

{a) The contiactual amangemant(s) with the other vote holders of the invesles;
b}  Rights arising from other confractual anangements: and
{c)  The Group's voling rights and pobential volmg rights.

The Group re-assesses whather or not il conlrols an investes if lacks and crcomslances indicate thal there are
changes 1o one of mare of (i three slemants of control, Consolidation of a subsideary beging when the Groug
obaine controd over the subsidisny and ceases when the Group keses conbrod of the subsidiary. Assels, habilities,
income and axpenses of 8 subsidiary acquired o disposed of during the year are included in the consobdated
Tmancial statements o the date Bve Group gains comtrol until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.

Profit ar loss and each component of other comprehensive income {*0C17) are atrbuted 1o the owness of
the Compary and to the non-contrefling interests, aven if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
defict bhatance. When necessary, adjiestments ane made 1o the lnancial statements of subsidiaries 1o bring thel
accounting polickes nto line with the Group's accounting policies. All intea-group assets and Babilities, equity,
moorme, expenses and cash flows relating 1o transactions bebween menwers of the Group ae eimnated in full on
consolidation.

Changes in the Group's ownership interests inoexisting subsidianes that do not result i the Group bosing controd
over the subsidiaries ase accounied for @5 equaty ansactions. The camying amants of the Gioup’s relevant
components-of equity including reserves and the non-controlling interests are adjsted 1o reflect the changes in
heir relative mlerests @ the subsidianes. Amy difference between the amount by which the non-conlroling interests
ate sdjusted after re-attribution of the pelevant equity component, and the lag valie of the consideration pald o
meceved s recognised diredly in equity and attibuted 1o owners of the Company,

When the Group boses control of a subsidiary, a gain o loss |s recognised In profit or loss and & calculated as the
diffarence betaeen (1) the ageregate ol the lair value of the consideation recerved and the tair value of any relaned
interest and (i the camying amount of the assets (nchuding goodwilll, and labiities o the subsidiary attributable
1o e ownars of the Company, AR amounts previously recognised nother comprehensive income in relation (o that
subsidiany are sccounted (of as 10 the Group had disectly deposed of he retitled assets of Rabalibes of the subsidian
{ie., reclassified to profit o loss or transfermed directly to retained earmings). The fair value of any inveshment
retained in the fomme subsiciary al the date when controd is kel is regarded as the fas value on milial recognition Tos
subsedquent accounting under 1AS 20 Fiuacil fnsfroments: Recoprfion and Measorement of, when appicable,
ke cost on mitial recognition of an invesiment in an associale or a joent venture,

I W DRDDF LIMITID ANNUAL BEPCOAT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
F the year eeded December 31, 2077

Changes in Accounting Policies and Disclosures
Amemdments to IFRSs that are mandalorily effective for the comest year
The Group has appled the following revsed IFRSs for Ihe fiest ime for the current year's financial statemesnts:

Amnendrments to [AS ¥ Drschosere Indative

Amendments o 1AS 12 Riecogmition of Deferred Tax Assols for Linrealead Losses

Amendments ko IFRS 12 inclded [¥scivsure of Imfevests i fher Entities: Clanification of the scope of
i Anrrus Irmprovenrents b IFRSS IFRS 12

2014-2016 Cycle

Mone of the above amendments to IFRSs has had a significant Tinancial elfect on these financal sistements.
Disclosure has been made in nole 36 1o the linancial statements upon the sdoption amendments 1o 1AS 7, which
requined an entity to provide disclosures thal enablde users ol linancial stalements to evaleate changes in iabilties
A froa the financing activities including both changes arlsing fiom cash Hlows and non-cash changes.

Issued Bul Not Yel Effective International Financial Reporting Standards
Thee Group has nol appdied the follwing new and revised IFRSs, that have been issued bul are nol yel effective, in

Oooooooa

these financial statements,

Arnendments to IFRS 2 Classification and Measurermemt of Share-tesed Payment Transactions'
Arrendments to IFRS 4 Appiyig IFRS 8 Fmancial Instrurnents with IFRS 4 Inswance Conlracts®
IFRS 9 Frrarrcial frestrunrants!

Amendments o IFRS 9

Arwendments o IFRS 10and 185 28

Prepaymer Features with MNegatvve Compensationr
Sale or Comtribution of Assels befween arn frvestor and is Associale o
Jot Venbure!

IFRS 15 Revenee from Contracts with Cusfomers!
Armendiments o IFRS 15 Clarifications o lFRS 15 Revertue from Conlracts willht Custonmers®
IFRS 16 Leases’
IFRS 17 Insurance Confracts
Armendments o LAS 19 Plan Ameindment, Cutadment or Seftfarment
Amvendments ko LAS 28 Lowng-termn Intevesis in Associsies and Joid Venfures®
Amendments o LAS 40 Transfers of Irvestment Fropery
IFRIC 22 Foreign Currency Transaschons and Advarce Consideration’
IFRIC 23 Ursceriginty over Income Tax Treatmernts’
Anaeal Impvosemments to (FRS Amendments 1o IFRS 1 and |AS 28!
2MA-2006 Cycle
Aol Impyovements o IFRS Amendments 1o IFRS 3, IFRS 11, 1AS 12 and 185 23
20152017 Cycle

I Erfectvs lot annual perisds beginang on o @M 1 lanusy 2018
¥ Effecive lor annual pernds begineing on oo after | Janusy 2019
’ Effectirs ol annuil perisds Degincng of of 20ar 1 Janusty 2021
Mo randsion ofectve dste determindd bol avallsbia fod aarky sdophon

Further infcrmation about those IFRSs that are exgpected to have an impact 1o the Group upon adoption is described
below. Whitst management has performed an assessment of the estimated mmpacts of these standards, that
assessment s based on the information currently available to the Group. The actual impacts upon adoption eould
b different to those below, depending on additional isasonable and supporiatde information being mede available
b thes Growp @l thee time of applying the standands,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

2.4 Issued But Mot Yel Effective Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
IFRS 9 Financial Instruments
IFRS 9 introduces new requisements: for the classification and messurement of financial assets and financial
habilities, hedge accounting and impairment requirements ko financial assets,

Classification aml measurement

The Group does not exped thal the adoption of IFRS 9 will have a significant impact on the classification and
messurement of its inancial assels. It expects o continue measwing ab (air value all linancal assets cunently held
af fair value. Equity investments cummently hald as available tor sabe will be measured at fair value thiough othes
comprehensiie income as the investments are infended B be held for the foreseeabide (ulere and the Group expects
1o apply the option o present fair value changes in other comprehensive income. Gains and losses recorded in
othar comprehensie income lor the equity investments cannol be recycled to profit o loss when the investments
are derecognised,

Impaiment

IFRS O requires an impairment on debl insteuments recorded at ameetised cost or 3 Tair walue through olhes
comprehensive income, lease réceivables, ban commitments and financeal guswantee contracts that ame not
accounted for al faer walive through profit of kss under IFRS 9, to be reoorded based on an expected credit loss
model elther on a twelve-menth basis or & lifetime basls. The Group will apply the singliied approsch and record
liletime expected losses thal ae estimated based on the present values of all cash shorfalls aver the remainmg
lile of all of its trade receivables, Furthermore, the Groug will apply the general approach-and record twelve-month
expected credit bosses that e estimated boased on the possibde defaull events on its oller receivables within the
nest hwelve months.

In general, the directors of the Company anticipate the applicateon of e expected loss model of IFRS S will result
in carbies proveskon of credil losses which are pol et incurred inrekatson to the Group's financial assels measured at
amortised costs and other #ems that subject o the impairment provisions upon application of IFRS 9 by the Group,

Based on the assessment by the directors of the Company, if the expecied credit bss model were to be applied by
e Group, the accumulated amount of impairment kbeses to be recognised by the Group as at January 1, 2018
wolld be incressed a5 compsared toe e sccumulated amount recognised under 185 39 maink attribastable to e
expected credit provision on frade recesvables. Such furthes impaiment recognised under the expected credit loss
madel would reduce the opening retained earnings and increase the defered tax assels a5 al lanuary 1, 2018,

Hedge accounting

As thee new hedpe accounting regquirements will align more chosely with the Group's risk management policies,
with generafly more qualifying hedging mstruments and hedped items, an assessment of the Group's current
hedging retationships indicates that ey will quakly as conbinuing hedging relationships upon-allocation of IFRS 9.
Hecordingly, the directors of the Company anticipate thal the applcation of the new hedging requirement meay not
have 8 materal impact on the Group's current hedpe designation and hedge accounting

IFRS 15 Revenue krom Contracts with Cuslomers
IFRS 15 was kBsued which eslablishes a singde comprehensie model o énlities to usa in accounting e revenoe

arsing from contracts wilth customess. IFRS 15 will supersede the current revenue recognition guidance inclucking
1A5 18 Revenue, 185 11 Consfrischion Confracts and the related interpretations when it becomes effective.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

24  |ssued But Not Yet Effective International Financial Reponing Standards (Contimed)
IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers ({onlinued)
The core principle of [FRS 15 & [hat an entity should recognise revenue o depict the transfer of promised goods
of SeIvices bo customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the enltity expects 1o be enlitied
i exchange for those goods of services. Specifically, the standard nlroduces 3 5-slep approach 1o revenus
recognition:

. Steg 1- Icdentify the contraci(s) wilh a cirstomer

. Steg 2 [cbentity the performance obligations m the conbieect

. Step 3 Determine the transaction price

. Step 4: Allocate the iransaction price to the performance obligations in the contract
. Shegs 5 Hecopnise revenue when (or a5) the enliy salsfes a perfofmance sbligation

Under IFRS 15, an entily recogmises revenue when (or ash a performance oblgation is satesiied, e when “confrol
of the goods of sendoes underlying the particular perfomance obligation is transferred to the customer. Far
more prescrptive guidance has been added in IFRS 15 bo deal with specific scenarios. Furthermore, extendsiva
dischosures ara required by IFRS 15

In 2016, the IASE issued clarifications to IFRS 15 in refation to the dentification of performance obligations,
peincipal versus agent considerations, a5 well 55 llieensing application guidance.

Based on the business moded of the Group as at December 31, 2017, the directors of the Company anticipate that
the application of IFRS 15 in the fulure mey resull in more disclosures, howeved, e ditecions: of e Company
do not anticipate the applicatson of IFRS 15 will have a material imgact on the tming and amounts of evenue
recognksed.

IFRS 16 Leases

IFRS 16 intreduces a comgrehensive model for the identificabion of lease amangements and accounting treatments
for both lessors and lessees. IFRS 16 will supersede 1AS 17 Leases and the related intespretations when it becomes
affedlive.

IFRS 16 distingushes lease and service contracts on e base of whether an identitied asset 15 conliolled by a
customer. Distinctions of operating leases and linance leases are removed for lessee accounting, and e replhced
by @ el wiliere a right-of-use assel and 8 comesponding abibty have o be recopnised (o all leases by lessess,
exeept for short-leom ksrees and loases of low value assets,

The rght-ol-use asset is infially measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost (subject o certain
aiceplions) less accumulated depreciation and impaiment losses, adjusted for any remeasuremant of the kease
labdity undess the nghl-ol-use assel meels the defindtion ol investment properly i IAS 40 or relates o a class of
paogerty, plant and equigsment 1o which the revaluation madel & applied. The lease kability is initiafly measuned at
the present value of the lease payments that are nol paid at that date. Subsequently, the lease ability s adjusted
for interest and lease payments, as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst ohers. For the classification
of cash flows, the Group cumently presents upfront pregaid kease payments as investing cash flows in relation 1o
leasehold tnds for owned use while other operating lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Lipon
application of IFRS 16, lease payments in ralation to a lease liability will be allocated into a principal and an inferest
portion which will be represented as financing cash flows by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For Eht year énded Decemnbar 31, 2017

2.4 Issued But Mot Yel Effective Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards (Continued)
IFRS 16 Leases (Conteed)
Under 1AS 17, the Group has aveady recognised an aszet and a refated finance lease liabdily for linance lease
arangement and propaid lease paymeants Tor leasehold lands whese the Group is a kesses. Tho application of IFRS
16 may result in pofential changes in classilication of these assets depending on whether the Group presents
Tight-of-use assels separately or within the zame lne item al which the corresponding underlying assels would be
presented il they were owned.

In contrast to lesses accounting, IFRS 16 substantially carries foreard the lessor accounting requirgmients in
1AS 17, and continues to require o kessol (o classily a kease cither a5 an operating lesse o a finance lease.

Furthermore, exdensive disclosures are requared by IFRS 16,

fs at December 31, 2017, the Group has non-canceflable operating lease commitments of LIS$265 milllon: as
disclosed - note 41, A preliminary assessmant indicales. that these arrangemeants will mect the definition of a lease
under IFRS 16, Upon the appbeation of IFRS 16, (he Groap will recogniss 8 mght-ol-use sssel and & cormesponding
liability in respect of all these leases unless they qualify lor bow value or shorl-term beases. In addition, the
apphcation of new requirerents may resull changes in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. However, it & not practicable to provide a reascnable estinate of the linancial effect until the directors
coumplehe a detasled eviow.

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Business combinations and goodwill
Acquisitions of businesses are acoounted for usang the acquisition method, The consideration fransiesred in
business combination i measured at fain wlee, which is cakubBbed a5 the sum of the acquisition-date fair valees
of the assets fransberred by Bwe Group, labilittes incured by e Group 10 (he lormes owners of the acquiree and
e equity inferests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the acquites. Acquisition-refated costs ate
recognised in profil of ks as incurred.

Al the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquined and the abilities assamed are recognised at their (@i alue,
eecapl that:

. deferred tax assels o liabilities, and assels o liabilities relatled to employee benefil anangements are
recognised and measured In accordance with [AS 12 Income Taxes and 1AS 19 Employee Bemelils
nespectively;

. liabilities o1 equity instuments related to share-based payment arrangements of the acquitee of shase
based payrnent anangements of the Group entered into 1o replace share-based payment amangements ol
the acquines are messwed in aceordance with IFRS 2 Shave-based Paymmend al the acquisiion date (see
accounting policy bekee); and

. assels {or dispesal groups) that are classilied as hedd lor sale in accordance with IFRS 5 Noa-crerent Asseis
Hild for Sale and Dsconlinued Operalons are measuted in accordance with that standard

Fei W DRDDF LIMITID ANNUAL BEPCOAT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
F the year eeded December 31, 2077

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill is measured & the excess of the sum of the consideration ransfemed, e amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquires, and the Eir vlue of the acquirer’s predessly held oquity interest in the acquiree {if any)
over the ped amount of the dentifiable assels acquired and the labibtkes assumed as at acquisifion date. If, aller
re-assessment, the nel amount of the identifiabde assels acquired and liabiliies assumed exceeds the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlfing interests in the acquires and the fair value of the
acquirer’s previousty hedd interest in the acquiree (If any), the excess is recognised immedsatedy in prolil o loss as a
bargain purchase gain,

Mon-controling interests that are present ownership iterests and entithe their holders 1o a proporticnate shane of
the relevant subsidiany's not assels m the evend of liquidation ane indelly measwed either at Gair value or at e non-
conliclling mMerests’ proporticsate share of the rempnsed amounts of the acquires’s identifiable net assets. The
chaice of measuremant basis & made on a ransaction-by-transaction basis.

Goodwill arseng on an soquisition o a busieess & carmed at cost &5 establebwed at the date of scquistion of the
barsiness {sea the accounting policy above} less anvy accumulaled impaiment losses, i any,

For the purpeses of impairment testing. goodwill & allocated to each of the Group's cash-generating units {“CGLS™)
{or groups of CGUs), that is expected to benetit from fhe symergies of the combination, which represent the kevest
level at which the gocdwill s monitored for imernal management purposes and not larger than an operating
soegmwenl.

A CGU (o group of GGEUS) 1o which goodwill has been allocated s fested for Impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be impaired. For gocdwill arising on an acguisition in a
repeting petiod, the CGL {or group of CGLISY to which goodwill has Been allocated is bested Tor ampainment belore
the end of that reporting period. If the tecoverable amount i less than its canying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated livst ko reduce the carmang amount o any goodwill and then to the olles assets on 8 proaata basis based
o e carmying amount of each asset i the unit (or growp of CGLE),

O disposal of the relewant CGU, the sttributable smount of geodwill is included in the determination o the amount
of profit o boss on disposal
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Fair valug measurement

Fair wvalue |s the price that woukd Be recetved o sell an assel of paid 1o transber a Rabdlity in an ordetly ransaction
bebween meekel participants &l the measurement date, regardbess of whelher that price &5 directly observable o
estimaled using another waluation technique. In estimating the fair value of an asset o a liability, the Group takes
inte acoount the chamacternistics of the assel o liability it markel participants would lake those charactenstics. into
acoount when pricing the asset o liability 8t the measurement date. Fair value for measurement andion disclosure
purposes in these consolidaled financial statements is debermimed on such a basis, excepl lor share-based
payments transactions that are within the scope of [FRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing transactions that are
within the scope of 1AS 17 Leases, and measurements that have some simikanlies ko fain value but are not fair walue,
such as et realisable valse in IAS 2 frverddones of value & ese in IAS 36 Ieyagirment of Assels.

A lair value messurement of & non-financial assel takes into account a markel participant’s ability to penerate
cconomic benefits by using the assel in it highest and best use or by seling it o another merket panicipant that
would use the assel in ils highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation technigues thal are appropriate i the circumstances and for which sufficient data
are available 1o measure fair value, maximising the use of relevanl observable inputs and minimising the wse ol
unobserable inpuds.

Al zssets and Rabilites for which fair value is measured or disclesed in the linancial statements ane
categorsed within the tair value hicraschy, described as follows, based on the kewest level inpul that is significant to
e Tal walue measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —  based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets o identical assets or lisbilities;

Level 2 —  based on valuation techniques {or which the lowesl level input that is significant to the Eir value
measuement 35 obsenable, ether directly o indirectly: and

Level 3 = based on valuation technigues Tor which the owest level input that i significant to the G vahee
msesueanent i unobseratds,

Fod assets and lEabdities thal are recognised in the linancal statements on a recuming basis, the Group deternmines
whether transiors have ocouned between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing calegoisation (basad on the lowest
feved ingait thal i significant o the fad valie measurement &5 @ whole) al the end of each repoiling period,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cantinusd)

Interests in associstes and joint ventures

An associale is an enbity over which the Group has significant inflsence, Significant influence = e poser 1o
participale in the linancial and opealing policy decksions o the invesien bul &= not control o joint confrol over those
policies,

A joint venture is a joint armngement whoereby the parties: thal have joint control of the amangement have rights
to the net assels of the joinl arrangement. Joinl control is the coniactually agreed sharing ol control of an
arrangerment, which exdsts only when decisions about the relevant activities require the unanimots consent of the
perrties shating controd,

The resulls and assets and lebilitics of associstes and poinl sentures are incoposded in the consolidated linancial
staterments using the equity method of accosnting. The: nancal statements of associates or joint venlwes used lor
equily method accounting purposes ae prepared using unifonm acoounting policies as fhose of the Group lor ke
transactions and evwents. in similar circumstances, Undes the edquity methad, an mvestment in an associate on a goint
vendure i infially recognised in the consolidated statement of financal posilion 3t cost and sdjusted. thereatter 1o
recognise the Group's share of the profit o loss and olher comprehensive income of the associate or jont venlune.
When the Gioup's share of keses of an associate of jeinl veniure exceeds the Group's inderest in thatl associate or
joint venture fwhich ncludes any lorg-teim interests that, in substance, form pail of the Group's net mvestment in
the associale of point wenture), the Group discontinues recognising its share of further kosses, Addiional losses ane
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred legal of constnective obligations or made payments on
behall of that associde or joint venlure.

An vestment in an associle of @ peinl venlure B acoounted for wsing the equity method from the date on which
ther imvesben becomes an associate o a joint venfure. On acquisition of the investment in an associale of & joint
verduie, any excess of e cost of the mvestiment over the Group™s share of By ne fale valee of e identifiabie
assets and Eabdlites of the investos is recognised as goodwill, which & included within the camying amount of the
investment.

Ay excess of the Group's shase of the net fair vahee of the idenlifiable assets and liabilites and contingent iabiities
aver the cost of aoquisition, affer resssessment, is reoognised immeditely in profit or loss in the pericd i which the
investment (s acquired

The requirements of 1AS 359 are apptied (o determing whether il B necessary to recognise any imgaiment koss with
respect {o tha Group's imvestiment in an associate o joint venture. When necessary, the entire canying amoant of
the investrment (ncluding goodwill) is tested Tos impainment in acoordance wilh 1AS 36 Serpament of Assels a5 a
singhe asset by comparing ils recoverable amount (higher of value in use and lair walue less costs of disposal) with
its carrying amount. Any Empairment kss recognised forms part of e canmying amount of the investment. Any
reversal of thal inpabmment lees s recognised in accordance with [AS 26 b the exdent el the recoverable amount
of the mvestiment subsequently increases.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Interests in associates and joint ventures (Commucd)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over an associate of joint contied over a joint venlure, it s
acoounted for as a disposal of the entine inlerest in the investes with a resulling gain or loss being recognised in
prolf o less. The difference between the canmping amount of the associale of point venture and ihe fai vakee of any
retained inlerest and any proceeds from disposing: the relevant mlerest in the associale of pint venture is included
in the determimation of the gain o loss on disposal of the assoc@abe or joinl venture. In addition, the Gioup acoounts
1o all amounts previously recognised In ether comprehensive income in relation to thal assocate of ol venlure
o the: same basis as would be required if that associate or foint venture had directly disposed of the related sssets
of Ebiities, Therefore, § a gain or loss presiously recognised in other comgrehensive income by that associbe
of joint venture woukd be reclassified 1o profit of ks on the disposal of the related assets o liabilities, the Group
reclassilies the gain o loss from equily o profil or loss (85 a reclassilication adjustment) when the equity mothod i=
disconinued.

When a group enlity transacts with an assocabe o joind venture of the Groop, profits and kosses nesulling from the
trareactions with the associate o joal venlure ae recognised n the oonsclidated Ninancial staterments anly to e
exlent of interests in the associate thal ate nol related to the Group.,

Revenue recognilion

Revenue is measued @l the far value of the considention received of receivable. Revenue is reduced for discounts
and sales related taxes,

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be relmbly measured; when it is probable that lulune
exonormic benefits will flow fo the Group and when specilic criteria have Been met for each of the Group's activities,
a6 described below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is tecognised when the goods are delivered and bitkes have passed,

Sefvice Income 15 recognised when senice are provided,

Dividend imcomse from investments is recognised when the shareholiers” tights (o receive payrment have been
esiabhshed

Inferest income is accrued on a e basis, by relerence 1o he principal cutstanding and at the effective nterest
rale applicable, which i the mate that eactly discounts estimated fulure cash receipts through the expected life of
he financial assel to thal asset’s net canying ssount on matal recognition,

The: Group's accounting policy bor operating leases & described in the accouming policy bebow
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cantinusd)

Leases

Leases are classified as linance leases whenever the terms of the lease transfer substantally all the rsks and
rewards of ownership 1o the lesses. Al other beases are classilied a5 opamling leases,

The Gromp as lessor

Rental income from opeating leases i recognised i prolil o bess on 8 stradgght-line basis over the term o the
relevant kease. Initial direct costs Incurred In negotiating and arranging an operating kease are added to Ihe carying
amdant of the kexsed assel and recognised over the lease term on the same basks as rental income. Contingent
fents aae recognised a5 revenise in e penod in which they are samed.

The Group as lessee

Assets hokd under finance lesses are recopnised as assels of the Group at ther fail value at the inception of the
lease o, il bowed, at the present value of the minimem lease payments. The corresponding liability o the lessor is
inchusded in the consolidated statement of financial position as a flinance lease obligation.

Lese payments are apportioned between finance expensas and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve
a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the Babiity. Finance charges are secognised mimedsately
i profit o biss as finance costs, unless they are directly atributable to qualitying assets, in which case they are
capitalmsed n scoordance with the Group's general policy on borowing costs (see the acoounling policy belos ).

Operaling lease payments age recogmised as an operaling expense on a shraght-lme basis over the kase lesm,
excepl whirne another syslemalic bask s moe representative of the time paltem in which economic benefils (rom
the leased assel e consumed.

Property, plant and equipneent

Property, plant and equipmen! includng busldings: held for use i the production of supply of goods of services,
of for administrative purposes other than properties under constiuction as described below are stated in the
consolidated statement of linancial position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent
accumalated impaimment losses, if any.

Freehold land is not depreciated,

[epreciation s recognised 5o a5 to wiite olf the cost of tems of property, pant and equipment other than frechold
land and properties under construction kess their residual values over their estimated useful lives, using the siaight-
farwe amiethved, Thee estinmbed uselul bves, ressdusl values and depreceation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting perod, with the effect of any changes in estimate acoounted for on the following basis:

Buildings Lt A0 yems
Motor vehicles 3o 10 yems
Plants, machinery and squipment 5o 25 yeus
Wi GROUT UIWETED  ANNLEAL REPORT 2017 Hl

168/274



EDINETOOOO
O0OO00O000000000000n0dnoOonod(e3osss)
Oooooooa

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Propesty, plant and equipment (Continued)
Comstruction in progress for produclion, supply or adminstiative puiposes are camked at cost, less any recopnised
impairment foss, Cosls mclude prolessional lees and, for qualifying assels, borowing costs capitafised in
accordance with the Group's accounting policy. Such properties are classilied to the approplate categories of
propey, plant and equipment when comgdeted and ready for intended wse, Depreciation of these assels, on the
=ame basis as obher progesty assels, commences when the assets ame ready for thair intenvded use

Aszed held under finance keases are depreciated over their expected useful ives on the same basis as owned assets,
However, when there is no reasonable certaanty that ownership will be oblained by e end of the lease lem, assets
are depreciated gver the shorer of the lease ferm and their useful fives,

Ay itern of property, plant and equipment & derecognised upon deposal o when no fulure economic benedits ane
expected o arise from the continued use of the assel Sny gain o loss ansing on the derecognition of an item of
property, plant and equipment determined a5 the diffesence between the sales proceeds and the canmying amount
of the assel i recognised in profil of loss.

Berrowing cosis

Bofrowing costs directly attributable to the scquisiion, construction or production of qualfying assels, which are
assets thal necessanily take a subslantial period of time to get ready Tor their intended use o sake, are added 1o (he
sl of those assets until such lime as the assets-are substantisily ready for their intended ose or sake,

All other bosreawing cosls ane recognised i profit or loss in the penod in which they are incunmed,

Biological assels

Biolegical assets represent live hogs and poullry, which kil inds Give categories: suckimg logs, nueseny hogs, linishes
hogs, troder and beeeding stock (hogs and poultry) are measured on initial recognition and ad each end of the
reponting period al their lair value less costs tosell A gain o koss arsing on mitial recognetion of biclogical assed at
falr valie kess oosts to sell and from a change in fasr value kess costs 1o sell of a bological asset ks included in profit
o boss for the perod in which @ anises.

The agrecubiural produce (e, carcass) harvested from the biological assets are messured at thesr fair value less
costs to sell ab the point of harvest. Such measurement is the cost ot that date when applying |AS 2 Inveniones

upn initial recogndion. A gain of loss arsing fron agricullucsl produce & e point of arvest af Taic value less costs
1o sell ks inchodiod i profit o loss for the period in which it arises.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Summary of Significant Accounling Policies (Cantinusd)

Intangible assels

Intangible assets acquired in a buginess combination

Inmangible assets acquired in a business combination and recognised separately rom goodwill are inilially
recognised at thedr fale value at the acquisiion date {which is regarded as thesr costh.

Subsequent to ndlal recognition, intangible assels acquived in a business combination with finite useful lives are
repotted al cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumukated impairment ksses, on the same basis as
intangibde asset that are acquired separately. Allematively, intangible assels acouwired in a business combination
wilhy invdislanibe: useful lives ane camicd ol cost less accumulated impairment losses (sec the acocounting policy in
respect of impairment fosses on tangitde and inlangible assels below),

Intangible assets acquired separalely
Inlangible assels with finite usebul lives that are acquired separately are camed at cost less accumulated
amorisation and any accumulated impairment losses Amortisation for intangible assets with flinite usefull fives
i recopnsed on a shaght-ine sk over thelr estimated uselul lves. The estimated uselol e and amorsation
method are reviewed al the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any changes i estimate being
accounted for on a prospeciive basis.

Internally-generated intangible assets = Research and development expenditune
Experrditure on research activites k& recopnised & an expensa in the pesied inwhich it is incurred,

An intemalty-generated intangible asset ansing from development activities (or from the development phase of an
intermal project) & recognised i, and only if, all of the following have been demonsirated:

. the techiieal Teasibility of compbeling the intangidde assel so that i will be available lor use of sake;
. s indention bo comglele ancd its abilily and mlenlion o use of sell he assel;
. Tk the intangibke asset will generate probable fubure economis bonelits:

. the avallability of adequate technical, financial and other resowrces to complete the development and to use.
o seil the nlangible assel; and

. thiz ability 1o measure reliably the expenditure atibutable to the mangible asset during its developrment

The amount initady recognised for intemally-generaled intangible assels is the sum of the expenditure inomred
from the dabe when the intangible assel first meets the recogniion criteria listed above. Whese no internalky-
penerabed intamnble sssel can be recopnied, developrment expendilure & recognised in prolit of less i the: period
inwivich it is incurred,

Derecognition of intangible assets

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, o when no future economic benefits ane expected from use of
dispesal, Gaing and losses ansing from derecognition of an mtangible assel, measwred a5 the diference befween
the net disposal proceeds and the carying amount of the asset, are recognised in profit or foss when the assel is
derecognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Inventories
Invemiories are stated at the lower of cost of the deened cost for agricultule produce harvested from biological assets
and nel realsable value. Cost s caltulated wsing the weighled-average method.

Impairment on tangible and mtangible assets other than goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect ol
goodwill above)

Al the end of each reporting period, the Group reviews the canying amounts of its tangible and intangdle assets
with finite useful lives fo determing whether there is any indication thal those assets have suffered an impairment
Yoss, 11 any such mndication exists, the recovermbhe amount of e assel s estimated in order to determme the extent
of the impairment loss, ifamy, When it is nod possible to estimate the ecoveratile amount of an individusl asset, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the CGU towhich the assel belongs. When a reasonable and consistent
basis of alkoecation can be identiied, corporate assels are also allocated 1o individual CGLIS, or olherwre ey ane
allocated to the smallest group of CGLES for which a regsonable and consistent allocation basis can be identilied.

Intangible ssels wilh inchelinie wselul bves and ntangible sssels ol vel svailable for use are tested for impairment
al least anmually, and whenever there is an indication that they may be impaired,

Recoemble amount is the higher of 1air value less costs of disposal and valee in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash fhows are discounied Lo their present value using a pre-tax discount rade that rellects carrent
market assessments of the lime valse of money and the risks specific to the assed for which the estimates of future
cash llows have not been adjusied,

I fhee recoverable amount of an assel (of a CGLY B estimated to be less than ifs canrying amount, the carmying
amaount of the assel (or & CGLY ks reduced bo s recoverable amount. In allecating the impairment foss, the
impaiment loss is allocated Niest to reduce the canying amount of sy goodwill (f apphicable) and then to ke
other assels on A po-ata basks based on the canying amount of each asset in the unil. The canying amount of
an assel is nol reduced bedow the highest of its fair vatuee less oosts of disposal (il measurabile), its value in wse (0
deferminabla) and rero. The armcdnt of the mpalment loss that would othenwise have been allocated to the assel ks
ablocated prorata to the other assets of the unit An impairment loss s recognised immedately in profit o loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carying amount of the asset {or CGU) 15 increased fo the
revised estimate of its recoverable amound, bul so thal the increased campng amount does nol exceed the carmying
amoun! that would have been defermined had no impaiment less been recognised bor the assel (o a CGELY o pric
years. A reversal of an impaiment boss is recognised immediately in profil o loss.

Financial instruments
Financial assets and Tnancial lisbillies are recognised when a group entity becomes a party b the contraciual
provisions of the mstumend,

Financial assets and financial liabdities are inflidly messured al i valee. Tramsaction cosls thal are dingctly
affributable te the acquisition or kssee of financial assets and financal kabilidies (other than financial assets o
Imancial Kabidlities al fair value through profd o kss) are added o of deducted from the lair value of the linancia
assets of linancial Habilties, & appropriate, on mital recognition, Transaction costs directly aftributable to the
acruisition of nancial assets or fimancial liabililies at faic vales theough poofit or boss are recognised mmediately in
profi o logs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial matruments (Continued)

Financial assats

Financil assels e classilied info available-for-sale financal assels and loans and receihables. The classification
depends on the mature and purpese of the fmanceal assets and s dedermined at the time of iniial recognition. Al
repular way purchases of sakes of financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a iede dale basis. Regular
way prchases of sales are panrchases or sakes of financial assels that require delivery of assels within the e
Irame establisived by reguiation or convention in the marketplace.

Effective imtenes! method

The effective interest meathod is a method of calculating the amortsad cost of 8 debt instrument and of allocating
mlerest mcome over the reporting penod. The effedies inferest rate is the ale that exaclly discounts eslimealed
future cash recespts (ncluding all fees and points paid o recersed that form an integral part of the effeclive intenest
rate, transaction costs and othar premiums of discounts) through the sogpeected Me of the delbt instrument, or, where
approgaiate, a shoer pericd 1o the nel cmyang amoant on initisl reoognition.

Avaiable-for-sake {“AFST) fnancial assels

AFS financial assets are non-deshatives that are either designated as available-lor-sale o are not classiled as (@)
loans. and receivables, (b held-to-matity ivestments o (o) financial assels at fair value theough profit o loss, The
Goroagp's unlisted equity securities e classiied as AFS financial assets,

Equity and debl secunies held by the Group that sre dassilied as avaibible-lor-sale financil assets and are Uaded
in an active market are measured at fair value 8t the end of each reporting perod. Changes in the caerying amount
of AFS monetary financial assets relating to interest mcome calculated using the effective interest methad are
recognised in profit on loss. Dinddends on AFS equity investments: ane recognised i profit or loss when the Group's
tight 1o receive e dividends s establishad

AFS equity investinents thal do not have a quoted matkel price in an aclive maskel and whose Eair valie cania
b reliably measued and derivatives that are linked to and must be settled by delivery of such undguoted equity
irvvestmients ane measued ab cost less any identified mmparment Iosses af the end of sach reporting period (ses the
accounding policy n respect of impainment of financial assels bolow),

Loans and recevalies
Loans and receivables e non-derkative inancial assels with lwed of delerminatde payments thal ae nol quctsd
i an active markel. Subsequent 1o initial recognition, loans and receivables (incheding trade, bills and other
recervables, pledpadiresticied bank deposits and bank balances and cash) are measured at amortised eost using
the: effective interest method, less any identified impaimment (see the accounting policy in respect of mpairment of
financial assets bikow),

Amortised cost s calculated by taking info account any. discount of premitm on acouisition and fees of costs that
are an inbegral part of s effective interest ate, The effective inberest rate amodisation is ncheded in profit or koss.

The losses. arsing from impatrment are recognised In profit o boss in finance costs for leans and In cost of sales or
other gains and losses for ieceiables.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Imipairmer of fnancial assels
Financial assefs are assessed lor indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting pencd, Financial assels are
consibered (o be impaied where thers is objective evidence that, a5 a resull of one or more events thal occuimed
after the initial recogniticn of the financial assel, the estimated Tuture cash fiows of the financial assets have been
affected,

For AFS equity investments, a signilicant or prolonged decline in e Tair value of the security below 35 cost is
considered 1o be objective evidence of impainment.

Fou all other financiad assels, objective evidenos of impairment could indude:

- significant financial dilficulty of the issuer of counterparty; of

. breach of contracts, such as defaull o delmquency in interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the Borrower will enter bankrugicy of financial re-organisation; of
. the: disappemance of an aclive markel fof that financial asset because of tinancial dificultes,

Obvjective evidence of imgairment lor a portiolie of recenvabies could include the Group's past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in e number of delayed payments in the portfolie past the aveage credil penod
of 30 days, &= well 85 obsenvable changes in natienal or local economic conditions that comelate with defaull on
receiabies

For financial assets carried at amorfised cost, the amount of the Impaiiment loss recognised is the difference
between the asset’s caryng amount and the present value of the estimated fulure cash lows dscounted at the
fimancial ssset’s origingl effective interest rate.

Feu financial assels carmied at cost, the amount of the impairment loss 15 measured as the dilference between (he
ansild's carnying amount and the present value of the estimated Tulure cash Nows discounted at the current market
rate of retunn tor a simkw linancial asset, such impaiment loss will not be reversed in subsecquent peniods.

The carrying amount of the linancal assel s reduced by the impaisment boss directly for all Tinancial assels with
e exceplion of trade recevables, where the camying amount i reduced through the use of an allowancoe account.
When a ade receivable i considered uncollectible, il is written off against the allowance account. Subsequent
recoveres of amounts presviously written off are credited agains! 1o the allowance acoount. Changes in the carrying
amount of e allowance account are recognised in grofit o loss.,

When an awailabie-lor-sake financial asset 5 considered 1o be impaied, cumulalive gains of l0sses presorsly
recognised in olhes comprehensive income are reclassilied to profit of loss in the perfod in which the impaimment
takies plice

For financial assets measured al amoatised cost, if, in a subsequent pericd, the amount of impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be relaled objectively o an event ocourting aller the impairment losses was
recognised, the previcasly tecognised impaimment koss is reversed theough prodit or loss to the extent thal the
camying amount of the assel at the date the impairment is reversed does not cxcoed whal the amorised oost would
have been had the impaimment not been recognised
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Financial mstruments {Continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt-and equity mstements ssued by a group entity are classified as ether financial abilties of as equity in
accordance with the substance of the conliachue arangements and the delinibons of a financial kabulity and an
eauity instrosment.

Equaty imstrurments

Ay equety ivstiument s sy contract thal evidences a reskdual inferest in the assels of an enlity affer dedocting all
ol its labilies. Equity instiements issued by the Company are recorded al the proceeds. received, nel of dirsct issue
Cesds.

Firearncial hebilities at amortsed cost
Financial lmbilikes, including borrowings, bank sverdialts, iade, bills and other payables, are subsequently
measured al amorlised cost, using e eflective nteiest method,

Effacie intenes! rethod

The effective inferes! method is a method of calculating the amonised cost of a finencial lability and of allocating
interest expense during the veas. The effective inferest rate is the rate that exacily discounts estimated future cash
perpieends. (inchading all fees and points pesd o receved that form an integral part of the effective intenst rate,
transaction oosts and other premiums o discounts) through the expected life of the financial labilty, o, where
appeopaete, & shoites pedod 1o the pel camying amount o imital recagnibien, Interedd expense & iecognised on n
eifective interest Lesis.

Derivative lirancial instruments

Derivatives are imtadly recognised at fair value at the date when denvative contracts ane entered mlo and ane
subsequently remeasured to thelr falr value at the end of the reporting pesiod. The resulting gakn o loss §s
ecogmised in prodil of less immedetely unless the dersative i desipnated and elfective s o hedging instrument, in
wihich evant the timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the nature of the hedge elationship.

Helpe accounting
The Group deskignates centain derivatives as hedging instruments fof tair value hedges and cash lkw hedges,

A e inception of a hedging relationship, the Group docements. the relationship betveen the hedging instrument
and the hedged ftem, along with its sk management objectives and its strategy for underaking various hedge
transactions. Furthesmare, 4t the moeeplion of the hedge and on an ongoing basss, the Group documents whether
the hedging instrument & highly eflective in offsetling changes in fair valuees or cash Tlows of the hedged tem
attributaie to the hedge rak

Fair value hedges

Changes in the fair wilue of derisatives that are designated and qualify as fair value hedges ane recognised in profi
of loss immediately, togother with any changes in the fair value of the hedged assat or liability that are atfributable
to the hedged risk. The change in the fair walue of e hedging instement and the change in fhe hedged item
atinbutable to the hedged risk are recognised i profit of koss in the line item refating to the hedged item

Hedge accouming is discontmaeed when the Group revokes the hedging redationship, when the hedging instrument
expires of 5 sold, terminated, of exercised, or when it no longer qualdies for hedge accounting. The fair value

adiustment to the carrying amount of the hedged e ansing from e hedped sk is iecopnesed in profil o loss
froen that date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derivative financial instruments (Continued )
Casit flow hodges
The effective portion of changes in the fair value of desivatives that are designated and qualily as cash Tlow hedges
are tecognised i olher comprehénsive income and accumulated in other reserva. The gain or bss relting o the
ineffective portion is recognised immediately B prodit o loss and is included in the “other gains and losses’ ne
e

Amounts previcusly recognised in other comprehensive income and accumulated o equity (ol reseve) ane
reclassiied to grofil o loss in the periods when the hedged item affects profit o liss, in the same line of the
consolidabed statemant of profit or kess and other comprehensive income as the recognised hedped item

Hedge accounting is discontinued when the Group revokes the hedging relaionship, when the hedging instrument
expires of i5 sobd, terminated, or exercised, or when 1 no longes qualifies for hedge acoounting. Any gain o loss
reconised in ather comprehensive meome and acoumulaled i egquily @1 thal lime remains i equily v =
recognised when the forecast transaction s ullimately recognised i profit or loss. When a lorecast bansaction §s o
bonger expecied fooccur, the gain of kss accumulated in equity 5 recognsed mmediately in poofil of ks

Derecognition

The Group derecogises a financial assel only when the contractual rights 1o the cash flows from the asset expilte, of
whan it ranslers the mancial assol and substantiafly all the resks and rewands of canarship of the assel to anoliwes
entity. On derecognition of a financial gssel in ks entirety, the difference befween the assel's canying amound and
he sum ol the consideration received and receivalile & recopnised in profl of Kiss.

The Group derecognises. Tnanceal labibties when, and only when, the Group's obligations ane dischaped, cancelled
of expire; The difference between the canying amount of the fmancial Rabdity derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable | recognised in profit o loss.

Provisions

Prowisions are recognised when th Gioup has a present obligation (legal o constiucting as & result of @ peast event,
it-is probabile that the Group will be required to settle that obiligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the cbligation. The amod recognised as a provision is the best estimate of the consideration required
to seftie the gresent obligation at the end of the regorting period, taking into account the fsks and uncertanties
sunrcunding the obligation. When a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated o setile the present
oblpzation, il comrying ameunt & the present value of Biose cash Nows fwbiere the ellect of the tme vlue of maney 5
maternial).

When some o all of the economic benwdits required 10 seltle @ provision ane expectid o be recovered from a third
party, & receivable B recognised as an assel if it & vinually certain that reimbursement will be received and the
amount of e rectivable can Be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Cantinusd)

Share-based payments arrangements

Awarded sharew/share options granted lo employess

For grants of sharesishare oplions that are conditional upon satisfying specified vesling conddions, the fair value of
services receved s determined by relerence to the fair value of shares/share opbons granted af the date of grani
and is expersed on a staighl line basis over the vesting peniod, with a comesponding increase in equity (other
reserve). For grants of shares/share options that vest immediately at the date of grant, the air value of the avarded
shates s recognised immedistely in profit ce loss.

Al the end of the reparting pencd, the Group revises its estimates of the numiber of share options that ae expected
to ultimately vest, The imgact of the revision of the ariginal estimates, i any, s recognised in profit or loss such that
the cumasbiive expemse rellects the revised estimate, wilh a corespondang adjustment 1o othes resore.

When share optices are ccercised, the amound previously recognised in other reserve will be transferned fo share
prednium. When tha share options are forfeited after the vesting date o are shill not exescised at the expiry dabe, the
amaunt preasesly recopmised i ofber resesve will Be ansferred o retained profits.

Taxation
Incoame tax expense repaesents the sam of the tas currently payvable and delered b

The tax cumrently payabbe is based on taxabbe proft for the year, Taomble profit diffess (rom ‘profit before tasation’
as reparted in prold or boss because of income o expensea that are oabde o deduchble in other years and lems
that are never baable or deductible. The Group's lability for cunent b & calculsted using tax mbes that have been
enacied of substantively enscled by the end of the repoiing period

Deteried tax s recogmsed on temporary dilferences between the canying amounts of assets and Eabiliies in
the consoledated financal statements and the comresponding tax base wsed in the compulation of taxable profit
Deterred b lmbilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assels are
generally recognised for all deduchble lemporary differences that can be ulifsed. Such deferred fax assets and
labaities are not iecognised if the termporary diference anses froa the indtial recognition (other han in a besiness
combination) of clher assets amd labilities in-a ransaction that aflects naeither the taxable profit mor the accounting
prcdit.

Dreferred tax habilties are recognised Tor bk lempoiay differences associated with investments in subsksaries,
associles and joint venlure, except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the temposary diffesence and
it is paolsble that the lempoany difference will ol reverse n the foreseeabbe uluie. Deferred lax assels aosing
from deductible temiporary differences associated with such investments and interests are only recognised o
thee exbent that i s peobable that there will be sullicient taable profils against which 1o uliise the benelits o the
tempoary difesences and they are expecled 1o reverse in the foreseeable fulune,

The camying amount of delermed tx assels is raviowed at the end of cach reporting peried and reduced to the
extent that it Is no longer probable that sulficlent taxable profits will be avaitable to allow all or part of the asset o

b pecoveted. Unrecognised defemed b asséls ame ro-assessod al each reporting date and are recognised 1o the
extent tiat it has become probable Dt futne taalbe prolits will allow the deteried tax assel to be recovercd.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

3. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)
Taxation (Contmued)
Defemred tax assets and labdities ae measured at the 1ax rates. that ane expected (o apply in e period in which the
hability i settled of the asset is realsed, based on ax iate (and e Ews) hal have boen enacted or substantively
enacted by the end ol the reporting pericd.

The measurement of deferred lax labilities and assels reflects the b consequences that would follow Trom the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the repoerting peskod, bo recover of setile the carrying amaunt of
its assats and Habilities,

Current or defemed tax are recogmised in profit or loss, except when it relstes 1o items. that are recognised in other
compehensie moome or directly in equaty, in which case, the current and delerred tax i1s also recognised in olbwer
comprehensive income of dinectly in equily respectively,

Foreign currencies

In prepanng the tinancial staements of each indiidual group enlity, rancactions in curtencies ofher than e
Tunctional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are recorded al the rales ol exchanges prevailing on the
dates ol the iransactions, AL the end ol the reporting period, monetary fems denominated in foreign currencies ane
refranslated af the mtes prevailing at that date. Mon-monetary bemns that are measured i lerms of histonical cost in
a foregn currency ane nol rebanskied,

Exchange dilerences ansmg on the settlement of monetary ftens, and on the retranslation ol monetay #ens ae
recognised in prolfl of koss in the period inwhich they anise.

Fou the purposes of presenting these consolidated fimancal statements, the loreign cumencies denomimated assels
and liabilties of the Grougs are ranstated inlo the peesentation cutrency of the Groap (LIS3) wsing exchange rates
prevalling al the end of each reporting period, Income and cxpervses items are transkbed at the average exchange
rates for the year. Exchange diflerences anising, il any, are recogmised in other comprehensive income and
accumilated in equity in the translation resene (attribubed to non-controlling inteérest &5 appropiiate),

On hie disposal of & foreign operation, all of the echange differences accumulabed in equity in respect of that
opesation atimbutable to the owners of the Company are reclassdied to profit o loss.

Government granis
Governmend granis ame recognised whare these is reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
condiions attaching b them and that the grants will Be recenied,

Governmenl granls are recogmised in prolitor loss on a systernatic basis over the: periods inowhich the Group
TecoEnises a5 expenoes the rekated costs for which the grants sie intended to compensate. Specalcally, government
wrants whose primary condition i that the Group should purchase, constiuct o othenwise aciuire non-current assels
are recognised a5 deferred revenee in The consolsdated statermant of Tnancal posilion and transiored to prolit o
kss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives of the related assets.

Government grants that are receivalile a5 compensation fof expemses of lsses alieady incurred or for the paspose
of giving immedate financial support 1o e Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
petid i which they become ecevable,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Cash and cash equivalents

For the puapse of the consoledated statement of cash fows, cash and cash equivalents comprse cash on hamd
and demand deposits, and short term: highly lquid investments that are readily converlibbe info known amounts
of cash, are subject 1o an insignificant risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity of gencrally within thres
months when acquired, less bank overdiafts which are repayable on demand and form an integral part of the
Groagy's cash mansgement.

For the purpose of the corsolidated staterment of financial position, cash and cash equialents comprise cash on
hand and at banks, incheding term deposils. and assets similar in nature to cash, which are nol restricted as to use.

Retirement benefit cosis and lermination benefils
For defined beneiil retitement benefit plans, the cost of providing benefits. is determined using the projected unit
credit metvod, with actuarial valuations being carred out at the end of e repoting period,

Defined beselt costs ane categonsed s follows:

. serice oost {including current sepdce cost, past serice cost, as well as gains and losses on curttailments
and seltlementsy,

. el inenesl expense of income; and
. remeasurement,

The Group presents the st beo components of delined benefil costs in paolil of kes as emphoyes Denedils e,
Curtailmen gains and ksses are accounted Tor 35 past service costs, Past serice cost & iecognised in profil of loss
in the period of a pln amendmant. Not interest is calodated by applying the discount rato st the beginning of the
period to the net defined benelit liability o assed.

Remessuremint, comprising aclusial gaans and lesses, the elfect of the changes to the assel celling (i appécatie)
and the relum on plan assels (excluding inferest), is refllected immediately in the consolidated statement of financial
posilion with a charge or credit recognised in olbwr comprehensivg income in the pegiod in which they ocour.
Remessurement recognised in other comprehensive income s reflected immediately in retained camings and will
not b reckssilied b profit or loss.

The retirement benefit oblgation recognised in the consolidated stalement of financial position represents the
actual dehcit or sanplus in the Group's defined beneld plans, Any surphe resulling Troan this cakculation & linded 1o
the present value of any economic benelits avaikabia in the form of refunds and reductions in fulure contributions to
the plians.

The employees of the Group in Ching and Hong Kong are members of state-managed retiremen] benef schemes
and members of the Mandalory Provident Fund Scheme {“MPF”} respectively, the oblizations of the Group under
which are equivalent 1o those aising in a defined contiibution retirement benefit plan. Contribulions to state-
managed reirement benefit schiemes and MPF are recopnised a4 an expense when employess luve rendened
service enfiling them o the contributions.

Payments 1o defined contribution retirement benedd plans are recognised as an expense when employess have
rendered service enfitling therm bo the contributions.

A liability for & termination benefit is recognised at the earliar of when the Group entity can ne onger withdiaw the
offer of the termination benefit and wiven it secognises any related restiuchuing costs
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

4, Key Sources of Estimalion Uncertainty
The following ane e key assumphons conoeming the lulue, and other key sources of estimedion uncerlainty at the
end of the reporting period, that hewe a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the canying amounts. of
assols and liabilities within the next financi year.

Fair value measurement of live hogs included in biological assels

The Group engaged an independent qualified valuer to perform the live hog valuations at the end of each
reporting pesiod, the i values less costs 10 sefl are detesmined based on the pice of hogs in the actively traded
rarket, subtacting the breeding costs required to raise the hogs fo be slhughtesed and the margins thet would
s reqquined by & raiser and less costs o sell, with reference Bo the latest budgels approved by the managemenl.
This determination involved the wse of significant judgement and estimates, If the actual resulis differ with the
oozl estimates made by the management, such differences from the onginal estineites will imgact the fa whee
change recogmised in profit of loss in the reporting pened. The carrying amount of live hogs i USESES million as at
Decembrr 31, 2007 (2016: US$927 million} {see note 17).

Eoodwill

Determining whether goodwill | impaired requees an estimation of the recoverable amount of the CGLs o which
goodwill has been allocated which is the higher of the vahoe i use of Tair value fess costs of disposal. The valiee in
use calcilation requires the management of the Group 1o estimate the lulire cash lows expected 1o arise fiom the
CGLEs and a suitatde discount rale moorder bo calculate e presenl value. Where the aches fulee cash Tkews ane
tess than expected, a material impairment loss may anse.

The carming amount of goodwill s USE1 838 million as at December 31, 2017 (2016: USE1, 784 milkon), Detaiks of
he recoverable amount calculateon are dischosed in note 18

Intangible assats

In gccoumnting for intangible assets, management of the Group considers the potential impaipment based on
the: recoverable amount. Infangible assets with finite wseful lives are reviewed for impadmment when events o
circumstances indicate the carying value meay not be recoverable; the Infangible asset with indefinite uselul hves
are reviewed for impaiment annually, inespective of whether there is any ivdication that il may be impaired.
Factors thal would mmdicate potential impaiomenl meay inchude, but are nol lmited to, the significant change in
technology, and operating losses associated with the inlangible assets.

Determining whether intangible assets & impaired requires an estimalion of the recoverable amount of the CGLS o
which intangible assels has been allocated. The pecoverabde amount of CGLs at the end of each reporfing period
r basied o e higher of (he ain value less cost of dispesal and valee in ose The walue in ese caloukdion requies
e mamagemend of the Group to estimate the future cash flows expeded to anise from the CGLs and 8 suitable
discount mte in order o cakaubte the present value Where the actual fubure cash lows are less than expected, 3
material Empaimment kes may Sise

The carying amount of intangible assels & US$1, 742 millon as at December 31, 2007 (2016 US$1,681 million)
{see note 19)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Kay Sources of Estimation Uncertainly (Continged)

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the kower of cost o the deemed cost ka agriculire produce harvested Trom biciogical assels
and et realisable walue. Met reabisable value 5 the estimated selling price in the ordeary course of business, less
the estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.

Management of the Group periodically reviews inventories for slow-moving inventoees, obsolescence o declines in
miarked value: This review requires them lo estimate the net realisable value based upon assumphbions aboul future
demand and marked conditions. If the estimate of net realisable value is bebow the cost of inventores, the Group
will record a write-down of inventories for the difference between cost and net realrsabbe value, which will result in
a corresponding increase in cosl of sales, |1 e net realisable value & less than the camying amounl, write-down
on mverlones may be requited. The canymg amont of inventones ks U531 905 million as at December 31, 2017
(A016: USE] 678 milllon} {see note 221,

Valuation of the abligation in respect ol defined benelit plans

In determining the obligation in respect of defined beneit plans, the Group engaged an acluaral expart 1o
pertorm the actuarial valuation of plan assets and the: present value of the defined benefit obligations, and the
key assumplions wsed including discount rates, expected salay increases and mortality rates. The discount
fates assumplions are determined by reference bo yislds on high-quality corporate bonds and goveinneent bonds
yields of approgriate duration and cumency at the end of the reporting perod. The capected rebarns on pln assel
i5 determened on the hastorical returmns and assets allocations by considering the fulure market and econormic
conditicas. The expecled rate of salary increase s moferenced by the salary scale projected by management and the
maxtality rafes is by referenced by demoggaphic marnkel data.

During the year ended December 31, 2017, remeasurement losses after 1ax effect amounting to US$105 million
are recopnised direcily i equily @ ile period in which they aeous (016: USE3] milion), The Groups obligation in
respect of net pension l@bility &5 & December 31, 2017 amounted to LIS$362 million (2016: LS$321 milkon) (ses
nobe 34)

Revenue and Segment Information
Revenue represents the net amounts received and receivabls for goods sold and services provided by the Group 1o
outside customers, net of sales tax duing the yvear, and is as follows:

2017 MK

UsE'million LIS milllicn

Packaged meats 11,7977 11,074
Fresh pork 9520 2,178
Hegt prosduichion 512 Bdd
Cthers 504 438
23719 21.534
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

5. Revenue and Segment Information (o)
Segment information
The Group determines its operating segpments based o e reports revmewed by the execitive directors who are also
the chief operating decision makers that are used o make stratogic decisions. The Group's reportable segments,
which are also the operating segments, se classilied based on thelr locations including Chna, LS. and Ewrope
and the natwe of cperations as (i) packaged meals, (i} fresh pork, (i} hog produection and (iv) others.

Thie delails of e Group's business activithes ae a5 follows:

il Packaged meats - represents production, wholesake and welail saes of low temperature and high
temperabure meat prodiscts,

{i}  Fresh pork - represents staaghtering wholesale and retail ssles of fresh and frozen mest.

fii}  Hog production - represents hog lanming.

{iv} Others — represents slaughtening and sales of poultry, sales of ancillary products and

services such as provision ol logistics, sales ol llavouring ingredients and
internally-produced packaging materials, as well as operating a finance
company, relail business and blopharmacauticals, retail of meat related
prodscts, and ool porate expenses incumed by the Group,

Each wepoitabde segment darves s revenue lrom the sales of moeducts and provision ol services based on the
location of operations, They are managed separately because each segment requires different production and

iraheting strategies.

Segments results represent the profit earned by each segment Before Diclogical (air value adjustments without
allocation of other income not attributed to the respective seament, ofher gains and losses, finance costs and share
of profits of assocmbes and oint ventures, This is the messure reported to the chiel opemting decision makers fos
the puiposes of rescurces allocation and assessment of segment pefolmance

Inter-segment sales were changed ol oost plus mangin bass,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fert the year eeded Decemeer 31, 2037

5. Revenue and Segment Information (Cotined)
Segment information (Conbinued)
The folowing is an anabysis of tie Group's revenue and results by repoitable segments:

For ihe year ended December 31, 2017

Packagnd Fresh Hap
n=aks park oA b s Todal

LSS million WSS million USE il LSS mil lion USE ' million
Peaple’s Republic of China {*China™)
Gross segment revenis anz 4,49 15 455 B 334
Lesss: InBer-seg ment reeniie - (B03) (B4} (221} (E@a}
Rewvenius 3312 3888 1 235 7446
Reporable segment preli (loss) 8a2 103 23 (203} 525
The United States of America (“U.5.7)
Groes segmisnt rvenss 7810 T.916 285 - 18,580
Less: Inter-gegrment reveniue 3 {2,955} (2.344) - {5,302)
Revenue 7807 4,961 510 = 13278
Resportable segment prold oss) T 433 (64} {168} 922
Europe
Grigs sepment myvans G956 1,143 636 354 2829
Lese: inter-gegmeant revenus (38) (466} (585} {BS) (1,174)
Resniue G5B 677 51 269 1,655
Reportable segment profit 7 1 101 ] 135
Total
(Groms segmiend revenies 11,818 13,550 1585 B10 29,743
Lt InRer-segmant révenus [ (4,024} (2,993} (208} (7.364)
Reneriue 17717 9,526 572 i L] 22,378
Reportable segment protd (oss) 1435 547 56 (455) 1,583
et unalkocated incoms Kl
Bichogcal fair value adjustments 22
Finenoe costs {1aa)
Share of profits of associates 8
Share of profita of [oend ventures 14
Profd before taxation 1,501
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior th year snded December 31, 2017

5. Revenue and Segment Information (Contine)
Segment information (Conlinued)

For the yesr ended December 31, 2016

Packaged Fresh Hog
meath park jnuction hars Total

LS5 million UEF million U5 million USF million US55 mil liom
China
GGIOns Segmment reveniue 3384 4757 @ e a7
Leess: Indir-segment mavshin - (553 (ray (191 (53]
Riwenue 134 415 14 203 1,755
Riporiabie segment peoll (less) 725 98 = (38 223
us.
GISs Jegment e 1125 7.0 20 - 16,856
Less: Inder-sagment revenie (4] |2 588 11 508y - (4,458
Renshie T.123 4441 T - 12,358
Reporiatie segment peofd {kees) 714 472 {144y 1150 =R
Eumpe
(I segmend revenie a2 2% 518 ki 275
Less: Inder-egment fevenus [£5) (353 {E=2) (74} ()
Resenue & 543 e 235 1424
Feportatie segmert poofd (ss) 3% (25 6 - L
Tetal
(EH0E Segrment revene 11,121 i2,582 a1z T3 7818
Lest: |nder-cegment fevedie (47 [3.504) (2a6a) [Pz (6, 284)
Revers 11074 o178 384 438 21,58
Reporiales segment peofit {lesz) 1475 545 (440 437 1,788
Het urp boated Income &0
Bictogreal Fair value adpsiments 25
Findnce aoets (153)
Share of profils of associbes 8
Shade of peofils of pand venlimes 25
Prolit beloee taabion 1,703

= Lieas man UEST mallon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Revenue and Segment Information i Continued)

Segment information (Conbinued)

Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

Mo customens mdividuaily accounted loe mone than 10% of the lolal revenie duting both years.

Mo segrent assets and labilites ae disclosed as they are not regularly provided to the chiel opesating decishon

makers.

Geographical information

Infoemation about the Group's revenue presented above & based on the geographical bcations of operation,

Information atssut the Group's net-current assels is presented below based on the geographical keations of

oparaton

2017 2

WSS million

LIS$ million

Mon-current assefs

China 2,636 2567
LS 5318 4583
Europe 1,397 1033
8,351 8,583

Othar Income

Goveerniment subsidy directly credibed Lo income
Inbesest indome

Incomme on sakes of raw malenals

Rental moonme

Others

2017 201E
WS million LIS rllion
47 63
12 10
g 9
7 &
38 19
113 107
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fiox the year anded December 31, 2017

' Other Gains and Losses

2017
USS million
Gain on non-qualified retirement plan assats 14 5
Gain on malunily of avaibble-lor-sake investments a8 14
Gain on disposal of 2 subsidiay 4 E
Gain {loss) on disposal of property, plant and equipment 8 (16
Impairment kss on other non-current assets {13} -
Impairment koss recognised in respect of property, plant and equipment (12} (A7)
Met exchange (kossh gain i=1] 4
Others 7 =)
7 (400

8.  Dther Expenses

2007

USE million

Share-based pay ments

{313} 47

Denations et 1)
Olhers (13} {1
{326} [45)

8. Finance Cosls

2m7

W55 million

Amentisation of ansachion costs

{4y (143

Interests on senior unsecured notes (64) {117}

literisls o imediume-lenm unsecured naotes 151 (&)

Ioteiessts on bank and otles [oans {55} Aan
Loss o debt extinguishment (7o} -
Less: Amolints capdalised in e ool of qualifying assels 1 1
{1a8) (E83)

Lderm than LISS] medlipn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

10. Profit Belore Taxation
Prodit before axation has been armived at after charging:

am7 201

UES miulliaon 155 milhon

Aud®or's remuneation

Audit services 3 4
Mor-audit sepaces - 2
Depreciation of proparty, plant and equipment 382 363
Arnetesation of intangible assets included in adminisiralive expenses 7 9
Release of prepaid lease payments 5 5
Write-down of inventosies mcheded in cost of sakes a4 24
e allowanoe on rade iecevables 1 |
Opetating lesses rentals in respect of rented premises 11 112
Research and development expenses L &4
Saalt costs (excheding directons” remunerion} 3354 ER LT
The ooet o sales fap Ahe cods o tecogrrmed |n pecfil Of st during both years
= Lissa than LISS] milon
Wi BRDUT UNATED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017 il
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior th year snded December 31, 2017

11, Directors’ and Employees’ Emoluments
Directos’ and chiel execulive’s remumwation for the yem, disclosed pursaant to the apphcable Rules Gowernang
the Listing of Securities on the Hong Fong Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules™) and the Hong Kong Companies:

Ordmanoe, B as Tollows:

Basie Eetiiemenl

nalwiey Siware- fmedil

pd Perlomsace Relenlien hased wheoe

allrwsmcey bomet banuis paymenls  contrbubiom

Hame of director Ui¥milfen  HS&milion USiwmilies USSmillion  US¥mithan

{Wale (i
A EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Wir. Wan Loog - 2 -t - i -t 341
Wi, G Lijun - 1 i = ] o ]
Wir. Zhang Tat - at - = ] = 1
W Suliwan Kannath Mae - i i - i -r 16
Wi Yiom M - 1 - - - o i
Subeiotal - 5 (L] : i -t H5

The executve diecion' emoluments shown above were paid for their sevices in connection with Ihe mamegement of e affsrs of the
Comgeiny b (hae G

[l NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Wi Yo Sheoge - - - - - - -

Subictat - = . . H 5 -

Mo emabament wirs: pard Io tfe non-execuive dinecio shown sbove for his serices &5 dinecior of the Comgsny or it subssdarnes

G} INDEPERDENT WOR-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS
W Lowr Cormway’ Kong Wal =t = = = - a =t
M. Huzing Ming - 2 = = = 3 _»
k& Lau, Jin Tin Dan =t = = . = B oF
Sub-ickad -t . - - N - ut

The independent non-seeculyve dischos’ amolume b shown abowe were paid for Seir wervices i drecion of the Company.

Tolal fur the ear eaded
Deceaber 30,2007 s

H Rk han LSET wmallin
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

11.  Directors” and Employees’ Emoluments i Continesd)

A) EXECUTIVE D4RECTORS

M Wan Long - 2 =" = 15 - 17
W G Lin - i - . 4 g
W Zhang Tams - ut N o 4 e 1
Mr, Sulbvzn Kesesth Marc = 1 7 1 1 i 16
Me. You Mu - 1 = = - o |
Sud-total - 5 12 | M i 43

The mecutive dreches’ emoluments shiown sbove were pad Jor ther senvices in conrechon with the management of the afaim of the
Company and Ehe Gmup

B) NON-EXECUTIVE IRECTOR
Mr. Jiag Shuge - - - - - - -

Sl - - . - - - -

P emoltument was paid 4o the non-executive diechor shown abowe for b services a5 dimcice of [he Company or i absidiznes

() INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE

DIRECTORS.
Mr Lo Corwiry Kong Wai =* = = - - » -
[ Hg?'g h’h:rﬂ - . - - - = Ll
Me. Law, Jin T Con = - - - - - -
Subrofal " - - - " - =

The idepandent nor-execufive direchors' emoluments shiown above were pad for thelr services g direclons of the Company

Total bot (he yes ended
Decomber 31, 2016 LE!
Mg
(1] Petetmanoe ritated incéntive payments & tommended by e fdmuneralion commefes of (he Company and @'e spproved Ly he

banrd of girecions, with elgrence b the Group's opesatng results, individust performance and compmable marked sixtsscs.
(113 Mo d Faciorn mee The chisf sxacuthes wikod say srnclumests in heipact of [he yasm snded Decambai 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016
] Wr. Wan Long m abo S Chief Exscutive for the years ended Decemibar 31, 2017 and Decamber 31, 50146

- e Shaen LSS e
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

11, Directors' and Employees’ Emoluments (Continiesd)
The fiwe highest paid individiats tor the year ended December 31, 2017 included two directors of the Company
{A016: two), details of whose emoluments are set oul above. The emasluments of the remaining three (2016 three)
non-director highest pakd imdividuats during the yesr wore as follows:

2017 L1 [
USE million LISS o
Employees

Bash: salanies and allowances 3 3
Parformance bonus 19 14
Retention bonus - 1
Share-based paymenls 1 2
Retiremend benedits scheme contributons a1 7

27 27

The emoluments of the remaining non-directorn highest paid mdiiduals wese within the folkwing bands:

Number of amployees

2017
1Rk, D00, 00T b FIKEA5, B0, OO0 = 1
HIEES6, 500,001 to HKS57,000,000 1 £
HEHEE 500,000 to HIKSE, 000, 000 1 -
R, 000D b HIKE 76, B0, D00 = 1
HIK$EE, 000,001 to HIKE8S, 500,000 1 !

Durmng, the yesr, no emoluments wore paid by the Group to any ol e directors or the five highest paid individuals
{including directors and employees) as an inducement fo gin o upon jimng the Group o as compensation for loss
of office (2016 Mil).

12. Tazalion

2017

U5$ mitlinn
China Enterprise Income Tax {188) {197}
LS. and ollwer overssss income by {2100 (7]
Hong Kong Profits Tax i1} -
Withholding ta (46} 2]
Dreferred taation 263 (213)
{182) {465)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Taxation (Coslinisi)
Under the China law on Enterpaise Income Tax (the “EIT Law") and the Implementation Regulstion of the EIT Law,
the tax 1ale of the China subsidianes is 25% except for the following:

i Aecording 1o e Implementation Regubation of the EIT Law and the EIT exemptions regelation set out i the
Circalar of the Mingstry of Finance and the State Administration on Releasing the Primary Processing Rangos
of Agricubiural Products Entitled to Preferential Policies on Entesprise Income Tax (Trial Implementation) (Cai
Shai [2008] Moo 1490, and the requinements o Article 86 of the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Leaw,
the income from vanious China subsidiaries of the Company engaging in prinery processing for agriculiuee
products are cxempled from EIT.

iy Pursuant fo refated regulations in respedt of the Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the income from
various China subsidiaries of the Company engaging i propects o animel-husbandng and poliny feeding,
areentitted bo exemption from EIT during both years.

(i) Purswsl to the related repukations in respect of the Notice of Certain Tax Policies fos [mplementation of
Exglosation and Development of Western Region (Cai Shui [2012] Mo, 58) jointly issued by Bhie Ministy of
Fimavce, the General Adminestation of Customs and the State Adminsbation of Taxation, vanous China
subsidiaries of the Company, are entiied to s preferential mcome tax tate of 15% duning both years,

fiv) Aecording to the lmglementation Regulation o the EIT Law and Circudar of State Adminstration of Taxation
on Fssues Concerning |mplementation of Preferential Income Tax Enjoyed by High-and-new-tech Enterprises
{Gus Shui Han [2005] Mo, 203), high-and-new-tech enlerprises are levied enterprse income tax sl 15%
Various China sulskdsties of the Company are classified as high-and-new-tech enterprises and are enfitled
Ios enfoy @ preferential meomee ta rate at 15% dunng bolh years,

Acording b @ joint circutar of the Ministy of Finance and the State Administration of Tasation, Cai Shui (2008] Mo 1,
only the profits camed by China subsidianies poior to January 1, 2008, when distributed to toreign investors, can be
grandiathered with the exemption from withholding b Whereas, pursuant to Artickes 3 and 27 of the EIT Law and
Artichke- 91 of its Implementation Hules. dividends: destibuted oul of the prolit penesated thereanter, shall be subject
to EIT at 10% or reduced tax rale if a b heaty or anangement applies. Under the relevant e aniangement, the
withhokding tax rate on divedend distibation to the qualifying Homgs Keng resident companies is 5%. Delerred tax
labdities on the undishibuted profits eamed by the China subsidiaries have been acoreed at the tax ate of 10%
far the years ended December 31, 2008 and Decembeer 31, 20059 and at the tax rate of 5% and 10% slarting from
Jamsny 1, 2010 orwards,

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2017, the ULS. income tax charge comprises federal income lax
calcubated ab the rate ianging from 21% 1o 35% and state ncomse tax calcutated o1 the rates rangng from 056 o 9.9%
on the estinated assessablbe profits of the subsidwanes of the Comgany which wee incorporated in LLS.

On December 22, 20017, the LS, Tax Act (the "Tax Act”) was signed into w by the LS President. The Tax Act
significantly revised the LS, corporate income tax Ews by, among other things, lowesing the LS. compomats tax
mte from a top rate of 35% 1o a flat wele of 21% ellective from lanuary 1, 2018, while also repealing the deduction
tor domestic production activities, implementing a tenitodal 1ax system and Imposing a transibion tax on deemed
repabriated carmings of foreign subsidiaries (°LLS Tax Reform”). As a resull of the Tac Act, the Group had recorded
tax benedits due to a rermessurement of deferned ta assets and labiities, and a tas charge on deemed repatiiation
of deferred foresgn income, in the year ended December 31, 20017, Both (he tax benefit and the tax charge
repesent provisional amounts and the Group's current best estimates, The amounts incorporate assumplions made
based upen the Group's cutsent interpretation ol the Tax Act and may change as e Group receves additional
clarilecation and imglementation gukance irom e ax authonles.,

W GROUT UINETED  AMNUAL REPOAT 2017 1063
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For Eht year énded Decemnbar 31, 2017

12, Taxalion {Conlinued)
Othwer oversess taxalion & calculated al the ates prevashing in the iespective prsdichions,

Hong Fong Profits Tax has been provided al the rale of 16.5% on the estimated assessatde prolils arising in Hotg
Kong during the year ended December 31, 2017, No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made for the
year ended Decembser 31, 2016 as the Group déd not have assessable profits subject to Hong Kong Profils Tax or
e assessable prodits are wholly absorbed by t8x losses brought forward lrom pion year.

Thie taation charge for both years s reconciled 1o the probit belome taxation a3 lollows:

2007 2016
WSS million S5 LSS mmillicn

Profit befone tation 1,501 1,703
Tax at the applicable rates (Mote) 492} {32.m, (&1 [29.3)
fiw effect of share of pofits of associates and

joint venlumes 3 0.4 1 0.6
Tam ettect of income that are nol EBxable in

cletermming cumren] yeas taatsle profil 8 0.5 25 1.5
Tan effect of expenses that are not deductible in

chetesmaning cument year taable profil (58} {4.5) 45} 120
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised (5 0.3 -* -
Litilesaition of tax losses peesiously nol recognised =* - 3 0.z
Efect of tax exemgdions and preferential tax rates

granled to China subsidiaries a2 2.1 £ 18
Efect of tax exemplions and prelerential

L rates granted to U5, subsidiaries 1 07 L 0.6
Decrease in opening deferred tax hability resulting

from dectesase in applicable b abe 341 228 Z 0.1
LLE. Tax Reform - transition fax (27} (1.8) - -
Withhlding tax on undistribuded eamengs of

subsidiarkes (28) {1.8) (25} (1.5}
{Ubnnddier b oner provision in pasr years (3 0.2} 1 0l
Ching EIT tax on capital gain upon disposal of

sarbsbdinriss within the Groap - = 21} (1.3
Tam effect of tax losses recognised on mira-group

transactions 43 29 44 26
Tax charge and elfective tax e for e yems {182} (12.1} (45} (27.3)

Mote  As the Geoups levenue s generated |a seversl jursdkotions, th dinsctons of the Company consader it = maig meaningiul [ aggregste the
pATAl TRIORCTRITION prepared usey Ine domestc raky i each mdsidual |usscion

Dietails of recognised and unprovded defered taaton are sel oul in nete 32,

= L than LISF] mdlion
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

13, Dividends

2017 20l

LSS million LSS millicn

Dividend recognised as distribution during the year;

A6 final dividend of HEKB21 cents per shane (2015 HE$12.5 cents) 3590 236
2017 imterim dividend of HES5 cents per share (016 HEES cents) ] o
84 330

The final dividend of HK$22 cents par share in respect of the year ended December 31, 2017 has been proposed
by the directors and b subject Lo approval at the Toitheoming amnual general meetng.

14. Eamings Per Share
Thee calculation of the basic and diluled eamings per share altiibutable to owners of the Company is based on the

following data:
2017 2UE
UEE million LSS million
Earmnings
Profit for the vear atiributable to owners of the Company lor the parpose of
basic and diluled camings pes shane 1,133 1,036
millian millicn
Humber of shares
Weighted average numbed of cedinany shares for the purpose of basic
earmings por share 14 541,85 13, 666 40
Effect of dilubve potential cidinary shares:
Incentive shaes - 63158
Share oplions 48,33 -
Wetghted average number of ordinaiy dhanes for the purpose of
diluted earnings par share 14.5481.148 14,297 58

The compartation of diluled eamings per share for the year ended December 31, 2016 did nol assume the exercise
of the Company's shate options (see nole 3Hel) because the exercise price of those share oplions was higher than
the average market price tor shares lor that year,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

15. Property, Plant and Equipment

Pant,
machanery

Freeholkd I Lot amd  Comstruchon
land Budlfmgs vehicles  equipmenl |n progress

Cost:

A1 January §, 2005 479 2,120 145 2,07 282 5,804

Currency reafgnment (2} =] ) (o) {31 1194}
Bdditions - 1 l 13 436 461

Transdes 3 43 4 3 (410 -

Eliminated on disposals (5] LEY] &) 49y - (53

A Devember 31, 2016 and

Jarusary 1, 2017 479 2,135 140 2553 305 5,00
Currenicy reabgnimesnt r 108 & 123 g 243
Additsens - i ] g Bh2 BE3
Setuesition of subsdiaries (Mobe 35) a7 3 3 T & 173
Trancler i 133 3 283 (4200 -
Eliminated on dsposals (B) 18] 111 EFi] {3} (62}
At December 31, 2017 539 2,389 145 3409 i 6,925
At Jomoary 1, 2016 - 3zr i) - 1,13
Currency realgnment - 115) [4) {32y
Prowided for the year - & 5 - 363
Impairment foss recognised n

pralit of loss - : 47 47
Elimirvaled an desposals - i) [4) LE ] - (35)
A December 3], 2016 and

Januay 1, 2017 - Aach ] w2 - 1473
Currenicy resfignment - 3 =" 20 - 18
Prorvidead Bor the e - 101 12 S50 - a2
Impanrmmen] kg FETgrised o

predil o ks - - - 12 - 12
Eliminated on deposale - 13) () (19} - (3
At December 31, 2007 - 534 B 1214 . 1,888
Carrying values:

At December 31, 2017 539 1,855 E5 2,135 43 5,037
At December 31, 2016 474 1720 = 1861 305 A5
= Lass than LISS1 malfion
10X W GEOGF LIMITID ANNUAL REPOAT 2007
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Property, Plant and Equipment (Continused)
Certain of the Groug's buildings of US$953 million as a1 Decenber 31, 2017 {2016 US3915 million) are erecled
on lamd hekd in Ching while the rest are erected on lieehold lBnd situated in LS.

As @l December 31, 2017, the application of ottaining the ownership cerlificates o buildings in China with an
apmregate carmying value of approximately LIS$21 7 million (2006: US$3E7 million) are still in process.

Included in the camying value of property, plant and equipment as al December 31, 2017, there was an amount of
UISS28 rmllicas {201 6: US$24 milion) in respoct of assets hokd under inance leases.

Property, plant and equapment with canrying amount of spproxieetely USE12 mallion bees boen fully iogamed amd
recognised in profit of kess for the yves ended December 31, 2007,

Drurig the year ended December 31, 2016, the directors of the Company conducted a review on tecoverable
amounts of certain plant and machinery used in LS, for hod dog production and considered the fain valoe of
the relevant assels was minimesl and would substanbisily be oftsel by the rebevant costs to sell. Accordingly, a full
impairment koss of US$39 millicn had been recognised in profit or loss.

Prepaid Lease Payments

2017 A0
UES'million LISE million
Cost;
Al Janusary 1 238 #h
Currency realigrment 18 {17}
Additions =" =
EBrmination on disposal {6} -
At December 31 248 238
Amortisation;
A Jansry 1 3B 3h
Currency realiznament 3 {2}
Charged for the year 5 b
Elrmanation o disposs - =
At Decensber 31 46 28
Carrying value:
Al Decesmibar 31 202 20}
Analysed lor reporlog purposes as:
Curresnt 5 5
MNom-currend 187 195
202 200y

The amount mainty represents the prepayment of rentals for land e rghts stuated in China for unexpired lease
periods of 10 to 49 years.

" Loz thaen UISHL milices
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fiox the year anded December 31, 2017

17. Biological Assels
Mature of the Group's agricultural activities
The beclogical assets of the Group are kve hogs and poultry 8t variows stages of developmend, including suckling
hogs, nursery hogs and finkhing hogs and boiler which ane classified as currend assets, Bicdogical assets also
include breeding stock (hogs and poullty), which ane used 1o produce ulure bve hogs and biollen, ane classified as
nan-current assets of the Group. The quantities of Fve hogs, brodler and beseding stock owned by the Group at the
end of each repoting peniod are as lollows:

Live: hogs

Suckling 1.685 1,574
Mursery 2,100 2243
Fmishing TG Fvr ]
namn 11,037
Breeding stock (hogs) 1,106 1,066
12,337 12,003
Bredler 4,245 3,846
Brosding stock {pouling 517 531
4,762 435

Hogs

I general, ook a sow is inseminated it will pestale Tor a period of 114 days. New bain bogs are classified as
“suckling”, The suckling hogs will stay with thes mother for three fo four weeks a1 which time they will be weaned.
Once the suckling hogs are weaned, al approximately 1 1o 8 kilograms, they are transiarred o the “nurseny”,

The nuasery lacdities are designed o meet the needs of newly weaned pigs. They are led a senes of specially
formiilated diets to meet thelr changing nutritional needs. The pigs will stay i the nusery for approcimately &
wiorks where thiy will grow (o approximately 7 1o 45 Kilograns and then be translesred o the Stnishing” farm

Finishing hogs. typically stay in this phase for 13 1o 19 weeks, Duning that time they will grow to approxaimately 23 to

132 kilograny and be considesed a5 a live hog with market value. Once the hog eaches the ideal weight, they aie
kaded onte specially desigred trucks for franspod to the processing facility.

16 W DRDDF LIMITID ANNUAL BEPCOAT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Biological Assets (Confinied

Mature of the Group's agricultural activities (Contmued)

Poultey

In general, once a pullet lays eges, the eges will be sent to the hatchery and it will ke approximately 21 days to ba
hatched, The hatched chicks are then sent o the broller farm

The chicks are fed with & series of specially formulated diets o meet their nutsition needs. The chicks will stay in
the broler faem for approximately 38 o 42 days where they will grow bo approxinsately 2.1 kilogram and then be
considered as a brodler with market valee.

Once the broiler reaches the market weight, they are kaded onto specially designed trecks for fransport o the
processing lacility.

The Group-is exposed to a number of risks related o ils biological assets. The Group & exposed 1o the following
opeating risks:

{id Regulstory and environmental risks
The: Group is subject bo lws and regulations m the location in which il operales breeding of hogs and
piltry, The Group has established environmental policles and procedures aimed at compliance with local
environmental and olher ks Mansgernent pesforns. regular reviews o identily enviconmental reks and 1o
ensung that the systens in place are adequeate 1o manage these risks,

i) Climede, deease and other natural nsks
The Group's bislogical assels are exposed to the rsk of damage lrom climatic changes, dreases and ofher
natural forces. The Group has extensive processes in place. aimed al monitoring and mitigating those risks,
Including regular mspections, disesse contiok and inserance,

Carrying value of the Group's biclogical assels

Bk Ny k-l

an ] un

Uil X 1o (i mitim

Loyt wale sy | ur 2] 184 158 } 4 1 2 1118 L
(e craigrmeet | 1 H] 1 K] - ! - [H] a 1]
A Breedey costy 137 san 1% in (=2 i) ] & V5 T
Aoititon of sutsidinnes (Mol 351 “ - % - - - w
s i) i 0, s

I i v b ook o sl

DiclegacH iy a2 1 (1] 1] [} i) ] il 13 i
Toarefer o irwerviories 31 e poisd of

harvesd 0% ESEN (140 {50 Hi 2] 1] @ fM e
[esragne due ko cullineg {IED im i3 E1] i L7} 1} - e} [
Loy veakas B Db 3] -] o m L% ¥ ] i i .17 Lil®

v Lot thaph LIS mubice
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

17. Biological Assats (Contimmsd)
Carrying value of the Group's biological assets {Continued)
Analysed (o reponling pUIPOsE as:
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USE million

Caprrent
Mon-curent

2017
2] 933
L] (50
1,17 1,119

Fair value measunement — Level 3

2017 L1 1]

WSS million LIS rruffion

Bisdogical assels
Live hogs
Breeding stock (hogs)
Braiber
Breesding stock (poultry)

085 927
177 184
5 &

i 2
1.1M 1,115

The tai values of breeding stock (hags and poultry) are defermaned based on the avaage of the historcal seling
price of hog and poultry of simélar breed and genetic mernit less costs 1o sell (level 3). The estimaled s value will
significantly Increase when there s a sight incresse in e average histerical selling price, and vice versa,

The fair values of Bve hog and brotler are mainky determined based on the paice of hogs and beoiler in the actively
traded markel, sublractig the breeding costs required to mise the Bve hogs and broder to be skaughlengd amd e
margins that would be required by a raiser and less costs to sell {level 3. The estimated fain vabiee will significanily
increase when there ks a slight ncrease in the market prioe of hog and broiler o0 decrease in the breeding cost

required o raise the live hogs and commescial chicken, and vice versa

Changes in fair value Jess costs to sell of bologoal assets include changes o the faa value of e hogs and gouliny
al the end of both years. The Group's biologcal assels were vafoed by the independent qualified valuer, Jones Lang
LaSalle Corporate Appraisal and Advisory Limited {*JLL") situated 31 &/F, Three Pacific Place, 1 Queen's Road East,

Hong Kong,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Hinlngical Aszsats (Continued)
Canrying value of the Group's biological assels (Conlinued)
Fair value measurement — Level 3 (Continued)

Fioe The year edad December 31, 2017

Set forth below are the key assumptions and inputs adopted in the valuation process of bickogical assets:

China
Bresdng stock (hogs)
Per head market price {RBMB)

Suckling hogs
Per head cost™ (RMB)

Fmshing hogs
Par head market price™ (RMEB)

Par head weakly average breeding costs required bo
raise 1 fimshing hogs'™ (RMB)

Bresdmg stock {poullry)
Per head market price’ (RMB}

Beoller
Per head markel price™ (RME)

Per head average bresding costs sequined @ise to bioler (RMEB)

05,
Breeding stock — Sow {hogs)
Per head market price’ (LS§)

Breeding stock — Boar (hogs)
Per head market price (LIS}

Suckling hogs
Per head cost™ (LIS§)

Fmishing hogs
Per hesd market price™ (LS}
Per head weekly avermpe beeading cosls requined bo

ralse to finsshing hogs™ (LIS$)

2,150 2,187
&7 63
1512 1807
1] &5
5 25

17 17

16 17
159 172
76 a7
32 k]|
149 133
55 55

! Marksd peices o brending siock

Evonding stock it sraueed bo be salable o the marked s ot the breeding siock conesponding

slock viuabon date The prices adepted raher o B aeiags hislorcal sebing prces ansacted i
Tpcal mlaughber house. As the Group never pals i breeding siock before the end of its wselal e, no

PinorncE] beiual el Higured a0 adatie
2 Coats of suchkng hoga

A there i negniScand biclogical mmaformation that tskes place beteeen the bicth of these animak

untl iy Bescorm finnting hogs, he coml Apgecach wal adopiad. An M guckling hogs ais only 4
wesks' old 8 rrosd, e recent tost Incunied aperodmstes e rephcemend oot

3 Imriopt peacan of finihing
Iegabeoders

T ncdopied peling peices of inmhing. hogsioms (which i linhing hagabrobas id enough o
e 5oid to The matkal]) e determined using their matkes price 31 The activedly’ traded ocal spat and/

o tolure o on reference The pricos used (n S valuation are in dne wish e sciusl press

FRCOIpEE
iq Conly réqueed o complals

Tihe costs bo Compids umed & an sssurmpbion in vakotion am baad i compisle on The histoncsl

WA ebdng ool madicalion B suConEbon, growar Doyment, produciion houg poducton
overbead, the frelight-o-thaagter and selng comts thal would be ncuried for saes The estimaind
i tal would be requisd by B raner sie g0 3ppled n T valuation
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Motes to the Consolidated Financial Statements {Continued)

Fior the year ended December 31, 2017

18. Goodwill
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2017

Cosl:

A Jamisany 1

Acquisition of subsidiaries (Mote 35)
Currency realignment

Al December 31

Accumulaled impairment losses:
AR Janiary | and December 31

Carrying valug;
At December 31

UES millann

1,784 1,801
28 &
28 ("

1,828 1,784

1,838 1,784

Impairment testing on goodwill

Based on the Group's business units, gocdwill has been allocsted for impaimment testing purpose bo the following

CGLks;

. Fresh poak
. Packaged meats

The carmying amoamnt of goodwill allocated 1o CGUs and unallocated is a5 follows:

2017

LSS millinn

Algcabed to
Fresh goek ~ China
Packaged meats — China
Fresh poik = LLS:
Packaged meats - LLS,
Fresh pork and packaged meats — Othiers

51 47
147 137
an il
1,510 1 50
jil1] ]
1,838 1,784

Aoy mmpainmen] review of these CGLUS is undertaken annually of when evenls or circumstances. indscate thal
carmying amounts of CGLIs may not be recovemble. The recoverable amounts of twse CGLS have Been delenmined
by the wakue in use melbed using cash llow projection performed by the management for both years ended

Decernber 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

Goodwill (¢t

Imspairment testing on goodwill (Continued)

For the purpose of impairment festing, the Group prepares cash flow projection and the recoverable amounis
al these CGUs are calculated by wsing pre-1ax cash llow projections based on a 3-yean-year financial budget
approved by managerment and edrapokation of cash llows beyond he 3-yearS-year budget perod.

Ky assumgptions used in the cash flow projection of lresh pork in ChinalLS. covering 8 3-yeas/S-year budgel
period and exirapolabed cash flow beyond the budget period are as Tollows:

China

2017

Revenue growth mmte (MNote 1) 1.45-23.07 5402733 (3.3-2.0 054
Long-term growth rate (MNole &) 2 2 2 2
Drscount rate (Nobe i) 12 11 a 8

Key assumgtions used in the cash flow projection of packaged meats in ChinaL.5, covening a 3-yeanS.year budget
peeriod and extrapobsbed cash flow beyond the budget permod are as Tollows-

Revenue growih sate {(Mote o) 9.58-9.74 8602030 2.1-739 129
Long-term geowth rate (Nole &) 2 2 2 2
Descount rate (Mobe in) 12 11 a 8

Koy assumplions wsed i the cash (bow progection of fresh pork and packaged meats in other locations oulside
China and L5, covering a S-year budget period and exapolated cash flow beyond the budget period are as
Tollows:

Revenie giowih rabe (Mote & 4.3-19.6 A0-11.3

Lorgz-term growth rate {Mobe @) 3 3

Dascount rate (Nole i) 9 9
ot

L The maragemend deteimined tevanue growth e cved 8 SpmeSana budgel petiod with mference 10, (B past parfeemance and i
sxpecialiong for the markel deyslopmant

(] The g b groswth rafe used dodsy ol gciond this kg cerm gaowth e Sod e mesal procus on busens in wihich § oparaios

e The decaurd rabe ussd i pre-ti Scount rits spoSed 1o the cath Tiow plome it whic sefiscts epacdic ks lﬁli'i'rﬁ a1k 05

Mo impairment ks is ecognised at the end of both years based on the mmgakment assessmaent peformed. The
management bolieves that any reasonably possible change in any of thess assumptions would not cause the
apgregale camying amount of the CGLIS o exceed the agoresate recoverable amaount of the CGLs,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

15, Intangible Assets

Coalracl
Distribotiea Cuslamers farm

Trademarks itk relations tedatinad

Contl:
AR Jamuary 1, 2016 1627 b 1 e 40 3 1,730
Cumency realignment (25) - - -* - == {25)

Al December 31, 2016 anvd

January 1, 2017 1,602 5 1 h A 3 1,705
Aequnsilon o subsideres

{Mote 35) a7 - - - - 3 30
Currency realignment a7 - - 1 - -* 38
At December 31, 2017 1,686 5 1 55 40 B 1,113
Amodisalion and impairment:
Al January 1, 2016 - - 1 10 4 -* 15
Canrrency realignment - - - =" - = =
Praovvachied for thae yesr - - - 4 2 =" 8

Al December 31, 2016.and

January 1, 2017 - - 1 17 & - 24
Curency realigniment - i K
Provaacted for the year = 5 2 -* !
At December 31, 2017 - - 1 22 8 -* 31
Carrying values;

At December 31, 2017 1,666 5 - 33 32 B 1,742
At December 31, 2016 1,602 5 - 37 3 3 1,681

Patents, customens relations, conlract fanm rekations and rights and permets are amontised over their estimated wseful
lives of 5 o 25 years.

Trademarks and distitation netaork acquired in the business combinations are identilied and recognised as
intangibde assels wilh indefinite useful lives and camed al hisioncal cost without amortisation: for the following
TeEsOns:

- they ane capabde of baing renewed indefinfely & insgnificant cost;

- thede 15 o [odeseeable il to the perod oved wiich the a0l i expected o geneisle med cash flows, based
on an analysis of all of the relevant fachos,

- ez than LESS ] mllhon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

18. Intangible Assebs (Contimpced)
Imspairment testing on intangible assets
Based on the Group’s business units, ademarnks and distribution network have been allecated for impairment
besling purpose o the follwing CGLIs:

. Fresh pork
- Packaged meats

The catrying amount of traderarks and distribition nebwotk wes allocated to CGLE as follows:

2017 21
WS million LIS rllion
Aliocated o

Fresh pork < Ching 3 4
Packaged masis - China 209 781
Fresh pork - LS, 242 235
Packaged mests — U5, o84 965
Fresh pork and packaged mealts — Others 94 9

1671 1,607

Aniopaiirnent review of these CGLE is undertaken annually of when events o clicumstances indicale that the
canrying amounts of CGLs may nol be recoverable. The recoverable smount of these CGLS have been determined
by the value in use method using cash flow projection by management for the years ended December 31, 2017
and Decembar 31, 2016,

For the purpose of impairment testing, the Group prepanes cash flow projection based on a 3-yeanS-year fimancial
bardpets approved by management and extrapodation of cash fows eyond the 3-yeanS year Dudpe! perod,

Ky assumplions wsed in the cash llow projection of Bademarks and distribution network of resh pork covering a
3-yearD-year budget period and extrapolated cash flow beyond the budget period are as (ollows:

Chana
2017
Revenue growih rate (Mote 1) 1.45-23.07 5402723 (3.3-20 -5
Lomg-lerm guowth rate {Mote =) 2 2 2 2
Discount rate (Mobe i) 15 14 ] 10
Wi GRDUT LINETED  ANNUAL REPORT 2017 15
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

15.  Intangible Assets (Continued)
Impaivment testing on intangible assets (Continued )
Key assumgtions used in the cash tlow projection of trademarks and distribution network of packaped meats
covering a 3-yeaub-year budget period and extrapolated cash Now beyond the budget period ane as follows:

China

Revenue growth mafe (Note i} 89.58-9.74 B.60-2030 2.1-1.9 2129
Long-team growth iate (Note i) 2 Z 2 2
Discount rate (Mote iii) 15 14 a8 10

Koy assumptions used in the cash Mow projection of tademarks and distribution network of fresh pork and
packaped meats in other locations outside Ching and LLS. covenng 8 5year badpet perod and exirapolates cash

Thcww beyond lhe budget pericd are as follows;
2017 6
Revenue growth rate (Mote i} 431886 4.0-11.3
Long-teqm growth iae (Nobe i) 3 3
[hscount m@te (Mot i) 2] 11
Vit

i The manageongnt determined revenus growth rbe over 2 S-yparSiwar bodpet peiind with refevence b the pest pedomanos end s
mpeCtaEonE Mf the marked devalopenent

] Thar kg Devm e ovwith rate weed coes nod eeteed he Kng-benm growts s for the meat production business in which & opedaies

il Tha dimcount min wesd [ pre-tie dcoont Tile appked [ e cash Flow prochons which filach specific rsis relating 1o B & ademaris
and dislribufon nefwerk

The Group does not recognise an impainment loss during both years based on the impairment assessment
pedoimed. The managemen bolieves thal any masonably possible change inoany ol these sssumplions would

not cause the aggregate camying amound of the trademarks and distribution network to exceed the agaregate
recoverable amount of these assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

Interests in Associates

2017 20l

LSS million LSS millicn

The Group's share of inferests in associates
Linlisted 135 47

Shase of post-acquisition pofits and ollver compiehensive imoome,
ned of dividends received 20 15

155 o2

All the Group's associsles are nol considered s mdividually imatenal as atl Decemnber 31, 2016 and 2017, The
Agmegate amounts of its shane of these associabes i sob out in the consolidated financial statements.

Agpregale inlommation ol assocates that are nol individually meteril s sef oul bebow:

2017 2

WSS million LIS millicn

The Group's shaie ol prolils and lodal comprehensive ncomae Tor he yea
from hese associates 8 &

Cwvidend recered from these associates during The yea 7 6

Interests in loint Venlures

207 016

UES millian LSS mmillian

Corst ol ivvestrment in unlisted joint ventures A ] 111
Shate of post-acquisilion profits and adher comprehensive income,

nel of dividend received Fat] 8

140 119

Al the Group's joint ventures ae nol considered as mdividually matenal as o December 31, 2006 and 2017, The
agpregale amounts of ils share of these joint ventures is set ol in the consolidated financial staternents

W GROUT UINETED  AMNUAL REPOAT 2017 A7
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

22,

23.

Inventonies
2017
LSS million
Raw materials T00 626
Wik in progress 116 a5
Finished poods 1,089 967
1905 LG8

Trade and Bills Receivabies

2007 A6

WSS million LIS ilion

Trade recenables 254 20
Less: Allwances tor bad and doubiiul debts (10 &)
a4 784

Bills receimatdes 5 9
j:1.12] Faz k]l

The general credit term allowsd by the Group bo its customers i within 20 days in China opserations whibe the credit
lewmes vany depanding on the sales channel and cuslomers Tor US. and olhers operations, Tha following i an
ageing analysis of the ade and bilks recenables; net ol allowances for bad and deubliul debls, presented based on
e date of delivery of goods which approomaled the respective dates on which revenue was recognised:

2017
Uss'million
Age
Current 1o 30 days Baz2 ]
31 o050 days 105 55
91 1o 180 days 2 10

Deag o

Belore accepling any new customers, the Group uses past expenence (o assess the polential customess' credit
quality and defines credit limits for the customers, Limils attibuted to cusiomerns are reviewed regularly.

Al December 31, 2017, inclisded n the Group's iade iecehvable balances aie debtors with an aggregate camying
amound of LIS106 million (2016 USES0 million) that are aged between 31 and 180 days and gast due st the end
of repesting period for which the Growp has: not provided Tor an impaimment loss considering the: payment history
and et substantisl repayment was notisd subsequent 1o the end of the reporting peiod, The Group does nel hold
any collsterasl over these batances. The average age of these receivables as at Docember 31, 20017 is 62 days {2016;

65 days).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

23, Trade and Bills Receivables (Contied)
In determining the recoverabilily of tade recevables, the Growp monitoss change in the credit quality of
trade recenables since the credil was granted and up 1o the reporting date. The directors considered that the
concerdation of credit risk is limited due to the cuslomer base being large and unrelted.
Mo interest is charged on trade receivatdes. Allowances on biade receivables are made based on estimated
Imecoverable amounts from the sakes of goods by reference lo past default cxperience and oljective evidences of
mpairment detenmined by the diference befween the canrying amount and the present value ol the estimate future
cash flows discountod at the onginal effective inferest rate.
Mcrvement in the alkwances Tor bad and doubitil debits:
2017 2014
WS million LI5S millicn
At Janusny {8} {7}
Currency realignment {1} =*
Recognesed during the yeat LiH] {2}
Rewversed duning the year = 1
At December 31 {103 8}
The allowances for doubliul debis represented individually impaired trade receivables which bave been placed
under Bquidation or in severe financial difficulties.
24, Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

2017 2014

UsEmillion US$ million

Loans receivables a1 &40
Deposits paid (o suppliens 17 21
Deprorsits placed with linanceal institutions 10 -]
Derivative financial instruments (Mobe 25) 16 20
Value-added lax mecenables T4 1044
Prepayments a8 28
Amcamnts dise from joint ventures (Mobe A5k - 4
(thers 57 50
263 27h

Anatysed lon reporiing parposes as

Current pssels 222 et
MNom-current assels a1 A7
253 275

- Lems than LISH] miben
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

25. Available-For-Sale lnvestmenls

2017

USS million

Unilisted investments:
Ecquity mvestmasnts 7 5

Analysed fof teporling purposes a;
Current assels -

Mon-current assets 7 5

A December 31, 2017, the Group's available-for-sale investments represented unlisted investments in equily
securities issued by private entities which do nol have a quoted markel price in an active markel. They are
messured al cost less impaimment &l the end of the repoting penod because the mnge o ressonable lar valee
estimates are o significant that the directors of the Group are of the opinion that their fair valie canmol be
measured reliably. The managemenl considered that such available-for-=ale investments as at the end of the
repoding period are held for strategic piipeses and are not (o be depesed of in the foreseeable future.

26. Derivative Financial Instruments
Derivatives umier hedge accounting

2017
Assets Luabilities:
UsS'million WSS millinm
Far vakee hedges
Gaain conbacts 1 - 1 -
Cash flow hedges
Foreign cmency lomward -4 - -+ 2
Gaain conhacls B 18 2 [
Livistosk contradts -* 2 2 1
interest rate conbracts = = = 2

Lisss than LEE ] million
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Derivative Financial Instroments (Coaifssd)

Fair value hedges

The Group enbered into derfeativg drstruments (primanly forward conlracts) o minimse it exposune 1o @i value
changes of ils commaments o buy graens, The directors of the Comgany consider that those demative instruameants
are highly effective hedging instruments. Major tesms of the dervative instruments are sef out below:

Hotional wolume

Darivative insiniments Minimum Maximum Maturity

At December 31, 2007

Commodiies contracts

Com 1, G50, 00 GRSE, OO Biustek ug bo March 2019
At December 31, 2006
Commodities contracts

Corn [RiEAE LT 11,706,000 Bushels up to March 2018

Buring the year ended December 31, 2017, the hedge was highly effective in hedging the fai value exposire to the
grain price movernents and a5 & resull the canying amount of the commilments to bay graines wares adjusted by kess
than USEL milllon (2016: kess than LSE] mallion) which was mchided in prolit or loss al the same time when the
derrative instruments were included in profil or koss in both years,

Cash flow hedges

A December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, the Group had the following foregn exchange Iomard contracts
desgnated as hghly effective hedging instruments in order Lo manage the Group's foesgn curmency ceposung in
rekation b forekan currency forecast sales and purchases.

A5 al December 31, 2017, there were defermed net losses of USELG millien (2016 net losses of LSS5 million) in
edquity, ned of tax Credit of LIEET million (2016 net of ta expense of LIEEL1 million) inchuded in other resenag,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

26, Denvalive Financial Instruments (Contied)

Cash HNow hEﬂEE’E- [Comilinued)

Thie Group emterad into dernative mstmements, such as rlies, Svaps and options conbracts desiggnated as highly
effective hedging instruments in arder fo manage the Group's axposure to the varabildty in egected luture cash
Tkews alfributable 1o commodily price risk associated with the forecasted sale ol live hogs, lresh pork, and the
forecasted purchase of com and soybean meal as well as cash flow interest rate risk associated with floating rate
borrowings. The tenms of the derivative instruments have been negotiated to match the terms of the respective
designated hedged items. The magor terms of these contracts are as Tollows:

Molional valume

Derivative [nstruments Minifenisim Maximum Melric Maturily

Al Decernbaer 31, 2017

Commadities conliacts
Lean hogs 198, 720,000 1867 480,000 Pounds up to Decembier 2018
Cotn F0,610 000 210, 0RCk (00 Bushals up to Decembaer 2000
Soybecan meal J63,5900 1,770 800 Tons up to Decembaer 2020
lewtizresst b contracls 16717216 619,596,316 UsE U Lo Mowembrer 2019
Foreign curtency lorwand 7,620,397 45, 316,424 Varkes up to Seplember 2018
conbracts CUIrencies

A December 31, 2016

Commaodities. contracts
Lean hogs 127 340,000 1,515 8000000 Pounds up to Septembser 2017
Com 34,660, 000 102,610, (K0 Bushels i to December 2018
Seybrean meal 315,600 1,270,060 Tons up to December 2018
Inderest mabe comiacts 17,238 832 618,385 250 UsH upr t Nowember 200%
Fraezan currency lanward 14,811,932 51923855 Manous up to October 2007
conliacts CUNTENGHES

Fair value bosses of LIS$11 million (2016: fair value gains of US$18 million) have been recognised in ather
comprehensive income (expense) duning the vear ended Decermber 31, 2017,

Detivatives not under hedge accounting

2017
Assuts Linbilitins
USE million WSS million
Forgdgn currency forwand = =% - =
Grain contracts 4 1 2 -*
Livestock conlracts 12 5 5 -
Energy contracts B 1 8 -
23 7 15 -
H e thamy LS8 millipn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
F the year eeded December 31, 2077

26. Dervative Financial Instruments (Continged)
Derivatives not under hedge accounting (Contmucsd)
Major tesms of such desivalives are a5 follows:

Darnvalive (askromeinls

Rotional wolumsa

Minmam

Maximiom

Melnc

Malirity

At December 31, 2017

Commmodities contracts
‘Wheat
Soybean mesl
Lean hogs

Com
Siybans
Matural gas
Live cattle
Cre=el
At Decermber 31, 2006
Commodd®ics conbescts
Wieat

Soybean meal

Lesan hvogs
Com

Soybeans
Matural gas
Live cattle

Forelgn currency forwand
confracts

1640

5,000, 00d)
20, 195, (00
10, 0

8,535,004

12,500,000

200,004

A5, e
55, 000

7,750,004

8865511

355,000
3300y
232,160,000
41,810,000
{5, 230, (0}

17,570,000
10.98:0,000

19,320,000

5, 190,000
A810,000
A, 20,00
9,310,000
810,000

10,550,000
13,440,000

77,633,021

Bushet
Toirs

Pouineds.
Bushits
Blushseds

MMEBTL

Galloays.

Bushals
Tons

Pounds
Bushek

MMBTLI

Powinats

Varios
CURenciEss

up fo July 2018

up o July 2018

up to Febouary 2019
up to March 2019
up to January 2019

ug o Movemdss 2020
up to August 2018

up to Decembes 2018

up o March 2017
ugp fo August 2017
i to Aprl 2018
up o March 2018
up o lanusary 2018

up to December 2018
ug to Aprl 2017

i to Febiuary 2017

Dregivative financial pssets and Rabilities of US$2 milion, US$14 million, USEF million and LES$4 million ane
recorded as non-current assels, cumment assets, non-current Babslites and current kabdities, respectively.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

27. PledgedRestricted Bank Deposits and Bank Balances and Cash
Al Docember 31, 2017, bank balances cany inferes] al markel @tes ranging from 0001% lo 625% (2016: 001%

to 48000 per annum. The pledped and restricled bank deposits carry fioed interest rates from O,001% o 3.90%
{2016: 0L01% 1o 3.50%) per annum.

A1 Decemiber 31, 2017, pledged bank degosits represent deposits of US$ET million (2016; US$S millien) pledged to
beankes for securing banking and Irading facillfies such as letters of aedit and bank loans granted 1o the Group, and
USE3 million (2016: LUS$S milbon) pledged for securing a loan rom a third party. These pledped bank deposits will
be released wpon the settlement of relevant borrowings of the release ol the relevant tacilities,

A December 31, 2017, a subsidiary of the Group which engaged in linancial services, is govemnad by the law to
place USEE3 million (2016: USEA2 million) o a stalutory diepostt in the Peogde’s Bank of Clina.

28. Trade and Bilis Payables
Thi average cledit period on purchase of goods is abost 30 days in China operations and the credit tenms vary
dependng on e vendos for LS, and ofber opesations, The Group has Ginanctal ik manggement polbcies in place
1o ervsure that all payables are paid within the credit imeframe

2017

LSS 'mitlion

Trade payables 1,076 B4

The lollowing & an anahss of bade payabdes based on the e date:

2017
USS mallion
Age
0 bo 30 days 1,058 832
A1 1690 deys 13 1=
9] 1o 180 day= 2 2
181 1o 365 days 3 5]

1,076 an4
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
F the year eeded December 31, 2077

28,  Accrued Expensas and Other Payables

2017
LSS million
Acciped stall costs 486 447
D posits rsceivesd 190 216
Sales 1ebates payalbles 247 211
Payabiles i respect of acquisition of property, plant and equipment 146 119
Insurance payatdes 141 117
Interest payable 28 =6
Balance of contingent conskdesation in respect of
acquisilion of subsidarnes 17 a3
Growers payables 1 35
Perssion liability (Mote 34) T2 33
Arncaints duse b sssociates (Mobe A5(b) g ’
Drerpvative inancial mstruments (MNote 26) ) 11
Acctued professional expenses 4a 3
Aocmwed rent and ulilities R et |
Dvadend peyable 13 17
Other accried expenses 56 =]
Other payables 200 126
181 1,584
Analysed for reporting purposes as:
Curren| labuldties 1472 Laz2
Mor-current liabilities 158 162
1,671 1,584
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

30.

Obligations Under Finance Leases

The Gioup has kesed certasn ol ds buikdings, machinery, vehicles and other equapment under linance leases. As
al December 31, 2017, the lease term ranged fiom 2 1o 23 years (2016: 2 to 24 vears), Interest rates underying all
oiligations wnder inance leases aro wrinble at respective conbract dales with an average iale of 0.3% per annum
{or the year ended December 31, 2017 (2016 0.3% per annumy).

Presen! valoe of

Minimum loase paymonts minimum lease payments

20017 016 2m7
WSS milllan LISE millian UsSS milldon

Amounts payable under finance beases:

Withan one yésr 1 2 5 1
One 1o bwo years 2 2 2 1
Two to five years 5 q q 3
Adber five years 21 21 17 15
33 28 24

Less: Fulure finance charges {3 {5
Present value of lease obligations 28 24
Less: Amwdnts due for setilerment

within one year and shown

uvder current liabilities

{included in acorued expenses and

other payable) (Mote 23) (5} (1)
fumouints. due afber ooe year 23 23

The Group's obligations under finance lesses are secured by the lessor’s charge over the leased assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
F the year eeded December 31, 2077

31. Bomowings

2017

W58 mbllion

Senbor unsecured notes:

7750 senion unsecured nobes due July 2017 - 4354
52500 senion unsecured notes due August 2018 = L
H.BFE% senior unsecured nobes due August 2021 - £l
6.620% senir unsecured nobes dus Auguest 2022 - o
2.700% senior unsecured notes due January 2000 158 -
2.650% senior unsecured nobes due October 2021 396 -
3.350M% senior unsecured nobes duse February 20022 87 -
4. 2504% senior unsecured notes due February 2027 594 -
1,785 1,882
Medivme e unsecuted nobes 154 14
Bank loans (Mobe {iX:
Secured 107 89
Linsecuted 1,015 Fad
Leans from third parties {Maobe (il
Secued 1 !
Unsecamed 2 2
Oher loan (Note ik 42 -
3,106 2862
Bank overdratts {Mabe (iv)) 92 16
The borrowings other than bank overdralls are repayable
s Bollbowerss (Nastes (3
‘Within one year . [441] Ga5
Oni to bwi years 1] 574
Towo o Fve years 1580 389
Alftet Tive years 547 G503
3,106 2862
Less: Amounts due within one year shown under curent labilities (80 (555)
Arvapnts e aller one v 2297 1.867
Todal borrowanges alhes than bank overdralts:
Al fiwed rates 2452 2359
Al flslng ales B14 E]
3,106 2852
W GRDUT LUIWETED  AMNLUAL REPORT 2017 127
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For Eht year énded Decemnbar 31, 2017

31. Borrowings (Conlinuid)

2017

USS million

Analysis of bormowings by currency;

Denominated m LSS 2,440 2507
Dencminated in RME 625 283
Denominaled m RON T8 a3
Dencminated in HES 34 -
Drenominated in FLN 27 ]
Dencminated m Bailzsh Pound - 3
Denominated in ELIR 2 2
3108 2862
Heses
(1] Fioed ok Buinkc lobii vy inbaie! o 1 oid mbed rigdeng 1o 2.26% 10 5700 (2016 245% 10 5705} and Moslmg rales isnging frém

HIBCE ¥ (ABR o WIBOR + A 20K per annam at December 31, 2007 (2016 UBOA + 0.75% bo EIBOR +» 2 Bk}
(1] Loans Srom third partes carmy mbsrests ol Foed rabes of 0.9% ped anmum 8t Dedermiber 31, 2017 L2016 095 per anmumi)

L] Cn Wazeh 17, 2017, the Gioup anfensd inlo & ase spieement wih & bank in Chins io boimos 1000 klograms of gold ki ons yast and
Fran contmrenty wobd e g:\ld-n-m:h:mgo{:\-l cesh On lie s dale, the Group ertered inby a loremd conltract with the same bank &
Furciad g g quantiy of okl 31 3 1oodd BmoGe A3 [ Baithed o ENE mahunty dase of The &}U i it ACTANDErTANL, ol B Dur pOsE
of seitfement of the bomnowed pold. The risk of gold price Fuclustion during e gold boinosing period i borme by the bank and not by the
Gigesh, Bamed or the sulbstonce of the ssrangement, the Gaoup ScCoUnoHT i these ITIagemenis 84 financing Anangaments io bomomw
ey Troem 1B bank. The sffeciye inlsiml rile of e aboes arangerment & 3 50% pér annum

il Bank overdrafts o Decamber 31, 20U T catry inneesr 81 Soxteg ramed rngmg o 3000 w4 35% pe anmuem (2016 3,500 pad anaum

¥l The srnomints due s Dirend on g hadubed ropayrmind dabes sab ool B the a0 Agreemenst

The Group's borrowings contain affiimative and nepative covenants that, among olher things, Bmit of restrict the
Group's ability to create bens and encumbrances, incur debl, enter into quidation, enter into change of contro
Transactions of change the soope of the busivess, or dispose of or fransber sassets, ineach case, sulbject bo cartain
qualifications and exceptions. The Group has no malenal dedaull in payment of the bank bosowings, nor did it
bresch any relevant finance covenamts for the years ended December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016, Details of
anssets pledped o secure borowings are sel out i nobe 43,

32, Deferred Taxation
Four e purpose o presentation in the consolidaled statement of linancid position, cedain defened lax assels and
liabilities have been ofiset, The following s ihe anahsis of the defened ta balances Tor linacial repodtig papose:

2017
LSS million
Deferred tax assets 58 B
Deferred tax habilitics {639} (887
=81} {859)
174 Wi GEOOP LINITID AMNLIAL FEPOAT 2067
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Deferred Taxation (Conlinued)
The Tollowing are the neajor defemed tax assetsmbilities tecognised by the Group, and the movements therson
during the yes;

Tax effect of deductibie lemporary diflerences:

(LTS o
Liea al
T
ladiie ) Fir sl

L H i - L]
gk Jrralaayg g m erdeabe
Kmizin e plat anf it Eekdm g 1 whged  lipon
Wik opgmd  mieis ehes Tolsa I & ihmace

by ], Tl = k] ] - | ] e i H] ] 1]
[upmicy eaigrntt » & e - ) , - i .
(oo fchomgeed| ookt o ke - L Bl - [ i & i {185
(ool ichuce| ity - - . ! B - il !
I Dbt 31, 201 ared vy 1, 2017 < ] a - L1 5] 12 1] il
mw Kl o K K 3 A - = ¥
Recprdion ol ubridene: (ke 51 - - - - L - - ] &
(e ichisged | ool o e . i1 § o H n 1k} a m
ot b 08 . - - . . & - i 1
Rbcmmbir 31 207 = i ] ) H 1 : B #

Tax altect of taxable temporary difletences:

Fasit walue Fair valne
Undiafriboled changes ariting changes mising Dilees Lixable

Boceleraled lax carpippi ol lom banidmess  from h‘iﬂﬂ“‘u’.ﬂ] lemaporary
deprecishim subs i diaties anibikathan sseli difl erences

Al January 1, 2016 [53M @3 {473 ey (1,083
Cutrency redlignmeni o s e _ [l g
(1> karped ) eredied 1o prft or kes [35) n - - (15) (28)

&1 December 31, 2016 and

Jmnuary 1, 2017 [578 % (473} - L] (1102
Curmncy realsgremen (L] - (B} (2 (1%
Aoquisgion of subsiianes (Mo 35) -* - (2 - - &
(Chamged] cradded lo proft o sz 198 {18} 23 (5 ar 200
(1> Parped ) evedited to quity (] - & = - !
Al Becember 31, 2017 (284 an HET) % {3 {846}

= L thin LISH] milicn
Wi GROUT UIWETED  ANNLEAL REPORT 2017 (]
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

32, Deilerred Taxation {Contionsed)
M December 31, 2017, the Group had wssed b losses of US$326 million (2016 USE17T million) awailable for
offset against fulure profits of which a defemed tax assel has been recognised in respect of LISE279 mallion {2016:
LE$141 million} of such losses. Mo deferred lax asset has been recopnised in respect of such losses of US$47
rrillicny (2016 LESS36 mullicn) due fo unprediclabiity of Tuture profit sbreamy. There are no unrecogmised tax kases
al Decemiber 31, 2017 (2016 LES$4 million) that may be camed forward indefinitely and other losses will expire on
of before 2037,

The enrecognised tax sses will expite on or before 2037 a5 below;

2017
usS million
By end of

2017 = 1
2018 3 3
2019 3 ]
2020 B 3
after 221 35 22
a7 32

A8 e end of the reporting period, the aggregate amount of lemporary différences associated with undistributed
eamings of subsidiaties for which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised was LIS$H1989 million (2016
L5331, 108 milion). Mo Eability has been recognised in respect of these differences because the Group is i a
position 1o contral U tming of the eversal of the temporary differences and e Group has determéned that
this postion of profits derived 1rom these opetating subsidiaries will be refaived by these subsidiaries and will
nol be distibuted = the foresesable fulure Theselore, it s probable that such differences will nol reverse in the
Toreseeabie tulure

33, Deferred Revenue

2017

LSS million

Govesnimenl grant
Current {included in acorued expenses and other payables) (Mobe 29} e
Mei-current 1

oo

n 3

The deterred revenue represents governament grant recelved in relabion to construction of property. plant and
ecquipment of the Group. As the related assels ae under constiuction, the grant received from the government will
be released b profl of loss @5 other income over the useful lves of the retated amounts after the constiection is
coimphated.

L than LISE] mediion

13 WH GROCP LIMITID ANNUAL SEPCHT 2067
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Pension Liability and Other Retirement Benefits

Defined benefit plans

The group enfities which opemate in LS, operate funded defined benefit scheme Tor all their qualified employess.
Pension benglits provided by the Group are currently ciganised primasity through defined bencfit pension plans
which cover virtually all U5, emgloyees and certain foreign employees of the Group. Salaried employees are
povided benefils based on years of senice and averape salary levels. Hourly employeses are provided benel@ts of
stated amaunls for each year of service

The defined benefit plan i administered by a separate fund that & legally separated from the enfity, The board of
the pension fumd & composed of an equal number of representatives trom both employers, ermployees and (oimern)
employees, The Board of the pension Tund & required by kw and by its articles of association 1o act in the interest
of the lund and ol all relevant skakehwlders in the scheme, Le. aclive employees, inaclive employees, relinees,
employers, The board of the pension fund is responsible for the investment policy with regard 1o the assets of the
fund.

Unehar the plar, the employees are entitled 1o reliiement benelits vanang between 4006 and 45% of final salary on
attainment of a retirement age of 65. Mo other post-retirement benelits are provided to these employees.

The plan in LS. exposes the Group to actuaral ks such as imvestment nsh, interest iale risk, ongevity risk and
salary fsk are a5 follows:

Investment risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan lability i calculated wsing a decount mte determined by reference 1o
high cuueality corporate bond yiebds; if the return on plan assel & below this rate, i will create a plan deficit, Currently
the plan has a relatively bakanoed investment in equity securities, debt instuments and real estates: Due fo the
lesng-ber nature of the plan kabadity, the board of the pensson fund considers IE s approgaiste thal a reasonabe
portion of the plan assets should be invested in equaty securities and in real estates to leverage the return generated
by Ehe Tundd.

Inferest sk
A decresase in e nterest ate of Ted income products will increase the plan lability, howeves, this will be partially
offset by.an increase in the returm on the plan's debt investments,

Langevily risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan fability & calculated by eference to the best estimate of the monality
of plan parbeipants both during and altes their employment. An inciease in the lile expectancy of the plan
participants will increase the plan’s abifity,

Salary risk

The present value of the defined benefit plan lability is calculated by reference to the fulure salaries of plan
participants. &s such, an increse in thi sakry of the plan participants will incresse the plan's ability,

Price risk
An increas in the market price of equity investments will incresse the plan assets,

Thee st recent sciuaial valmations of plan assels and the present value of the defined benetl obligation wers
camied out at Deosmber 31, 2007 by Mercer (US), Inc., The present vadue of the delined benefit obligation, and
the refated cument service cost and past senvice cost, were messured wsing the Projected Unit Credit Method,

W GROUT UINETED  AMNUAL REPOAT 2017 13}
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

34,

Penszion Liability and Other Retirement Benafits (Contied)
Defined benefit plans (Conlimed)
The principal assumptions whed (on the purposes of the achsarkal valustions were as bollows;:

Valuation at Decamber 31,

2017
[hscount mie 3.90% 4.55%
Expected rate of salary mcrease 45 A,

The actuarial valuation showed that the market value of plan assets was USEL 77T million (2016; USS1.6574
millicn),

Amounts recognised in profit or loss i respect of these defined benedit plans ane as follows:

2017 “t) [
LSS million LI5S million

Servioe cosl:
Current setvice cosl 57 51
et nterest expense 14 15
Total 71 (3]

Hemeasurement of the sl dedined benelit liabilily included in dher comgachensive axpense ae as folloys:

207
USE miflion
Retum on plan assets (excluding amounts meheded in net interest agpensel 108 31
Actuarial lasses ansing foom change in financial assumplions {208} 80
{100 (45)
Delerred taxation (Note 323 (5 12
Total {105} {313
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

Pension Liahility and Other Retirement Benedits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Continuedy

The amount included in the consolidated staterment of financial position agising from the Group's obligation in
respect of its defined beneli plans is as follows:

2017 e

W55 'million LIS mmillion

Presant value of funded defined banelit obligations. 2138 1,855
Fair value of plan assets (1,771 (L574)

Funded status and net hability assing irom defined beneiit obligation 3g2 321

Other retirernent benefits, nel 10 14

372 a3l

Included in:

Cuirreand. sabuldicss (Mobe 23) T2 ]

Non-current labilities 368 03
Ot non-cuerent assels {8 {5}

3z 31

Movements in the present valee of the defined benelit oblpations in the cumrent year were as follows:

2017
UsS'million 155 milhon
Defined benelt obligation at January 1 1,895 L7853
Current servioe cosl 57 al
Inberest eost 84 gl
Benefils paid (10%5) (13}
Remeasursment ksses;
Aetusiial bsses aiising lrom change in Tmancal asumptons 208 a0
Drefined benefit obligaton at December 31 2138 Laas

W GROUT UINETED  AMNUAL REPOAT 2017 1Z3
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Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

34,

Penszion Liability and Other Retirement Benafits (Contied)
Defined benefit plans (Conlimed)
Movements in the present value of the plan assels in the current year wese &s follows:
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Fair value of plan assels a1 tanuary |1
Ilerest moome
Contnbaions from the employers
Benedits paid
Expenses paid
Remeasurement gaims:
Retum on plan assets {escluding amounts included in
e Anberest expense)

Fair vahse ol plan assets &l December 31

2017
USE mdllion
1.574 1322
T0 G
134 255
{105) (B0
(4} -
(L] 31
1,777 1.574

The tair values of the plan assets as at the end of the reparting period tor each categoy, are as follows:

Fanr valos of plan assels

al December 37,

Cash and cash equivalenis
Equity securities

Debt securities

ARcinative invesimenls
Limited parimesships
Isurance conlracts

Total tair value
Livssedtied transachons, nel

Total plan assets

20017

LSS million
178 17
1,161 100
335 200
18 B2
82 G4
1 1
1,845 1,540
{8} 34
1,777 1,574

The fa values of the above equity and debt instruments are determined based on quoted market prices in active
meckets wheress the fair values of allermative mvestments, limited pentnerships and insurance conbracts ae not
besed on quoted market prices in active markets. As at December 31, 2017, US$684 millien, US$1.065 million
and USHES2 million plan assets (2016 USFSE0 million, US$ES5 million and LIS$55 milion) are classified as Lovel |,

Lewvel 2 and Level 3 respectivedy,

The aclhual return on plan assels was 7.90% (20016: 7.91 %) over 5 years,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Pension Liahility and Other Retirement Benedits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Continuedy

Signaicant actuarial assumplions for the determination o the defined oblgation ane discount rate, expected salary
increase and morality. The sensilivity analyses below have been determined based on regsonably possibla changes

of the respective assumptions occurming 2t the end of the reporting peried, while holding all other assumptions
comstant.

I e decount @le s 50 basis points higher (kwer), the delined beneld obligation woukd decrease (increase} by
US$L56 rrillion (2016: decrease {increase) by US$133 millicn),

The sensitivity analysis presented above may ot be representalive of the actual change in (e defined banefil
obligabon & it & unfikely thai the change in assumplions wold ocour m Bolabon ol ond: another as some of the
assumpdions may be comeiated,

Furthevmioee, in presenting the above sensitivily analysis, the present value of the defined benefil obligalion has
been calculated usimg the Projected Unil Credit Melhod at the end of e reporting period, which s the same
as that applied in calculating the defined benefit obfigation liabdity recognised in the consofidated statement of
financial position

Pension plan assets may be invested in cash and cash equivalents, equities secunities, debt securities and
altermative assets (including atermative investments, limited partrerships and nsurance contracts), The investment
pelisy for the pesssion plans i o balance wsk and returmn through a diversified portiolo of high-quality equity amd
fined income seouities. Equity tasgets for the pension plans are as indicated in B following table. Matrity for fived
income securiies is managed such that sulticient Bauidity exists to meel near-term benefit payment obligations
The plans retain outside investiment advisors (o manage pan investments within parameters eslablished by the plan
rusheses.

The Tollowinig table peesents the s valee of The qualified pension plan assels by major assel calegory as ol the
end of the reporting pesicd, The allocation of the pension plan assels i based on the target rmnge presented in the
foallowingg talile.

Al Decembar 31, 2017

UsS'millien  Torget renge

Assol categories
Cash and cash equivalents, net of usettled

tran=achions 110 D= 151 (%
Equity securities 515 I0-30% 1,106 I0-50%
Dbt sectmities og2 35-555% ] 33-55%
Altemafive assels 170 5-20% 117 5-20%

Taal m 1.574
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

34. Pension Liability and Other Retirement Benafits (Contined)
Defined benefit plans (Conlimed)
The Group expedts 1o make a contribution of UIS$135 million 1o the defined benefit plan during the next financis
b

The Tollowing are descriptions ol the valuation methodologies and key inputs used o measure pension plan assels
recorded at fair alue:

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash equivalents include highly liquid investments with ooiginal maturfties of three months or less. Due 1o their
shovt-term nature, the canrying amount of ihese nsements apgroximates the estimated i walue, Actively traded
mondy menkel funds are measured @ their net assel walues, which approamales B salue, and chssified as Level 1.
The lair values of cestain money markel funds tor which quoted prices are avalable but aded less frequently hanse
been classified as Level 2.

Equity securilies

‘When available, the lain values of equity securities are based on quoted prices in active markets and classified as
Level 1. Level 1 financial instruments inchede highly bauid instruments with quoled prices, such as equities and
b funds traded in active markels.

If qucted prices are nod available, tain vabues are obtained from paicing senices, broker quctes o other model-based
waluation techniques wath obseralde inpuls and classibed as Level 2. The nature of these equily securitses mchude
securities o which quoted prices ae available bull traded less Trequently, securities whose tair value has been
derived using & model wihere inpas o the model are direclly obsenable in the mamkel, o can be derived principally
Trowm on coaroborated by obsenable madket data and seournties that ave alued using other financal instruments, Be
parameters of whach can Be direclly observed. Level 2 equity securilies include poelen s stock and commungkd
Tunds that are not actively raded,

Deht securities

The law values of debd securibes aae oblained lrom gricing senvices, baoker quoles o other moded-based waluaton
techniquies with observable inputs and dassilied as Level 22 The nature of these debl securities inchede avstruments
for which quoted prces are avallable but fraded less frequently, mstruments whose tair value has been derived
using a model whera inpuls 1o the modd are direclly observable in the marked, of can be defived principally
Trowm o corrobosated by observabde markel data and secwilies thal are valued using other financial instruments,
the pammeters of which can be directly observed. Level 2 debt securities include matual funds, asset-backed
secapies, emerging markel secunities, corporabe debl ecurflies and povernment debd secuilies.

Alternalive investments

The tair values of aBematve investments ane oblamed fom prcing services, broker quotes o olher model-hased
valuation techniques with cbservable inputs and classified as Level 2 The nalure of these afiemative investments
nclade instmaments Tor which quaied peces are avaibbble bul faded less frequently, instiuments whose fair valee
has been denved using a model where inputs to the model are directly observable in the market, or can be derved
prmcipally from of corroborated by obsenable markel dala and securities thal are valued using other financial
instruments, e paamelens of which can be directly observed. Level 2 altermative investments include diversilied
imvastrment Tunds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Pension Liahility and Other Retirement Benedits (Continued)

Defined benefit plans (Continuedy

Limited partnerships

Tha waluation of imited partnesship vestments requines the use of significant unobsenable inps due to the
absence of quoted marked prices, inhesent tack of lquiddy and kong term nalure of such assets and are classified as
Leneel 3. These inveshments are initially valued at cost with quarterly valuations perdonmed wlilsing avallable markel
data o determane the fair valee of these mvestments. Such market data consists primarily of the observations of
trading multiples of public companies considered comparable to e vestments, with adjustments. for nvestment-
specific Bsues, the lack of guidity and obher Bers,

Insurance contracts

The valuation of these guasnteed annuity msurance contracts = prmanly tased on quoled prices in aclive markels
wilh adjustments Tor unobsenable inputs caused by the unique nalure of apphing investment eamings a5 part of
the participation guarantes. Due b these unobsenable inpuls and the long-lenm nature of these investments, the
conbracts are classified as Level 3.

Defined contribution plans

The Group's qualdying employess in Hong Kong participate in MPF in Hong Kong. The assets of the MPF are held
separately from those of the Group in fund under the controd of tustes. Under the MPF scheme in Hong Kong,
the employer and it employees are each required 10 make contributions 1o the scheme at 5% of the employecs’
refevant income, subjed toa cap of monthly relevant income of HEE30,000, Contributions o the scheme vest

The emphyess of the Groups China subsideanes are members of the stale-managed refirement benelis scheme
opemated by the China govermment. The subsidiaries are roquined to contribute a cerain percentage of Their payroll
1o the retirement bepelits scheme 1o fupd the benefils. The only obdigations of the Group with respect to the
retirerment benefits schems is 1o make the required conlributions under the schame

The Group has defined contribution plans (401{K) plans} covering sutstantially all LLS. employess, The Group's
contributions. to the plans ane primarily based on each contribution and cannol exceed the maximum allowabile for
e P poses,

The amount charged 1o profit o koss of approximately LS$90 million duning the yvear ended December 31, 2017
(2006: U538 million) represents contiibulion paid of payatile to the pans by the Group al rates specilied in the
mules of the plans.

Business Combinations

O Mowenler 21, 2016, the Group entered into a delinithee agreement with an independen third party T the
acquisition of the enlee equity inteeest in Cloughety Packing, LLC (“Clougherty”). The acquisilion was made a5 pai
of e Group's strategy fo expand and strengthen its vertically integrated supply chain with esisting profitatde fresh
and packaged meats businesses and provide the Group with an immediate enfry inte the LS. West Coast mekel
The acopuisition was completed on lamsary 3, 2017,

On June 1, 2017, the Group acquired the entire equity interest in Pini Polkka Sp. 7 oo, Hambinges Pine Sp. 2
oo, and Royal Chicken Sp. z oo, (coflectively, "Pini Packaged Meats”) from an independent thisd party. The

acquislion was masde as part of M Group's strategy to strengihen its verbcally integrated supply chain in Poland
and incressing s production of lgh-qualty packaged meats products,
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

35. Business Combinations (Confinued
On June 22, 2017, the Group also acquired the enfire equity inferest in Cebus Glycoscience, Ine ("Cebus™) from
an independent third pany. The acquisition lormed part of the Gioup's new bloscience group, & stratesic plattorm
1o levemdge by-products from the meal production process (o developiment of pharreceuticals, nubraceuticals and
medical device solubions.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and Eabilities of the acquisitions as &l lhe dates of acquisttions were as
Tl b

mcognised an

silion

LISE millicey
Paopeerty, pas and equipment 173
Biclogical assets 19
Intangible assets d0
Ivventonies 37
Trade and bl recenables a2
Defereed tax assels 4
Bank balances and cash 18
Trade and bifls payables (&
Acerued experses and othe pavables (35)
Borrowings (56}
Ot Bl fies (25)
Total identifiable net assels al lan value I3s
Goochwill 20
Saflisfied by cash 165

The Group incurred transaction costs of LIS$ES million for these acquisitions, These transaction costs have been
e peensed and are mcleded in other expenses i prodit o loss,

An analysis of the cash flows n respect of e acquisitions of the above subsidianes & as lolloss:

Cash consideration {165)
Bamk bakinoes and csh acouined 18
Met autfbow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash Hows used in inesting aclivites (147
Transadtion costs paid during the year included in cash flows from operating activities. 4]
{150
45 W GROGE LIMITID ANNLUAL BEPORT 2017
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

35. Business Combinations (Continesd)
Since the aoquisition, Cloughesty, Pini Packaged Meats and Celsus contributed USE559 mallion to the Group's
revenue avd USHEAT million 1o the consolidated prold belore tax for the year ended December 31, 2007

Had Ihe acquisitions of Clougherty, Pini Packaged Meats and Gelsus faken place al the beginning of the year,
the: resvenue of the Group and the paodit of the Group for the year ended December 31, 2017 would have been
LIS$E2, 379 million and USH1 319 million, respectively,

36. Nofe to the Consalidated Statement of Cash Flows
Changes in liabilities arising from Gnancing aclivities

Enrrl:wir:ﬁ:';. and

other loans

and obligations

Diwidend under linance

payable lea

LIS% million LISS millicon

Al Jargny 1, 2017 17 2886
Changes from firancing cash hows (58] &4
Inberest expense and ameatisation of transaction costs - 30
Loss on debt edingushment - 70
Increase arsing from acquesition of subsidiaries - 5h
Dividends declased 663 -
Currency realignment 1 28
Al December 31, 2017 13 A134

37. Share Capilal

Humber of
shares Amaunl

rmillican LSS million

Ordinary sharis of US$0.000] each:

Authoised;
Ab January 1, 2016, Decembes 31, 2016, lanuary 1, 2017, and
December 31, 2017 50, 0 0 5

Issued and Tully ped:

AR January 1, 2016, December 31, 2006 and January 1, 2017 14, 65107 1
lssue of shares on exsrcise of share opbions (Mateh 1316 =
A Decenber 31, 2017 14,664 23 1

[T The sham cdons smcied Auring S yhar ane Unaer the pee- PO ghare option st

All the shares issised duving the year rank pan passu with the then exdsting shares in all iespects,

. Lo dhaen UISET mibee
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

38. Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments
The Group manages fis capitsl o ensure that entities in the Group will be able o conlinue as & going concerm
while maximesing the relum to owners through the optimisation of the debt and equity batance, The Group's overall
shatery remains unchanged during the yors.

The capital struciure of the Group consisls of nef debl. which includes the borowings disclosed in nole 31, net
of cash and cash equivalents and equity atfributable o owners of the Company, comgrising ssued share capital,
reseaves and retaned profits,

Categories of financial instniments

Financial assels
2017
USS million
HAwadable-for-sale investments 7 5
Drerivatives Iinancial assels az2 20
Otfver non-curent assels 130 97
169 122

2017

V5% million

Loans and receivables:

Trade, bilks and other recevables 1,051 878
Pledgedirestricled bank deposils T4 ]
Bank batances s cash 1,371 1,139

2498 2076

Financial liabilities

2017

UsE million

A amortised costs

Teade, bills amd other paryables 1,628 1,300
Bomowngs (fixed and floating rates) 3106 2862
Bank owerdrails a2 16
4826 4178

Dhzrivartives Binancial labditaes 27 11
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Capital Risk Management and Fimancial Instruments (Continusd)

Financial risk management objeclives and policies

The Geougr's major financial instruments include phedped bank deposits, bank balances and cash, availabde-for sake
ineesiments, darivalive financial instruments, iade, bills and other receivables, olfer non-cunent assols, trade, bills
and olfver payables, bomowings and bank overdiaits. Details of the financlal insBuments are disclosed in respective
nofes. The risks associated wilh these fmancial inshiuments nclude masket risk (cumency sk and inlerest iate
risk), credit fisk and liquidity risk. The poficies on how to mitigale these tisks are set out below, Management of the
Group manages and moniters these exposures. to ensure appropieate measures are implemented on a bimely and
atfective mannes,

Markel risk
The Group's acliviles expose il pomarily to the linancial isks of dhanges n loren currency eochange rates and
Inlzresl pabes,

Thiere has been no change 1o the Group's exposure to maikel risks o the manner in which it manages and
s ures e 1isk,

Foreign currency risk management

Certain group entities have cerain forelgn curmency sales, purchases, bank balances and cash and bomowings
demominated n US$ and EUR, which expose the Group to foreign cumency risk. In order to metigate the forzign
currency risks, foreggn curmency forward contracts are entered into by the Group for certain material foreign
cunrency bansactions. The critical lerms ol these foreign currency foreard contracts are similar to those of the
hedged payments and receipts denominated in foreign curmencies. These omign currency Iorward condracts ane
designated &5 hedging Instruments and hedge accounting |5 applied as the contracts are considered highly effective
hedging iters, The carmying amounts of the Group's Toreign cumency denominabed monetany assets and monctary
leabsalitions 2 thee erd of e repo lings period e @s lollows:

2017 a0l
WSS million 1545 millian
Assts
Ush
Bank balanoces and cash 5 107
Trade, bills and other receivables 1 -
ELIR
Bark balances and cash 4 1
Trade, Lills and other receivables 12 27
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Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

38. Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments (¢Colingied)
Foreign currency risk management {Conlimued)
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2017
USE millinn
Licablitees
LIsE
Trade, bills and olher payables T 45
Boarowwings 2 142
ELIR
Trade, bills and olher payables 16 13
B rowings 2 2
Sensitivity analysis

The Group is masnly exposed Lo the elifect of LISE against the lunctionsl cunencies of respedive group entilies, The

directors of the Comgany consider that e risk exposed to the effect of ELIR 15 nol material,

The following table details the Group's sensiivity to & 5% (20016: 5%) increase and decrease in LIS$ against
funchonsl cumencies of respective group entities. which represent management’s assessoent of the reasonably
possible change in loreign exchange rales. The sensitivity analysis includes only oulstanding Toteign cumency
denominated monetary items and adjusts ibels tansbiion o the funclional currencies of respective group entities
at year end for & 5% (20016: 5%) change in foreign curmency ates, A positive (negative) number below indicates an
increase (decrease) in post-tax profit whene USE strengthens 5% (2016: 5%) agginst the rebevant cumency, For a 5%
{2016 5%) weakening of US$H against e relevant currency, there would be an equal amsd opposite impact on e

profit, and the batances below woulbd be negative {positive).

LS8 impact

2017

UsE million LISE milicn

¥ (2

I ranagoment’s opinkn, the sensitivity analysis s unegpresentative of the inherent foregn occhange msk as e

yesae end exposure does not teflect the exposure during the respective year

Interest rate risk management

The Group's fair value intarest rate risk relates primarily (o its available-for-sale investments and ficed-ate
boirowings (see noles 25 and 31 respectively for details). The Group currently dees nol enter info any denvative
conlracts to hedpe ils sxposure to changes in fair values of the available-for-sale investments and fixed-rate
borrowings. However, the managemeant of the Group will consider hedging, significant interest mte exposure should

T e A,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

Capital Risk Managemenl and Fizancial Instrumenis {Conginesd)

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The Group's cash llow interest rate rsk relates prmarily 1o foating rates bank balances, borrowings and bank
overdrafls (see noles 27 and 31 wespectively for details). The Group's exposures o interest rates on financial
labdifies are detalled in the bquidity sk management section of this note.

Sensilivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below have been defesmined based on Ihe exposure o mfesest mbes lor non-desivative
instrarments at the end ol the reporting peried, For floating rates bomowings, bank overdralls and bank balances,
the analyses is prepared assuming the amount of asse and labilty outstanding at the end of the reporting period
was outstanding for the whole year, A 27 basis points increase of decrease is used for China operation and a 25
bests pomls menesse or decrease is used (or operalions oubside China which represenls management’s assessment
of te reasonably possitse chanpe in interest rates.

H inferest rates decreased by 27 basts points in China or 25 basis points anside China and all other vanables were
held constant, the polentd elfect on post-tax profit = as Tollow,

2017

USS'million

Increase in post-tax profit 1 2

There would be an equal and opposite impact on the post-lax profit where the interest ales increased 27 basis
petits iy Ching of 25 bases points outsde China aind 8l athes vanabdes were held constant.

Credit risk management

The Group's credit risk s pnmardy attributable to its trade, bills and olher recesvables, bank balances and pledged
bank deposits. A the end of the reporting period, the Growr's maximum exposure bo credit sk which will cause
a financial koss 10 the Group did 1o tailure to discharge an obligation by the counterpanies and arsing from the
carmying amount of the respective recognised financial assets stated in the consolidated stalement of financial
position.

In order to minemise the cedit risk, management of the Group has delegated a toam responsible for determination
of credit lints, credit apgaovals and other monilsing procedunes to avsure Bl Tollow-up sction is faken o e
overdue debts. In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable amound of each individual debl af the end ol each
reparting peried b snsune e adeguate impairment losses are made for inecoverable amounts. In thes megand, the
management of the Group conseder that the Group's credit risk s sigmilcantly reduced.

The Group has no sgnificant concentration of credit sk on trade, bills and other recenables, with exposune spredd
over 8 lrge number of counterparties and customess.

Liguidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility Tor liguidity risk management rests with Lhe managemmend, which has built an appropaiale
Iactaichty i Bk iaisaaernent fiamework fof the management of the companies compising ke Gioup's shorl, medium
and long-lerm funding and bguidity management requinaments. The Group manages liquidity sk by mamtaining
adequalte reseives and bomowing faclities, by continuously monitoring forecast and achal cash flows and matching
the: matunity profiles of linancial assels and liabilities.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

38. Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments (Colingied)
Interest rate risk management (Continued)
Liguidity risk mamagement (Continued)
As al December 31, 2017, the Group has available unutilised banking facllities of approximately US$2,471 miSion
{2016: USS2 720 million),

The tolkesang table detals the Group's Tevaming contractual matirty fod its non-derative Ginancol katdlities, The
table has been drawn ugp based on the undrscounted cash flows of financial kabilities based on the earliest date on
which fhe Group can be required to pay. The table inchides botly interest and principal cash fows. To the extent
that invlerest rates ane floating, the undiscounted amount B derred rom inferest ate @ the end of the repoing
period.

I additeon, the following table details the Group's analysis of its derivalive financial instruments that settle on a net
baris, based on their fag wlue recorded in labilties as at the end of the reporting peaod.

O demand
and 6 months Blo 1 Io k1] Mare taan

orless 12 mootha 2 years 5 years 5 yean Tokal
Us¥million US§¥millen  U5§million USE'millwa  Us§millon  USEmillion

Al December 31, 2017
Trade and bills pevables 1,073 | - - - 1,076
Cxher payaties 497 - =5 - - 352
Ciligabons undar frence leases 4 2 1 5 21 i3
Bank cwverdrafls L) - - - - 94
Fized rates bosrowangs 422 m [ 1.218 602 2518
Fleating-rates borrawings 7 102 15 63 - 617
27 e a7 1,588 E23 4891
Desivative fmancial |kabilities, net 4 - T - - 11
At December 31, 2016
Trade and bills payabdes 23 ] - - B54
(Cthed poayables 350 - @65 - - Al
Cibdigateon s undar fmanoe leases = 2 2 4 21 29
Bank overdrsfts 16 - - - - 1&
Flond rates Domrowings Lo T a1 &0 93 2891
Flesbling 4ates Borrowings 183 73 25 23 506
el 2 28T TG &ar G4 474

Desivative financial lighdities, net - = = - R 3

” Lt thar LESS T millen
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

Capital Risk Management and Fimancial Instruments (Continusd)

Fair valoe measurement

The chirectors of the Company consider that the canying amounts of curment financial assets and linancial iabikties
recorded at amortised cost in the consolidated (nancial statements approximale their &ir valees due o the sho
term maturities of these instuments.

The fair values of non-cunent financial assels and financial labilities have been calculated by discounting the
expected luture cash llows using rates currently avallable lor instruments with similar terms, credit risk and
remaining matimities and the Management has assessed that the fair values of not-cunent financial assels and
financial liabilies appooamately to ther canying amount, The Group's own non-perfonmeance sk for non-curmment
financial labilites as al December 31, 2017 was assessed to be insignificant.

Fair value measurements recognised in the consolidated statement of linancial position
The Follewing lable provides dn analysis of linancial mstnements thsl are measured subsequent to milial recognition
at faw value, grovped info Levels 1 1o 3 based on the degres owhich the Tair walue s obsenvabbe

- Lewvel 1 lair value measurements are those derived from quoled prices {unadjusted) i active markets (o
identh assels of Hatdlites

* Lewed 2 fain value measurements are those derved from inpuls other than queted prices included within
Lewel 1 that are obsenmble for the asset of Eability, either directly (e, as prices) of inditectly (e, derived

Toam prices).

. Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from vaksation techoiques that include inpots Tor he assel
0 Eability that are not based on cbéerable market data (uncbsenable inputs).

2017
Level 1 Lewal 2 Level 3 Tatal
US5 million USS ' million UsS'million WSS milleon
Derivatives (mancil assels 17 15 = a2
Other non-curtent assets 16 91 23 130
B 108 3 162
Derivatives Tmancial lisbilities 16 11 - 27

158 million LISH millicn

Datrvatives Tmancial assels 5] 14 - 20
Cher non-curent assets 19 8 . oF

5 a9 = 117
Derivatives Tmancel labilities - 11 - 1
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

38. Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments (¢Colingied)
Fair value measurement |Continued)
Fair value measurements recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position (Continued)
The fir vakees of derivative financial assetstiabiliies aro determined by quoted prices in active markets (level 1)
of using the meome approach based on discounted cash llow analysis on the expected interest males (bevel 23, as
agpropriate.

Other non-current assets mohdes mulual lunds and instibetional funds which are valued based on ils queted prices
in active markel (level 1) of derived from the ned assat value per share of the investrnent (kevel 3), &5 apgeoprniate,
and isurance conlracts which are walued at their cash sunrender value using the daily asset unit valee wiich is
barsed on the quated market price of the underbing securities and classified within Level 2,

Fair value measurements and valualion processes
Soume of the Group's assets and Babililies are modssured at fair value tor financial repoting puiposes.

In esteneating the lair vakee of an assel of a Ebilly, the Group uses markel-observable data 1o the axtent il =
available 'Where Leved 1 inpuls are not anailable, the Group engages thid parly qualified valuers lo perfonm the
valuation. The managemend of the Company works closely with the qualified external valuers to establish he
agepropriabe valustion techniques and inputs o the model.

Financial assets and financial lahilities subject to offsetling enforceahle master nelling arcangemenis and

simily agreemeants

The disclisure Set ool in the bles below includes fmancial assels and financial labilties hat:

. are offsel in the Group's consolidated statement of financial position; o

- arer subject to an enforceable master nelting arrangement or simdar agreement that covers similar financial
mstruments, irrespective of whethesr they ae olfset in the Groups consolidabed statement of financial
osition.

The Group currenly has a kgally enforceable mgght to set off Wwe dervative linancial mstruments and the Group
intends to settle these balances ona net basis,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Capital Risk Management and Fimancial Instruments (Conginusd)
Financial assels and financial liahilities subject to offsetting enforcenhle master netting amangements and

similar agresments (Continued)
As at December 31, 2017

Gris
amoants of
recognised

Financial
a5ty
WSE rillon

Denvaties 17

Gross
amounls ol
recognised

fimamcEal
ltabilities

ol off

im the
consolidated
slatemenl

o limamceal
pusition

USE millron

(16}

Hed
amolmnls of
fmamcial
azgeli
presanind
i the
consolidated
statamani
ol finamcial
position
UsE'million

Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Related smosnis
mol sed off in lhe
consolidatipd shatement
of financial position
Cazh
Financial ciollaleral
et smotn

LS5 million

recenred
Us§ ' million

callaleral
US55 milleon

Groess
amounis ol
recognised

financial
liahdlities
US55 million

Detvatives 16

Grods
mmoumis of
recognised

fimamcaal
assets zal off
in the
corsolidaled
slaterment

of hmamceal

position
UEE million

{16)

Hed
amsounts of
fnancial
Trahil dkns
presenied
i the
consoldaled
statemand
ol smaacaal
posifion
UEE 'million

Refated amoupis
mol sed aff in the
considated stalement
ol financial position
Cash
Gollaleral Hel
pledged ammam
US$million  USEmillion

Financial
collaleral
5% nai llion
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

For B year ended December 31, 2017

38. Capital Risk Management and Financial Instruments (¢Cotingied)
Financial assets and financial liahilities subject to offsefting enforceahle master netting arrangements and
similar agresments (Continued)

As af December 31, 2016

[Dhesrivainess 17

Derivaties 11 i
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
F the year eeded December 31, 2077

38, Share Incenlive Schemes
(a) 2010 Share Award Plan

The Compamy's share award plan (the “2010 Share Award Plan™) was adopted pursuant to-a reschulion in
writing of all shareholders of the Company dated November 26, 2010 (the “Resolutions”'). As a resull of
U comipleton of the resspanisation sleps @ descnbed sl apgoved in the Resolutions on December 26,
2013, 631,580,000 shares of the Company (the “Incentive Shates”), representing 6% of the then ssued
shares of the Company were iramsiesred Trem Shine D Holding Limited, one of the shareholders of the
Company, to Chang Yun Holdings Limited ("Chang Yun™) for the seniod manasgement of the Comgpany and
il= subsidiares and invested entities pursuant to the 2010 Share fovard Plan. The Resolutions also approsed
the engazement of Trioor Services Limiled by the Congany bo provide trustee sevices o the 2010 Share
Award Plan and Teeroy Limited has been designated by Tricor Services Limited 1o act as tustee for the
2010 Shara Award Plan {the “Trustee™), The voling rights in respect of the Incentive Shares held by Chang
Y will be exercised in accordance with the dwection to be given by Heroke Zone, one of the sharehokdess
of the Comparny.

If, af the dale of termination of the 2010 Share Award Plan, Chang Yun hobds any Incentive Shanes which
has not been set aside pursuant to the leoms of the 2000 Share Award Plan in favoar of any selecked
employes of the Company of refains any unutilised funds, the Trustes shall handde at the discretion of the
board of directors of the Company according to the then applicable laws snd regulations. Upon terménation
of e 2000 Share fward Plan, all the Incentive Shares and other distributions. provisionally swarded to
a selected employee (o the extent not already vested pursuant to the terms of the 2010 Share Award
Plan, shall become wested on such sekected employes and any Incentive Shares which are not vested in
accordance with the terms of the 2010 Share Award Plan or are fosfeited in accordance with the terms
thereumder, shall be handied al the discielion of the board of directors ol the Company according o the
then applicable laws and reguiations. Chang Yun was hereby regarded as a special purpose entity of the
Company and consolidated fo the Group sl dingly.

Thie 2010 Shaee Award Plan was amended parssant toa resolution in writeg of all dinectors dated Fetiary 9,
2012 and the assessment period for vesting the Incentive Shares were set to be 2012 1o 2014, Shares have
besen vissbed 1o the massgement o stalf of the Company under the 2000 Share Award Plan up to e date
of Bsue of these financial statements, but the relevant shares have nod yet been ransferred to the rebevant
parties,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

39. Share Incenlive Schemes (Copbingeid)
{2} 20710 Share Award Plan (Contmued)
Dietails of the 2010 Share Award Plan are as follows:

Mumber of shares 31,580,000
(subject to the bock-up period of 5 years and voling right shall be retained by
Hexobe Zone, the immediale holding company of the Company, thereafter)

Grant date December 26, 2012
Westing condition Performance targel fon esch vear from 2002 to 2014

The managemant of the Company considers that the vesting condition on paformance targel is achieved
and all Incentive Shares will be transferred from Trustee ultimately. The estimated falr value of the Incentive
Sheres as at gran? date amounted to US$128 million has been recoanised in profit or loss during vesting
period. 11 wirs determined by market approach,

{b) 2013 Share Award Plan

The Company had adopted ancdher share award plan (ihe “2013 Share Award Plan”) pursuant 1o a witten
resalufion of all the Company’s sharehokders in October 2013, representing 3.0% of the then issued shates
aof the Company at the time of issuance pursuant to the 2013 Share Award Plan held by High Zenith Limited
{“High Lenith”) fod the recognition and reward 1o the contribution of certain empleyees and the growih and
development of the Group, The resofution also approved the Trustee by the Comgany 1o provide trustes
sepvices fon the 2013 Share Award Plan, The voling rights in respect of the shares held by High Zenith wil
b exedcrsed i accordance with the direction 1o be given by Herok: Done.

I, Ak the date of eamination of the 2013 Share Award Plan, High Zenith bolds any shares which have not
been set aside pursuant 1o the terms of the 2013 Share Award Plan in favour of any selected employees
of the Company of refains any unutiised tunds, the Trustee shall handle at the discretion of the board of
directors of the Company according to the then applicable laws and regulations, Lipon termination of the
2013 Shawe Mward Plan, all the shares and other distributions provisionally awanded 1o a selected employes
fo thee estent not alresdy vested parsuant o the terms of the 2013 Share Award Plan, shall become vested
on such selected employee and any shares which are nol vested in accordance with the lerms of the
2013 Share Award Plan or are fofeited inaccordance with the tlesms thereunder, shall be handled at the
discietion of the boand of directois of the Compsainy aceoding to the then applicable bws and regulations.
High Zenith was heraby regarded as a special purpose entity of the Group accordingly.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
F the year eeded December 31, 2077

38,  Share Incenlive Schemes (Conlingd)
(b) 2013 Share Award Plan (Contmued)
On October 23, 2013, 350,877,333 newly issved shares of US$0.000]1 each were allotted 1o High Zenith
puizwEnt to the 2013 Share Award Plan as set out above.

M. Wan Long was granted 350,877,333 chares (ihe “Awarded Shaes™) under the 2013 Share Award Plan
on Aprill 28, 2017, subject to the terms and conditions set out in the rebevant award notice and under the
rubes ol the 2013 Share Award Plan,

The: management of the Company considers that the vesting condition on the altsinment of financial tpet
feg 2017 hers been achieved. The estimated fair valwe of the Awarded Shases as at the grant date amounted
o LISE278 midhon has been recognised in profit or loss {or e yes ended Decembes 31, 2017

The fair value of the Awarded Shares are detesmaned by the market approach by JLL a1 the grant date.

(e}  Pre-IFO share option
The pre-IPO share option scheme was adopled pursuant o a wrilten resolubion passed by the shareholders
of the Company on January 21, 2014 as amended on Apdl 4, 2014, e purpose of which & to incentivise
and reward eligible participants of the scheme, including directors, employess of the Company of ils
subsidianes by reason of ther contribution or potentzl contribution to the Company andfor any of ifs
sulrsidiaries,

I Juby 2004, the number of shares in respect of which options had been granted under the pre-IPO share
oplion scheme was 584, 795,555, with an exercne price of HK3G, 20 per share, tepresenting no mode than
5% of the then issued share capital of the Company upon comglkedion of the listing on the Steck Exchange.
Mo consideration was pakd by he grantess for the gram of the pre- IR0 share opbions.

The: fair value of the pre- PO share options granted using the Binomial Option Pricesg Model was HK$1.533
milllion {equivalent to appradimately USE243 million} which was measued by JLL

The Key inpass ino the model were &5 Tollows:

‘Share price HKSE.66
Exgrcise price HKS5.20
Option life 10 years
Expected velalility 42%
Risk-free rate 2.06%

Expected volatility was determined by using the historical volalifity of the selected comparable comprises in
thwe same industry.
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

39. Share Incenlive Schemes (Conbinged)
{c) Pre-1P0 share option (Conbinued)
The following tatsle discloses detads of the Group outstanding share options undes the poe-1PC share option
scheme and their mavements during the yean:

Fremad L+ L [T Latcried

PeP)Saelpen Juy )0O0M DG 26000 BEEMT SN MSEONE G0 S066ET| FAREE] SA0EASTE
Tt
oot Be il 155015 Pl
A

In respect of the shase options exercised during the year, the weighied average share price at the dates of
pxprcise s HESE 20 (A016: HER6.TE)

Foe the year ended December 31, 2017, the Group recognised a shate-based payments expense of US$35
million {2016: US$AY million) in relation o (he pre-IPO shere oplion schams

40,  Acguisition of Additional Imerest in Subsidianes
UOn Sepltembser 9, 2016, the Group acqused the rermaining 26% equity interest in Shanghai Shuanghu Dachang
Cov, Ld. {“Shuanghul Dachang”} for a consideration of LS$30 milllon and becams: a wholly-owned subsidarny of
the Group alter the acquisition. Shuanghul Dachang is pincipally engaged in manufacturing and sales of meat
products,

41. Operating Lease Commilmants
The Group as kessee was commitbed o make the following lulume minimum bease payments under non-cance Bl
opserating leases which fall due as follows:

2017

UsS million
Withan one year 58 by
lew thex second o 18 year inclusie 123 141
Adter five years B4 87
265 285

Operating leases payiments represent rentals peyable by the Group for certain of s warchouse and premises. Lease
are nagolabed for 2 lease tenm of 4 to 50 vears, The Group dees not have an oplion 1o purchase e eased assels
upon e expiry of the kease periods,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

42. Capital Commitments

2017 20l

LSS million LSS millicn

Capital expendiure confracied, but not provided tor, i the consolidated
Tmancial statements in respect of acquisibion of pogerly,
plant and equigment 144 3

Cn July 28, 2017, the Group acquired 33.5%, and ageed o acquire the remaining 56 5% equity internest (conditional
upan approval from regulatony authoities) g hog slaughterhouse in Poland. Such acquisition aligns wih the
strategic growlh plans of the Group by expanding s produdion cagacity and strengthening its vertically-integrated
suipply chain in resourceful regions:

43. Pledpe of Assels
The carying amount of the assets of the Group pledged to banks for secuing banking and tading kaclities and
loan from a third party granted to the Group s anabysed &s follows:

2017 et

WES'million LS milllion

Pledged bank. balances 10 12

The remaindes of pledged bank Baknces s pledped for worker's compensation inswrance claims of US$1 million
{2006 USES mllicn) in LS.,

Ao at Decermber 31, 2007 and December 31, 2016, the Group's matenal US, subsidianes are jointly and severally
hatde for, as primany obligors, the obligations under cetain banking facilities, and those oblgations ane secured

by @ Twst priocity lien on cerlain progerty, including cash and cash equivalents, deposil acoounts, inverdones, and
intslbeciual propety,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

43. Pledgs of Assels (Cootinuest)

Smuthfield Receivables Funding, LLC, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group, has a secuontisation facility
that matures in Decembser 20019, As pat of the amangement, all trade receivables of the major pork segment
subsidianies in Smithfiekd are sold to a whoBy-owned “bankmupboy remofe” special purpose vehicle (“SPVL The SPY
pledges the recelvables as-securly for lans and letters of credit. The SPY s included in the consclikdated financiad
slatements of the Group and therefore, the bade meoerables cemed by the 5PV are incheded i the consolidaled
slatement of Imancial position of the Group. However, tade receivables owned by the SPV are separate and distinct
Trown the ollver assets and are nid available to othes creditors of Smithdield I Senithfield were b become nsokent
#Az 8l December 31, 2017, the SPV held US$632 million (2016 LISYS6T milllon) of trade receivables and had o
outstanding borrowings on the securitrstion tacility. Mo tinancial of olher suppo o this SPY provided by the Groug
a5 at December 31, 2017 and 2016

44, Conlingent Liahililies
The Group s subject to vawiows laws and regulations adiministered by junsdictional government entities. The Group
had naotices and inquinies from regulatory authorities and others asserling rom time fo Groe that the Group s not
in comphance wille the respective laws and regulations. In some instances, ligaion ensues and individuals may
initiate iigation against e Growp.

Morth Caralinia Nuisance Liligation

In Auguist, September and Cctober 2004, 25 complaings wete fiksd in the Eastern District of North Carolina by 515
indiidual plaintifls agatnst Smithficld's wholly owned subsidiary, Murphy-Boown LLC ("Muophy-Browe™), alleging
causes of aclion for nuisance and reddled claims. As of December 31, 2017, there ware 26 currently pending
complaints which mchaded chins on behall of 511 plaintifts and refate 1o approsimately 14 company-owned and
T5 conteact farms, All 26 comgdaints inclede causes of action fof tlempofary nusance and negligence and seck
rscovery of an unspecilied amount of compensatory, special and punitive damages. The Group bolieves that the
chaime are unfounced and intends to defend the suits vigorously,

The Group's policy lor establishing accruals and dischesures for contingenl labdlities s sel oul in note 3, The
Group established a provision for estimating the espenses o defend against these and similar potential claims
on the consolidated staterment of financial position. Expenses and oltwsr Eatslities. associatled with these nisisance
and refated clainms for subsegquent periods will nol affect the Group's profits or lesses unless the provision proves
to be insulficsent or excessive, However, legal expenses incurred in the Group's defence of these clains and any
payments made lo plaintits through unfavourable veedicts or othenwise will negatively impact s cash flows and
its lpuidety position. Grven that these matters are in the preliminany stages and given the inherenl uncertanty of
e outcome for these and similar potential claims, the Group cannot estimate the reasonably possible loss o
st of less for these hoss comtingencies culsibe the expenses the Grougs will incus o defend against these claims.
The deectees of the Company will cantinue bo review whether an additional acomsal s necessary and eslimate the
regsonably possebhe Bss or @nge of ks for these mattars.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

Fe the year esced December 31, 2017

45. Related Party Transaclions
(&) The Group had e Tollowmg sgndicant bassctions with assecialesfoint ventures during both yesies:

2017 2UE

UES million LIS% millicn

Sales of goods o Associales (] 1r

Sales of goods 1o joint ventures 12 8
Inlerest moome from joint venlures - =

Purchase ol goods from assoctales 50 31

Purchase of goods from joind venlines 16 16

b}  Balances with associates/foint veniures at the end of both years:

2017 mile
WSS million LSS million

Inchpctesd in:
Trade and bills receivabiles ] |
Prepayment, deposits and other receivables A
Trade payabhes 3 1
Aconred expenses and other payables. a Fi

Teoie Test A MOURLE dust b SVEOCMETOmT yirtiles S Unietued, meenes-Tred Bnd fepay bk on Samind

(g}  Compensation of key management personnel of the Group
The remuneration of key management personnel, representing emoluments. of diectors of the Company
and enior management of the Group paid/payable during the period under review s set oul a5 follows:

Year ended Decamber 31,

27 AILE
WsS'million 153 milhan
Direcion lees - =*
Basic salanes and alowances 10 10
Perlormancs bonuses 32 30
Retwement benefits scheme contribaions 3 e
Share-based payiments 208 28
Total compensation paid to key management perscaned 33 72

s M LSS mdlion
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
For Eht year énded Decemnbar 31, 2017

48, Statement of Financial Position of the Company

2017

USS million

Mon-cuirent assets
Inberests in unlisted subsidiarnes 5,103 b2

Cairen! abses

Amounts due from subsidarnies 119 1S
Prepayments, deposits and other receivables - —=
Bank balnoes and cash 1 1
120 120
Cuarrent liabilities
Amoumls due to subsidianes L] 214
Other payables 1 1
Baoimowings - (1]
342 435
Mt cumment liabilities {222} {315)
Todal assets less cunrent liabilfties 4,881 4,767

Maon-cuirent liabilities

Baorrowings - 223
el assers 4,881 4,544
Capital and resarves

Share capial 1 1

Share promium 2821 2905

Tianslation reserve 61 i1

Other reserve 1.186 Fas-]

Retained profits o2 Ga9
Total ecpuity 4,681 4,544

Lerm Hhan LESST millgn
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Statemen! of Financial Position of the Company (Continued)
Maovement in the Company’s reseives

At darmsary 1, 2016

Profit and total
comprehensive income
T hee e

Davidend paid (Mote 13)

Share-based payments

Issue of shares upon
expiise of share oplions

Al December 31, 2016 and
January 1, 2017

Profit and tolat
comprehensive income
for Hhee ye

Davidend paid {(Mote 13)

Shate-based payments

I5sue of shares upon
exercise o share options

A December 31, 2017

Sham

capital

Share

Preminm

LI5S rowllicn

20z

2906

Transtation
e sarya

&l

&l

Othor
resane

47

(1}

313

{5

1,186

Retalned
profits
1553 imdlion

271

418

b2
{480

13

102

Total
LIS nialhon

4,077

R0

B2
(A
313

11

4,881

Lets thae USEL milice
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MNotes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

47.  HNon Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries That Have Matenal Non-Contrelling Interests
The table below shows detals of non-wholly-owned subsudianes of the Group that have maleral non-controlling
interasts 31 the end of reposfing period:

Cauniry of Progarfion ol swmeiship
iscorpoialmn and isdgresls and valing
priscipal place tighls beld by Frafil allocated 1a Aceamulated
Hamm ol vsbashary ol buyiness men-canirslling mberents noa-{anirellimg mberesty nua-caniml g mieredy
m7 m7 7
U5 millen i U5S il fian
AREER AT R
21 S|

Henan Shusnghui kwvestment
& Dewekpment Ca | L
{"Shuanghui Develogment™]  China 26, 75% B15% 18 a2 m 613

Indinicduatly mmalenat
sibeidiaries with non-
cordnoling inlenests 3 = a0 i

186 xe m T2

Summarsed financiad information in respect of Shuanghui Development that has material non-comtrolling nterests is
seetoul below, The summarnsed fnancel information below represents amounls befose infrgroug eliminations.

As al December 31,

2017 G

UEE million LSS mulion

M- Cunrent assels 2070 2061
Casment sssels 1477 1014
Capresnit iabilities {1,128) {889)
Mon-cumvent labiblies {33} (15)
Equity attributable 1o owners of Shuanghui Development {2,245) {2.048)
Mon-controdling interests of Shuanghui Development’s subsidianies k] 125
Men-controlling mterests of Shuanghus Development GO0 Hag
m 673

- Loss fhan LESS] milkon
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

47.  Non Wholly-Owned Subsidiaries That Have Material Non-Controlling Interests (Continued)

Year ended Decamber 31,

Oooooooa

2017 il
WSS million LISH million
Revariss 7484 a0z
Toted expenses [Ea21) (7,116}
Protd lor e yessr and tobsl comprahesive incoms for e yearn 668 GEE
Profd attributable fo owners of the Company 485 484
Profit attributable to the non-confrolling interests of
Shuanghie Development’s subsidiagies 12 24
Profd attritudable o the non-controlling interests of
Shuanghis Development m 178
668 GB6
[Cavidends paid to non-oontroling nterests of
Shuanghu Developmaont’s subsidisies 21 &
Mt cash ke lrom opeating sclivities 832 B3h
Met cash Coutflew) infbow from investing activities {59} i
et cash outflow from financing achivilies [363) (1,015}
et cash ke 4ato 845
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fior B year ended Cecemnbar 31, 2017

48. DOther Comprehensive Income (Expense)
Other reserve included the Tt value of the shase options, share awards, remessurement. deficit of the defined
benefit pernsion plans and lair wiee suplus (defict) in cash flow hedpe atintatabe to the Group.

2017

UsS million

Other comprehensive income {expense) includes;
Itemes that will not be rechssilied subsequently lo prodl o loss:

Remeasurernent on defined benefit pension plans {100} (A5}
Incorme tax relating to defined benedit pension plans 25 18

Remeasurement on deferred tax assets related to amounts recorded in
accumalsted other comprehensive income {expense) {30} -
{105} 31

Itemes that may be reclassitied subsequently to profit o loss:

Exchange differences asing on banskation of foreign operations 333 {251)
Fair value Clumge incash flow hedge {18 ]
Income kax relaling to cash flow hedge 7 RN

322 (233)
{her comprehensive income (expense), nel of income lax 217 {2641}

49,  Events After the End of the Reporting Period
On Sepdember 25, 2017, the Group entered mio agreements with tyo-companses in Rormania which operdte three
packaped meals manutachuring lacilities, five distribeion cenlers and related assets to acquire thesr 1007% of share
capatal {“Elit & Vencom™ ). The two companies manufacture and sefl beanded, peckaged meats 1o a nationwide
distribution network. The ransaction was compdeled in January 2018 and the Group & in the process of making
assessment on the fair value of net identifiable assets of ENit & Vesicom to be recognised upon acaquisition:
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51.

Principal Subsidiaries

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
Fioe the year ended December 31, 2077

Detats of the Company’s princapal subsidiees al Decenbees 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016 are as folkws:

Rame of nidrisdany

Rty Verler Limied Horgg Fong

Susngtns Devdopmsnt Chera
{13

el (Nole ) us

(rderary sures
b L cebr T
(016 HESL3 S 510

e
RME3 296 553 254
[M006 RMEI, 28 55 2

Praopal admhi

Invesimentholdng and Tadeg

Irnsimint holding, réslock

Breecing, ok
chagghbrng, manubcine

el salees ol peckaging
mzlaiats sl mraal rodsh

Irzstmient helding, Brestock

baedirg, Irstoc
sggdrerng. manubne
are] sk of mest ploduc

foim 11 This comgany & Eded on the A Shanes W ket of the Shenshen Sioci Exihange and mgitened as mied Gty company wder Peopls's

Refubin of Ching Law

foote 2 This company wat Feted on [Fs New York Sk Enchangs sod wal déiassd Trom (he sieck enchangs mlttkst on Seplembes 26, 2013
Frmecinbedy sftor the soquisition by the Gaoop and remained a5 3 regisrant under 125 Securites and Exichange Commission up o

Decembes 7, 2006

Mole 3. The par vablue of the common shanes of this stsidiany i pera

The above table lsts the principal subsidiaries of the Company which, in the opinlon of the directors of the
Company, principally aflected the results for the year or formed a substantial potion of the consolidated nel assels.
To gree detais of all the subsidearies would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulas of excessive length,

Comparative Amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been restated b conform with the cument year's presentation and disclosures,
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR"S REPORT

To the shareholders of WH Group Limited
(Incorporated iIn the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of WH Group Limited (the
“ Company” ) and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “ Group” )
set out on pages 63 to 161, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2017, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year
then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view
of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2017, and
of 1ts consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for
the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting
Standards (“ IFRSs” ) and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing

(* HKSAs” ) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(* HKICPA” ). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor®s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial
Sstatements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance
with the HKICPA"s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “ Code” ),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the
Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were
of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of
the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion
thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters. For each
matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter is provided
in that context.
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We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor®s
responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements section
of our report, including in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
included the performance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements.
The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the
accompanying consolidated financial statements.

Key audit matter

Fair value measurement of live hogs
included in biological assets

The carrying value of the Group®s live
hogs included in biological assets
amounted to US$985 million,
representing 6.5% of the Group®s total
assets as at 31 December 2017. The
carrying value of live hogs was
measured at fair value less costs to
sell which was determined based on the
price of hogs in the actively traded
market, reduced by the breeding costs
required to raise the hogs to be
slaughtered and the estimated margins
that would be required by a raiser and
less costs to sell with reference to
the latest budgets approved by the
management. The Group engaged an
independent qualified valuer to
perform the live hog valuations. We
identified the fair value measurement
of these live hogs as a key audit
matter because of the significant
degree of judgement involved in the
valuation to determine the fair value
less costs to sell of live hogs.

Disclosures of determination of the
fair value less costs to sell and the
key assumptions involved are included
in notes 4 and 17 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to assessing
the fair value measurement of live hogs
included in biological assets included:

0O Understanding how the management
determined the fair value
measurement of live hogs included in
biological assets, including the
involvement of the independent
valuer;

O Evaluating the competence,
capabilities, independence and
objectivity of the independent
valuer;

O Reviewing the valuation model
prepared by the independent valuer
in determining the fair value less
costs to sell of live hogs;

0O Checking the market price of hogs to
the available market data, on a
sample basis; and

O Checking the estimates of breeding
costs required to raise the live
hogs and estimated margins that
would be required by a raiser and
costs to sell against the historical
performance and budgets approved by
the management.



Key audit matter

Valuation of obligation in respect of
defined benefit plans

The carrying value of the Group®s
obligation in respect of net pension
liability as at 31 December 2017
amounted to US$362 million,
representing 5.1% of the Group®s total
liabilities as at 31 December 2017.
The obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans was determined using the
projected unit credit method, with
actuarial valuation being carried out
at the end of the reporting period.
The Group engaged an actuarial expert
to perform the actuarial valuation of
plan assets and the present value of
the defined benefit obligations. Key
assumptions applied in the actuarial
valuation included discount rates,
expected salary increases and
mortality rates. We identified the
valuation of the obligation in respect
of defined benefit plans as a key
audit matter because of the
significant management judgement,
assumptions and actuarial expert
involved in the determination of the
valuation.

Disclosures of the Group®s obligation
in respect of net pension liability
and the key assumptions adopted in the
valuation are included in notes 4 and
34 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Our procedures in relation to
assessing the valuation of the
obligation in respect of defined
benefit plans included:

O Understanding the management®s
valuation process, including the
involvement of the actuarial expert
In performing the actuarial
valuation of plan assets and the
present value of the defined
benefit obligations;

O Evaluating the competence,
capabilities, independence and
objectivity of the actuarial
expert;

O Evaluating the valuation method and
key assumptions adopted in the
valuation of obligation In respect
of the defined benefit plans; and

O Involving our internal valuation
specialist to evaluate the key
assumptions adopted in the
valuation of the obligation in
respect of the defined benefit
plans, including the discount rate,
longterm inflation rate, and the
mortality rates against externally
derived data.
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Other Information included in the Annual Report

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the Annual Report,
other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor™s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with IFRSs and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of the Company
either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group®s financial reporting process.

Auditor®s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor®s report
that includes our opinion. Our report is made solely to you, as a body, and for
no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability
to any other person for the contents of this report.
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Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but iIs not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when 1t exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

O Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design
and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud i1s higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control.

O Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group®s internal control.

O Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by
the directors.

O Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors® use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group®s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor™s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, i1f such
disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor®s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease
to continue as a going concern.

O Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

O Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial
information of the entities or business activities within the Group to
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
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responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group
audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear
on our independence and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit
matters. We describe these matters in our auditor™s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent auditor®s
report is Ms. CHIU, Caroline Su Yuen.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
22/F, CITIC Tower

1 Tim Mei Avenue

Central, Hong Kong

26 March 2018
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(Ms. CHIU, Caroline Su Yuen)

CITIC 22F
2018 26
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